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NOTICE
NOTICE is hereby given that 10" Annual General Meeting of the Members of Dedicated Freight
Corridor Corporation of India Limited (CIN : U60232Dt2006G0I155068) will be held on Monday,
26 day of September 2016 at 12:30 Hrs. in Board Room, 5% Floor Pragati Maidan Metro

Station Building Complex, New Delhi ~ 110001 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Stgteménts of the Company for the year ended

31st March, 2016, together with the Report of the Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon and comments

~of the Comptroller and Audilor General of India thereon.

2. To take note of the appointment of the Statutory Auditor of the Company and to fix the

remuneration by adopting the following resolution.

‘Resolved that Members be and hereby took note of appointment of M/s Baweja & Kaul, Chartered
Accountants, as Statutory Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2016-2017, by the
Comptrolier and Auditor General of India, on a remuneration as may be decided, by the Board of
Directors on the recommendations of the Audit Committee.”

"Resolved further that for future appointments, the "Board” of the Company be and is hereby
authorised to fix the remuneration of the Statutory Auditor of the Company on the recommendations

of the Audit Committee, as may be appointed, by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India in

future.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS
3. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following

resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant fo the provisions of Section 152(2) and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act 2013 read with Arlicle 81 of Articles of Articles of Association of the
Company, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the appointment made by the
President of India vide Railway Board's order no. 2008/Infra/6/t (Pt 1) dt, 01.04.2016, of
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Sh. Ravi Mathur, as part time Non-Official Director on the Board of Company with immediate effect,
for a period of three years or until further orders whichever is earlier.

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Director Finance/ Company Secretary be and is hereby
authorized to do ail such acts, deads and things and to sign all such documents as may be necessary,

expedient and incidental thereto to give effect to this resolution.”

4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution

as Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT putsuant to the provisions of Section 152(2) and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act 2013 read with Article 81 of Articles of Association of the Company, the
consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the appointment made by the President of
India vide Railway Board's order no. 2008/Infra/6/1 {Pt. 1} dt, 01.04.2016, of Smt. Shakti Munshi, as
part time Non-Official Director on the Board of Company with immediate effect, for a period of three

years or until further orders whichever is earfier.

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Director Finance/ Company Secretary be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and to sign alt such documents as may be necessary,

expedient and incidental thereto to give effect to this resolution.”

5. To consider and if thought fit, fo pass with or without modification, the following

resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152(2} and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act 2013 read with Article 81 of Articles of Association of the Company, the
consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded fo the appointment made by the President of
india vide Railway Board's order_no, 2016/PLI61/4 dt, 30.06.2016, of Sh. Y.S. Malik, Additional
Secretary, Niti Aayog as part ime Government Director on the Board of Company with immediate
efiect till the holding of the post of Additional Secretary, Niti Aayog or further orders whichever is

earlier.




‘RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Director Finance/ Company Secretary be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and to sign all such documents as may be necessary,

expedient and incidental thereto to give effect to this resolution.”

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following

resolution as Special Resolution:

‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 13 and alf other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules for the time being in force, the reviewed
Memorandum of Association of the Company be and is hereby approved and replaced with the new

Memorandum of Association.
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Dir (Fin) /Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby

authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, proper, expedient,

required or incidental thereto”,

7. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following

resolution as Special Resolution:

‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 14 and all other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules for the time being in force, the reviewed

Articles of Association of the Company be and hereby approved and replaced with the new Articles

of Association.

'RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Dir (Fin) /Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby

authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, proper, expedient,

required or incidental thereto”.

8. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following

resolution as Special Resolution:

“Resolved that in terms of section 13, section 61(1){a} of the Companies Act, 2013 and subject
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to approval of the President of India under Article 6 of the Articles of Association of the Company,

the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded fo increase the Authorized Share Capital of
the Company from Rs. 8000,00,00,000/- (Rupees Eight Thousand Crores) to Rs. 220,00,00,00,000/-

{Rupees Twenty Two Thousand Crores) and to make consequent amendments in clause V (Capilaf

Clause) of Memorandum of Association of the Company”.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Dir {Fin} /Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby

authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, proper, expedient,

required or incidental thereto”.

Place: New Delhi By Order of the Board

Date: 31,08.2016 &/1 — j9

Meenu Kapoor

Company Secretary

The relative Explanatory Statement pursuant o section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of the business under Item Nos. 3 to lfem 8 of the Notice, are annexed hereto.

A Member entitled to aftend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (AGM} is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and the proxy need not be a Member
of the Company. The instrument appointing the proxy, in order to be effective, must be
deposited at the Company's Registered Office, duly completed and signed, not less than
FORTY EIGHT HOURS before the meeting.

The Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Repori 2015-16 is being sent by electronic
mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are reqistered with the Company, unless
any Member has requested for a physical copy of the same. For Members who have not
registered their e-mail addresses, physical copies are being sent by the permitted mode,
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013,

ITEM NO.3

1. Section 152 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that “Save as otherwise expressly
provided in this Act, every director shall be appointed by the company in general meeting.”

Accordingly, it is mandatory to take the appointments made by the President of India for

consent of the shareholders.

2. Interms of Articte 81 of Articles of Association of the Company -

{1} The President shall have powers to appoint:

{a) Fuiltime Chairman or, Part time Chairman, full ime Managing Director(s) or a full
time Chairman-cum-Managing Director and other full ime Directors.

{b) The Directors representing the Government of India and / or any State Government; |
and

{c} Other Directors including independent Directors in consultation with the Chairman.

The Directors appointed by the President shalf hold office until removed by him or untii their

resignation, retirement, death or otherwise.

3. Interms of Railway Board’s order no. 2008/Infra/6/1 {Pt. 1) dt, 01.04.20186, the President of
India has appointed of Sh. Ravi Mathur, as part time Non-Official Director on the Board of

Company with immediate effect, for a period of three years or until further orders whichever

is earlier.

No Director or Key Managerial Personne! of the Company and/or their relatives are concerned

or interested financially or otherwise in this item of business except Shri Ravi Mathur.

ITEM NO. 4

1. Section 152 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that "Save as otherwise expressly

provided in this Act, every director shall be appointed by the company in general meeting.”
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Accordingly, it is mandatory to take the appeintments made by the President of India for

consent of the shareholders.

In terms of Article 81 of Articles of Association of the Company -
{1) The President shall have powers to appoint:

{a) Fulitime Chairman or, Part time Chairman, full fime Managing Director(s) or a full
time Chairman-cum-Managing Director and other fult time Directors.

(b} The Directors representing the Government of India and / or any State Government;
and

(c} Other Directors including independent Directors in consultation with the Chairman.

The Directors appointed by the President shall hold office untif removed by him or unt their

resignation, retirement, death or otherwise.

In terms of Railway Board's order no. 2008/Infra/6/1 {Pt. 1) dt, 01.04.2016, the P_resident of
India has appointed of Sm¢, Shakti Munshi, as part time Non-Official Director on the Board
of Company with immediate effect, for a period of three years or until further orders

whichever is earfier.

No Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives are concerned

or interested financfally or otherwise in this item of business except Smt. Shakti Munshi.

_ ITEMNO.5

1.

Section 152 {2) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that “Save as otherwise expressly
provided in this Act, every director shall be appointed by the company in general meeting.”
Accordingly, it is mandatory to take the appointments made by the President of India for

consent of the shareholders.

In terms of Asticle 81 of Articles of Association of the Company -

{1) The President shall have powers to appoint:
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{a) Fulltime Chairman or, Part time Chairman, full time Managing Director(s} or a full
time Chairman-cum-Managing Director and other full time Direciors.

(b) The Directors representing the Government of India and / or any State Government;
and '

{c} Other Directors including independent Directors in consultation with the Chairman,

The Directors appointed by the President shalt hold office unfit removed by him or until their

resignation, retirement, death or otherwise.

3. In terms of Railway Board's order no. 2016/PLIG1/4 dt, 30.06.2016, the President of India
has appointed Sh. Y.S. Malik, Additional Secretary, Niti Aayog as part time Government
Director on the Board of Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India Limited with
immediate effect tilf the holding of the post of Additional Secretary, Niti Aayog or further

orders whichever is earlier.

No Director or Key Managerial Personne! of the Company and/or their relatives are concermned

or interested financially or otherwise in this item of business except Shri Y.S. Malik.

ITEMNO. 6

1.

Section 13(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 deals with the alteration of Memorandum of
Association — it provides that “Save as provided in section 61, a company may , by a special
resolution and after complying with the procedure specified in this section, alter the provisions

of its memorandum.”

The existing Memorandum of Association are based on the Companies Act, 1956 and some

clauses of Memorandum in the existing MoA are no lenger in conformity with the new Companies

Act, 2013.

With the enactment of the Companies Act, 2013, few clauses of the Memorandum needed
alterations/deletions/modifications, as the case may be, in view of Companies Act, 2013 read

with the Rules prescribed therein.



4, The existing MoA was examined by the consultant Mis 8GS Associates, Company Secretaries

who were hired for the alignment of MoA in line with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013,

5. At 55th Board meeting held on 13.06.2016, vide item no. 55.3.1, the Board considered and
approved the proposal for alteration of existing Memorandum of Association of the Company

and recommended the adoption of the same in the General Meeting

No Director or Key Managerial Personne! of the Company andfor their relatives are concerned or

interested financia]:!y or otherwise in this item of business




ITEMNO.7

1. Section 14(1} of the Companies Act, 2013 deals with éitefation of Articles of Association. It
provides that subject to the provisions of this Act and the conditions contained in its
memorandum, if any, a company may, by a special resolution alter its arficles including
alterations having the effect of conversion of ~
a} A private company into a public company; or
b) A public company into a privale company:

Provided that where a company a company being a private company alters its articles in such a
manner that they no longer include the restrictions and limitations which are required to be
included in the articles of private company under the Act, the company shall, as from the date of
such alteration, cease {o be a private company:
Provided further that any alteration having the effect except with the approval of the Tribunal
which shall make such order as it may deem fit.

2. The existing Aricles of Association {"AcA"} is based on the Companies Act, 1956 and several
reguiations in the existing Articles of Association contain reference to specific sections of the
Companies Act, 1956 and some articles in the existing Articles of Association are no longer in
conformity with the Act. '

3. With the enactment of the Companies Act, 2013, few regulations of Aricles of Association

-needed alterations/deletions/madifications, as the case may be, in view of Companies Act, 2013
read with the Rules prescribed therein. '

4, The existing AoA was examined by the consultant Mis SGS Associates, Company Secretaries
who were hired for the alignment of AoA in line with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

5. At 55 Board meeting held on 02.06.2016, the Board considered and approved the niew set of
reviewed Articles of Association of the Company and recommended the adoption in the General
Meeting of altered Arlicles of Association of the Company along with the modifications
suggested by Dir(OP&BD) and Director (Finance).

No Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives are concerned or

interested financially or otherwise in this item of business



ITEM NO. 8

1. Atpresent the Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 8000, 00, 00,000/- (Rupees

Eight Thousand Crores) divided into 800, 00,000/~ (Eight Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 1000
{Rupees One Thousand) each.

2. As on 31.03.2016, the paid Share Capital of the Company was Rs. 4802.67 Crores and
Share application money pending alloiment was Rs. 2855.60 Crore
3. Asper Annual Plan approved by MoR for the year 2016-2017, the expecled inflow will be
Rs. 11722 Crore including land cost of Rs. 2920 Crore. The detail is as below:
Rsin Crores
Budget Estimate 2016-17
EDFC ; WDFC | Tofal
1 | Equity 1321 1388 2709
2 i Debt {Through MoR) 919 3972 4891
3 | Total Excluding land {1+2) 2240 5360 7600
4 |land 1420 1500 2920
5 | Totalincluding Land (3+4) 3660 6860 10520
6 i Add EDFC 1l Loan (Direct Funding Lean Component) | 898 898
7 1 Add EDFC Hl Loan (Direct Funding Loan Component) | 304 304
8 | Total BE including debt portion of EDFC IVEDFC IIl | 4862 6860 11722
to be given by World Bank {5+6+7)
4. After the issue of shares in respect of share application money pending _al:Eotment, {i.e Equity
- of
Rs. 2855.6041 crores received in FY 2015-2016} the issued, subscribed and paid up capital
- of the company would be Rs. 7658.27 Crore and with inflow of funds (budgeted-Rs. 2709
Crore) towards equity in 2016-17, issued, subscribed and paid up capital of the company
would cross the authorized share capital.
5. As per MoR Letter no. 2013/Infra/6/30 dt. 02.07.2015, the revised cost estimate of Rs.

81459/- Crores has been approved, i.e., EDFC - Rs. 26674 Crore, WDFC - Rs. 46718 Crore
andiand - Rs.gé%%aore,_lncluding interest during construcﬁon, the equity requirement of
the project comes to Rs. 21045 Crores (which includes Rs. 5316 Crore as IDC).  Assuming
that {DC will be funded as equity contribution by MoR, the Authorized Capital should be
increased up to Rs. 21045 Crore. '
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As per the Delhi Stamp Act, the increase in Authorized Capifal attracts the stamp duty,

payable

@ of 0.15% of the amount of increase in authorized Capital subject to maximum of Rs.25

Lakhs. Every time the Authorized Capital is increased from the present limit of Rs.8000

crore, the maximum amount of stamp duty is payable. In this scenario, it is advisable to

increase the present Authorized Capital fo the maximum permissible fimit.

In view of Clause (3}, (4), (5} & (6) above, it is proposad to increase the Authorized Share

Capital of the Company from Rs. 8000,00,00, 000/'— (Rupees Eight Thousand Crores) :to

Rs. 220,00,00,00,000/- {Rupees Twenty Two Thousand Crores) in terms of the provisions

of Companies Act, 2013.

Article 6 (a} of Article of Association of the Company provides that -

Subject to the approval of the President, the Board may from time to time, with the sanction

of the Company in a general meeting, increase the share capital by such sum to be divided

into shares of such amounts as the resolution shall prescribe.

Following sub-sections of Section 13 of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that -

{1) Save as provide in section 61, a company may, by a special resolution and after
complying with the procedure specified in this section, alter the provisions of its
memorandum. '

(2) Save as provided in section 64, a company shall, in relation to any aiteration of its
memorandum file with the Registrar —

{(a) the spema! resolution passed by the company under sub-section (1)

10. Pursuant to Section 61 (1) (a), a limited company having a share capital may, if authorized

11.

byits atticles, alter its memorandum in its general meeting fo increase its authorized share
capital by such amount as it thinks expedient.

Pursuant to Section 64 {1} (a), where a company alter its share capital in any manner
specified in sub-section (1) of section 61, the notice of such alteration or increase shall be

filed by the company with the Registrar in Form No. SH -7 along with the fee.
No Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company andfor their refatives are

concerned or interested financially or otherwise in this item of business



PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
CIN:

Name of the Member(s):

Registered Address:
E-mail 1D:
Folio No./ Client ID:
DP ID: We being the Member(s) of equity shares of Rs. 1000
each of Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India Limited hereby appoint;
1. Name:
E-mait Id:
Address:
Signature: or failing him
2. Name:
E-mait Id:
Address:
Signature: or failing him
3. Na.m,e:
E-mail id:
Address:
Signature:
as mylour proxy fo attend and vote (on a poll) for mefus and on myfour behalf at the Annual
General Meeting/ Extraordinary general meeting of the Company, to be held on at
at and at any adjournment(s} thereof, in respect of

the resolutions, as indicated below:




Resolution No.

1.
2.
3.
Signed: this _ day of
) ) Affix
SIgnature of shareholders: Revenue
' Stamp

Signature of the Proxy holder(s).

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at

the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of

the Meeting.
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DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR CORPORATION OF INDIA LUMITED

Registered & Corporate Office: 5* Floor, Pragati Maidan, Metro Station Buiiding Complex,
New Delhi-110001.

{CIN: U80232D12006G0I155068)

Attendance Slip

Registered Folio

Name

Address

If 'we hereby record myfour presence at the 10% Annual General meeting of the Company at its
Registered Office at 5% Floor, Pragati Maidan, Metro station Building Complex, New Delthi-110001,

on Monday, 26.09.2016 at 12.30 Hrs,

Signature of the Shareholder/ Proxy Present:

miq.__

%
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Ladies /Gentlemen,
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Tenth Annual Report of the Company along with

the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 20186.

DFCCIL has done exceedingly well during the financial year 2015-2016 in ali domains ranging from
incurring Capital Expenditure, Award of Centract to Physical Execution of the Work, Some of the major

highlights are:
1. Highlights
i There was a threefold increase in Capital expenditure from Rs 2897 Crores in 2014-15 to Rs 8508 Crores
in 2015-16. As on 31st March, 2018, the Cumulative expenditure including cost of fand is Rs. 2175052
Crore.
ii. Contracts worth Rs. 21,005 Crores were awarded as against contracts worth Rs. 13000 Crore finalized
during last 6 years. Further, contracts worth Rs 7647 Crores have been finalized in the current financial
year. With this, Civit Contracts for 2473 kms {87%) and Electrical & S&T contracts for 2188 kms (78%)

have been awarded,

il. ~Progress of Waorks:
a. First Goads train was run on DFC track from Durgauti to Sasaram (56 km) on 30.03.2016.

b. The progress of Earthwork & Concreting in Rewari- Igbalgarh section of WDFC and Khurja-Kanpur
section of EDFC was further accelerated. Track linking by Mechanized frack laying machine was
started at 3 locatfions viz. Bhadan, Maitha & Daudkhan in EDFC and at Bhagega in WDFC, Track
finking of 342 kmin EDFC & WDFC has been completed till date.

' c. Trials of monitoring the progress of work through Drone was conducted in 42 kms in WOFC & 56 kms
in EDFC.

d. Due to constant persuasion with State Governments, they have agreed to share cost of ROBs on
50:50 basis. This has resulted in consent for 121 ROBs from 9 different slates received, leading to
savings of Rs. 2400 crores approx. to Ministry of Railways.

iv. Funding arrangements: Loan amount of US$ 650 Million was sanctioned by World Bank on 30.06.2015.
v, With the intervention of Hon'ble MR & Chief Minister of Maharashtra, the Jand rate of CIDCO reduced from
Rs. 84 Crores/Ha to Rs. 42 Crores/Ha for 14 Ha of land resulting in saving of Rs. 808 Crores.
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241 Financial Statements

Financial Statements for financial year 2015-2016 have been prepared  in accordance with the

Schedule ill of the Companies Act, 2013.The Corporation has incurred the following expenditure during

the year 2015-2016:

A) Capital Expenditure on Project Execution was as under:

(Rupees in Crore)

Description Asat | During Financial | As at31.03.2016
31.03.2015 | Year 2015-16

CAPEX {Without cost of land)

Tangible assets 11.83 3.13 14.96
Intangitle assets 0.41 0.99 | 1.40
Capital work.in Progress 3,272.10 2,505.06 5,777.16
Assels under development 9.31 0.59 ' 8.9
Capital Advances 2836.27 1,653.20 4489.47
Total Capex {(Without cost of land) 6129.92 4,162,897 10,292.89
COST OF LAND (Borne by MOR) 7,412.81 4,344.82 11,457.63
Total Capex with cost of land 13,242.73 8,507.79 21,750.52

B) DEVELOPMENT ACCOUNT

During the Year the batance of Development Account T 280.59 Crore has been transferred to Capital

work in progress,

{(Rupees in crore)

Particulars

For year ended 31.03.2016

For year ended 31.03.2015

Employee benefit expenses 88.97 7000
Finance cost (Including interest) 153.69 90.65
Depreciation & amortization expenses 4.09 2.77
Administration & Other expenses 66.86 54.13
Sub-Total 313.61 : 217.55
Forex variation (Loss/(Gain)) 3.27 (2.10) |
Less : Other income 36.28 26.04
Total Transferred to CWIP 280.59 189.41 |
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C} Dividend

Your Directors recommend ‘No' dividend, as the company is under construction phase.

D) Anamount proposed for transfer to reserve: NIL

2.2  SOURCE OF FUND : Capital Structure

As on 318tMarch 2016, the Authorized Share Capital of Company stands at ¥ 8000,00,00,000 (Rupees
Eight Thousand Crores) divided into 8,00,00,000 (Eight Crores) Equity shares of ¥ 1,000/- each.

As on 31.03.2016, the Company's paid up Share Capital was ¥ 4802, 66, 88,000 (Rupees Four Eight
Zero Two Crore Sixty Six Lac Eighty Eight Thousand only) divided into 480, 26,688 (Four Crore Eighty
Lac Twenty Six Thousand Six Hundred Eighty Eight only) Equity Shares of ¥ 100C each and Share
Application Money was T 2855.60 Crore. The Paid up Capital of the Company has been enhanced on

account of equity contribution from Ministry of Railways. The capital structure was as under. .

(Rupees in crore)

As at 31.3.2015

PARTICULARS As at 31.3.2016

EQUITY FUNDING

Shareholder's Fund 4,975.97 3,825.78
Share application money pending allotment 2,855.60 1,087.00
DEBT FUNDING

JICA 1869.57 912.66
IBRD 1402.60 528.22
Total 11,103.74 6,353.86

2.2.1  Debt Funding

{ Western Dedicated Freight Corridor - Phase | (Vadodara - Rewari) 947 km & Phase |l

(Vadodara - JNPT and Rewari - Dadri} 557 km {JICA) - Consultancy.

The Loan Agreement ID-P205 for Engineering Services Consultancy {Phase-l) for 2.606 Billion
Japanese Yen for Vadodara - Rewari section of 947 km was signed with JICA and funds to the

tune of ¥ 120.56 Crore have been utilized up tc 31.03.2016.
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Ancther loan Agreement 1D-P212 for Engineering Services Consultancy (Phase 11} (Vadodara -
JNPT and Rewari-Dadri) — 557 km for 1.616 Billion Japanese Yen was signed with JICA and INR
70.92 Crore have been utilized in this loan up to 31.03.2016.

ii) Western Dedicated Freight Corridor - Phase 1 (Vadodara ~ Rewari) 947 km (JICA) -
Construction
The Loan Agreement [D-P208, first tranche for construction in the Phase [, for 80.262 billion
Japanese Yen was signed with JICA and INR 1639.33 Crore have been utilized in this foan up to
31.03.2016.
The loan agreement ID-P253, second franche for 103.664 billion Japanese Yen was signed with
JICA on 31-3-2016. No expenditure is incurred up to 31.03.2016 against ID-P253,

iii) The Loan Agreement for WDFC Phase-ll (Main Loan)
The Loan Agreement 1D-P229, first tranche for construction in the Phase !, for 136.119 Billion
Japanese Yen was signed with JICA and INR 38.76 Crore have been utilized in this foan up to
31.03.2016.

iv) Funding for Mughalsarai-Kanpur-Khurja-Ludhiana section (1131 Kms} and Khurja-Dadri
Section of Eastern Dedicated Freight Corridor.

World Bank gave ‘in principle’ approval to finance Eastern Dedicated Freight Corridor from Mughalsarai -
Luchiana and Khurja - Dadri Secticn. Total Loan of US$ 2.725 billion was agreed for the project.

» Loan agreement for US$ 975 million for EDFC -1from Khurja ~ Bhaupur (343km) vide Loan No.
8066 IN was signed on 27.10.2011 and %1115.60 Crores have been utilized in this loan up to
31.03.2016.

e Loan No. 8318 ~IN for US$ 1100 Million was sanctioned by the World Bank for EDFC Project - 2
from Bhaupur - Mughalsarai. |.can agreement was signed on 11.12.2014 and $210.38 Crore
have been utilized in this loan up to 31.03.2016.

s Technical negotiation for Eastern Dedicated Freight Corrider 3 Project from Khurja- Sahnewal
section was held on 13.05.15 which was upgraded to negotiation on 27.05.15. Loan amount of
US$ 650 million has been sanctioned by the World Bank on 30.06.2015. Advance procurement




L]

3.

has already been permited by the World Bank. Loan Agreement will be signed in

October/November 2016,
Khurja- Dadri Section has been added in EDFC-1 through re-structuring of loan against savings.

THE STATE OF THE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS.

Th'e following Contracts have been awarded during the Financia! Year 2015-2016:

(A)

WESTERN DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR (Total 1504 Km Length). (WORKS &
CONSULTANCY)

e Civil Contracts:

1.

Design & Construction of Civil, Building Track Works for double line railway for Vaitarna-
Sachin Section {CTP-12): The civil & track confract CTP-12 for 186 Km., amounting to INR
2171 Crores, was awarded on 22.05.2015 to M/s Express Freight Consortium. Contract
agreement was signed on 18.08.2015. This contract has commenced on 15.10.2015.

Completion period of the contract is 208 weeks i.e. 09.10.2013.

Design & Construction of Civil, Building Track Works for double line railway for Sachin-
Vadodara Section (CTP-13): The civil & track contract CTP-13 for 134 Km., amounting to INR
2158 Crores, was awarded on 22.05.2015 to M/s Express Freight Consortium. Contract
agreement was signed on 18.08.2015. This contract has commenced on 15.10.2015.

Completion period of the contract is 208 weeks i.e. 09.10.2018.

Design & Construction of 08 Special Steel Bridges over Water Main and Railways and
across Creek and Rivers in JNPT-Vadodara Section (CTP-15A): The special steel bridges
contract CTP-15A, amounting to INR 518 Crores, was awarded on 03.06.2015 to M/s lIS-L&T
Consortium. Contract agreement was signed on 06.08.2015. This contract has commenced on
15.10.2015. Completion period of the contract is 208 weeks i.e. 09.10.2019.

Design & Construction of Special Steel Bridge across Narmada River with RUB in JNPT-
Vadodara Section (CTP-15B): The special steel bridges contract CTP-15B, amounting to INR
331 Crores, was awarded on 03.06.2015 fo M/s liS-L&T Consortium. Contract agreement was
signed on 06.08.2015. This contract has commenced on 15.10.2015, Completion period of the
contract is 208 weeks i.e. 09.10.2019.



5. Design & Construction of 03 Special Steel Bridges over existing Railways and across
Rivers Yamuna & Hindon in Rewari-Dadri Section (CTP«15C}): The special steel bridges
contract CTP-15C, amounting to INR 214 Crores, was awarded on 03.06.2015 to M/s iS-L&T
Consortium. Confract agreement was signed on 06.08.2015. This confract has commenced on
15.10.2015. Completion period of the contract is 208 weeks i.e. 09.10.2018.

6. Design & Construction of Civil, Building Track Works for double line raitway in Ighalgarh
- Vadodara Section (CTP-3 R): The civil contract CTP-3 (R) for 298 Km., amounting fo INR
4744 Crores, was awarded on 25.02.2016. The contract s likely to commence in the first quarter
of 2016-17.
« Electrical, Mechanical and Signal & Tefecom {S&T) Contracts: .
1. .Design & Construction of Signal & Telecom Works for double line railway in Rewari-
Vadodara Section (STP-5): The S&T contract STP-5 for 947 Km., amcunting to INR 1780
Crores, was awarded on 22.06.2015 to M/s S.A.F.E Consortium. Contract agreement was
signed on 10.12.2015. This contract has been commenced on 11.01.2016 the period of

contract is 338 weeks,

2. Design & Construction of Train Protection & Warning System (TPWS) Rewari-JNPT
Section i.e. for Phase-l & Phase-ll excluding Rewari-Dadri section of 127 Km (STP-5A)
: The system contract (TPWS) STP-5A for 1377 Km., amounting to INR 609 Crores, was
awarded on 12.08.2015 to M/s -N Signal Consortium. The contract is ikely to commence in
the first quarter of 2016-17,

3. Design, Supply, Installation, Testing and Commissioning of 2x25kV Traction Power
Supply System, Traction Sub-Station, Auxiliary Stations, Switching Stations, Auto
Transformer Stations and SCADA system in JNPT-Vadodara Section (EMP-16): The
electrical & mechanical confract EMP-16, for 422 Km., amounting tc INR 1213 Crores, was
awarded on 21.01.2016 to M/s Sojitz-L&T Consortium. Contract agreement was signed on
31.03.2016. The contract has commenced w.e.f. 02.05.2016. |
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+ Consultancy Contract of Phase-II:

(B)

PMC Services for Construction of Double line Electrified Railway Track with S&T and
related Infrastructure for Dadri-Rewari & Vadodara-JNPT Section {Apprx. 557 Km} of
Phase-ll (PMC-2R): The consultancy contract PMC-2R for 557 Km., amounting to INR 855
Crores, was awarded on 15.02.2016. Contract agreement was signed on 21.03;2.016. This

contract has commenced on 3.1.03,2016

EASTERN DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR: (WORKS & CONSULTANCY).
1.

Design, Construction, Supply, Installation, Testing and Commissioning of 2x25kV AC 50 Hz
Electrification, Signaling And Telecommunication and Associated Works of Double Track
Railways Lines under Construction on a Design Build Lump Sum Basis for Bhaupur- Khurja
Section of Eastern Dedicated Freight Corridor Package-104 — Contract awarded to Alstom
Consortium on 21.07.2015. Cost of the work is INR 1497.11 Crores. Confract Agreement
signed on 30.11.2015. .

Quality and Safety Audit Consuitancy for Mughalsarai — New Bhaupur Section. Contract
awarded to GETINSA ~ S.N. BHOBE (JV) on 06.07.2015. Cost of the Consultancy Contract is
USD 1,193826.45 + INR- 134688500. Contract Agreement signed on 18.11.2015.

(C) OPERATIONS & BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT.

(il

Instifutional Strengthening' Module of DFCCIL {ISMD)

Development of Marketing and Commerciat Strategies for DFCCIL and its Catchment
areas {DMCSD)

Heavy Hau! Rail Capacity Development in Incia (HHRCDY)

Consultancy Services for Non-discriminatory Access for DFCCIL (CSNDAD.

3.2 CONTRACTS AWARDED & LIKELY TO BE AWARDED IN THE CURRENT FINANCIAL YEAR
2016-2017:

(A)

WESTERN DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIODOR (WORKS & CONSULTANCY):

Following tenders have been finalised during FY 2016-17 tifl date:

1.

Civil and Track Package (CTP-11) for the section between Vaitarna to JNPT: The civil
contract CTP-11 for 102 Kms from Vaitarna — JNPT amounting to Rs. 3949 cores has been
awarded on 15.07.2016 to M/s Express Freight Railway Consortium.
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2. Signal & Telecom Package (STP-17) for the section Makarpura-JNPT: The Signalling contract
STP-17 for the section from Makarpura-JNPT amounting to Rs. 631 crores has been on
13.05.2016 to M/s Sojitz- L&T Consortium.

Following tenders are likely to be finalised during FY 2016-17;

3. Integrated Contract Package {CTP-14) for section between Rewari-Dadri {127 Km}: The bids
for CTP-14 (Civil & Track, Electricai & Mechanical and S&T integrated package) has been
received. It is expected that LOA for this package would be issued by 2nd quarter of
FY 2316-17.

(B)  EASTERN DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR: (WORKS & CONSULTANCY).
Foliowing cdhtracts have been finalized during the current financial year:
1. Desig'n and Construction of Fermation in Embankments /Cuttings including blanketing, Viaducts,
Rail Flyover, Bridges (Major, Minor & RUBs), from Howrah end approach of DFC Sone bridge to

Chirailapathu station of IR towards Howrah & to New Sonnagar station towards Garhwa and at
Delhri-on-Scne yard from Km. 3.16 to Km. 5.38 in connection with Eastern Dedicated Freight
Corridor. Cost of work is INR 365.22 crores. Awarded in April-2016.

2. PMCfor Design and Construction of Formation in Embankments /Cuttings including blanketing,
Viaduéts, Rait Fiyover, Bridges {Major, Minor & RUBs), from Howrah end approach of DFC Scne
bridge to Chirailapathu station of IR towards Howrah & to New Sonnagar station towards Garhwa

and at Dehri-on-Sone yard from Km. 3.16 to Km. 5.38 in connection with Eastern Dedicated
Freight Corridor. Cost of Consuttancy Contract is Rs. 8.6 crores. Awarded in June-2016.

3. Design, Supply, Construction, Signaling, Telecommunication and associated works of double
track railway lines under construction on a design build lump sum basis for Mughalsarai - New
Bhaupur section of Eastern Dedicated Freight Corridor, Testing and Commissioning of Contract
Package CP 203. Awarded on 24.06.2016 fo Befjing National Railway Research and Design
Institute of Signat and Communication Group Company Ltd. China for Rs. 471 Crores.

4. Design Supply Construction installation, Testing and Commissioning of 2X25KV, 50HZ, AC

traction Electrification and associated works of Railways lines on a design build lump- sum basis
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for Mughalsarai — New Bhaupur {excl.) Section of Eastern Dedicated Freight Corridor Contract
Package CP 204. Awarded on 03.06.2016 to L&T — INABENSA JV for Rs. 847 Crores.

Design and Construction of Civil, Structures and Track Works for Railway, involving Formation in
Embankments/Cuttings, Ballast on Formation, Track Works, Bridges, Structures, Buildings,
Yards, Integration with Indian Railways existing Railway System and Testing & Commissioning
on Design-Build Lump Sum Basis for Sahnewal-Pilkhani (approximate 175 route km of single line)
Sections of Eastern Dedicated Freight Corridor, Contract Package -301. Awarded on 03.06.2016

to GIL — TPL JV for Rs. 1769.4 Crores.

Design and Construction of Civil, Structures and Track Works for Railway, involving Formation in
Embankments/Cutlings, Ballast on Formation, Track Works, Bridges, Structurés, Buildings,
Yards, Integration with Indian Railways, Existing Railway System and Testing & Commissioning
on Design-Build Lump Sum Basis for Dadri-Khurja (approximate 46 route km of double ling)
Sections of Eastern Dedicated Freight Corridor. Package no 302. Awarded to GIL — TPL JV for

Rs. 511.3 Crores.

Following contracts are likely to be finalized during the current financial year:

7.

10.

1.

12.

Project Management Consultancy Services for Pitkhani — Sahnewal Section. Likely to be

awarded by August 2016.
Project Management Consuitancy Services for Khurja - Dadri Section. Likely to be awarded by

August 2016.

Quality and Safety Auditing Consultancy Services for Khurja — Sahnewal and Khurja — Dadri
Section. Likely to be awarded by November 2016.

Project Management Consultancy Services for Khurja - Pitkhani Section, Likely to be awarded
by January 2017.

Design and Construction of Civil, Structures and Track Works for Railway, involving Formation in
Embankments/Cuttings, Ballast on Formation, Track Works, Bridges, Structures, Buildings,
Yards, Integraiion with Indian Railways, Existing Raflway System and Testing & Commissioning
on Design-Build Lump Sum Basis for Khurja — Pilkhani Section (approximate 225 route km of
single line) of Eastern Dedicated Freight Corridor. Package no 303, Likely to be awarded by
March 2017. -

Design and Construction of Track and Track related works between Durgauiti — Mughalsarai and
New Karwandiya- New Sonnagar/Chirailapathu. Likely to be awarded by December, 2016.
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13. PMC for Design and Construction of Track and System works between Durgauti — Mughalsarai
and New Karwandiya- New Sonnagar/Chirailapathu. Likely to be awarded by March 2017,

14. Design, Supply, Construction, Installation of 2X25KV Electrification, Signalling and
telecommunication and associated works including testing and commissioning for double track
Electrified Railway line on design build lump sum basis from Mughalsarai to New Sonnagar and
Chirailapathu Station {excluding New Karwandia - New Durgauti Section) — Likely to be
awarded by March, 2017,

3.3  PHYSICAL PROGRESS OF THE CONTRACTS:
3.3.1 WESTERN DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR
A. Works Contracts: JICA Funded
» WDFC Phase ~ |
1. Civil & Track Package for Rewari-Igbalgarh section (CTP+1 & 2):
« Contract executed in August 2013 at a value of approx, Rs. 6699/- crore.

« Concrete Sleeper Plant at Bhagega, has been commissioned and approximate 2,00,000
sleepers manufaciured.

» About 36.11% physical progress and 26.8% financial progress has been achieved.

« 54 % of total earthwork has been completed.

»  Work on 8 important, 71 no. major, 381 minor bridges, 2 RFOs & 147 RUBs in progress.

156 no. minor bridges completed.
« 593,33 TKm (71200MT) ENBOE1 1080HH Rails has been procured / imported from Japan.
20.4 TKm track has been linked.

»
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2. Spl. Steel Bridges across Rivers- Mahi & Sabarmati{CTP-3A(R)):
o Letter of Acceptance was issued on 26.08.2014 and work commenced on 20.11.2014.
The scope of work includes design and construction of 585 m long bridge over river Mahi

and 536 m long bridge over river Sabarmati.

¢ Soil investigation and Hydrological study has been completed for both bridges.

o Design and drawings are under ﬁna!ization..Work on sub-structure and fabrication of
super structure will commence shortly.

» The construction work has been started on seven wells of each of the bridge. About 7%

physical progress and 12% financial progress has been achieved.

3. Electrical & Mechanical Works of WDFC Phase-| (EMP-4):
Site investigation and measurement of earth resistivity works are in progress. Basic design, ORE

simulation study and finalization of transformer rating are in progress.

4. Signaling & Telecommunication Works for Rewari-Vadodara (STP-5)

Documentation & designh works are under progress.

> WDEC Phase-|i
1. Civil & Track Package for Vaitarna-Sachin section (CTP-12) & Sachin-Vadodara section
(CTP-13):
» Contract executed in August 2015 and werk commenced on 15.10.2015. The scope of work

includes design and construction of civil & track work of 186 Km long Vaitarna-Sachin &

133 Km long Sachin-Vadodara section.
e Verification of site data including Survey, Soil investigation and Hydrological study work is

in progress. The design work is also in progress.

2. Special Steel Bridges Packages (CTP-15A, CTP-15B & CTP-15C):
_ ¢ For all the three contracts Letter of Acceptance was issued on 03.06.2015.
.{ o Contracts executed in August 2015 at a value of approx..
o For CTP-15A - Rs. 518 Crore.
o For CTP-15B - Rs. 331 Crore.
o For CTP-15C - Rs. 214 Crore
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Work commenced on 15.10.2015 for all three. The scope of work includes design and
construction of special stee! bridges work of JNPT-Vadodara and Rewari-Dadri section.
Verification of site data including Soit investigation and Hydrological study work is in

progress. The design work is also in progress.

B. Consultancy Contracts: JICA Funded
1. Project Management Consultancy for WDFC Phase-l (Rewari-Vadodara):

*

PMC contract was awarded to a consortium led by Nippon Koel, Japan in February 2014,
The scope of work involves supporting DFCCIL in implementation of 920 km long WDFC
Phase-], through stages of design, construction, testing and commissioning. The role of
PMC will be that of Engineer in Design-Build Lump Sum contracts of WDFC Phase-i.
Contract was executed in March 2014 and the work is in progress in managing the
contracts of CTP-182, CTP-3(R), CTP-3 A{R), EMP-4, STP-5 & STP-5A.

2. Project Management Consultancy for WDFC Phase-ll (Dadri-Rewari and Vadodara-JNPT):

PMC contract was awarded to a consortium led by Oriental Consultant Global Company
Limited Japan on 15% February 2016.

The scope of work involves supporting DFCCIL in implementation of 557 km fong WDFC
Phase-H, through stages of design, construction, testing and commissioning. The role of
PMC will be that of Engineer in Design-Build Lump Sum contracts of WDFC Phase-Il.
Contract was executed in March 2016 and the work is in'progress in managing the
éontracts of CTP-11, CTP-12, CTP-13, CTP-14, CTP-15A, CTP-15B, CTP-15C, EMP-16,
STP-5A & STP-17.

3. Engineering Services Consultancy Contract for Phase-l Rewari-Vadodara:-Contract was

awarded to a consortium led by Nippon Koei, Japan. The scope of work includes providing

consultancy services for planning, engineering design and procurement for WDFC Phase-l. As

procurement process is still underway, completion period has presently been extended up to 30t

June 2016. The pending contract packages are:

Bids for Procurement of Rolling Stock Package (RS-7), being executed by MoR, have
been received on 30% June 2015. Financial bid opened on 06% October 2015.

4. Engineering Services Consultancy for WDFC Phase-ll, Vadodara-JNPT & Rewari-Dadri:

Contract was awarded to a consortium fed by Nippon Koei, Japan. The scope of werk includes

providing consultancy services for planning, engineering design and procurement for WDFC

Phase-Il, As the procurement process is still underway, the extension have been granted fo the
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Consultant upto 30t June 2017. At present procurement for only package left i.e. Civil and Track
package -14 in the section Rewari-Dadri is in progress
c Works Contracts: Equity Funded
1. Design and Construction of Important and Maior Bridges (54) between Vaitarna and Utran
(approx.200Kms) on Vasai-Baruch section in the states of Maharashtra and Gujarat, has been
awarded on Jump sum contract basis. {Confract Agreement No. HQ/EN/WC/Bridges/D&B/1/Soma,

dated 17-03-2009).
e The scope of work involves design and construction of 46 Major and 8 important bridges. 29

bridges are on Pile foundation and 25 bridges on Open foundation.

o The work of construction of main bridge has already been completed at 26 no. of bridges. Present
progress of work is 71%. The work was scheduled to be completed by 15.06.2015 with the revised
cost Rs. 667.81 Crore but a dispute has arisen between the parties. The award declared by
Arbitration Tribunal has been chalienged in the Hon'bie High Court of Delhi. Further action will be

taken as per the outcome of the proceedings.

D. Consultancy Contracts: Equity Funded

Project Management Consultancy for Design and Construction of Important and Major Bridges (54)
between Vairarma and Utran (approx.200Kms.): Contract Agreement
(CA No.HQ/EN/WC/Bridges/PMC/1/Span, was executed on 12-06-2009. The Currency of the Contract
has been extended upto 14.06.2016 and the work is in progress. S

3.3.2_EASTERN DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR -

A. WORKS CONTRACTS: EQUITY FUNDED (Mughalsarai-New Sonnagar / Chirailapathu Section)
1. Design and Construction of formation including Blanketing, Major Bridges, Minor Bridges,
RUBs, ROBs, from new Karwandiya to New Ganj Khwaja,. {Approximate 105 Kms) on
Mughalsarai-Sonnagar section. A o | _
e Physical work of Earthwork & Bridges befween New Karwandiya to Durgawati stations
completed. _ - |
° Earthwork in Durgawati — Ganjk’hwaja sédtion is Uhder p'rogréSS, |



Work started in Basa village: The work in village Basa district Rohtas in stretch of approx 260
m was held up since last five years due to protest of PAP s and court case. Even after the Court
Case was disposed off, the PAPs were not allowing the work fo take place. Matter was rigorously
taken up with district administration and on 08.06.16, approximately 140 Policemen including 40
ladies Police were deployed and earth work in whole stretch was completed successfully.

2. Design, procurement, Construction of Track and track related works and its testing &
commissioning from New Karwandiya (Rly. Km. 564) to Durgawati (Rly. Km. 630) approx. 66
KMs on Mughalsarai-Sonnagar Section.

e Track faid through New Track Construction(NTC) machine between Durgawati -
Sasaram Section. OHE of both the DFCCIL track was successfully charged on
06.02.2016 with 25 KV AC by taking power from Kudra TSS of R.
e  First goods train was run on down-line on 30.03.2015 and on up-line on 03.06.2016.
o Track linking between Sasaram — Karwandiya Section is under progress.
Trial run of goods train on DFC route from Durgauti to Sasaram on 30.03.2016.




ik
;
o

) - — -




3. Design and Construction of Important Bridge across river Sone (approximate length 3.06 Kms),
between Sonnagar (Rly.Km.549) and Dehri-on-Sone {Rly.Km.554): Construction is in advanced

stage. Launching of PSC girders is in progress. Overall progress is around 80% upto July’ 2016.




4, Design and Construction of Rail Flyover near Ganjkhwaja, Formation in

Embankments/Cuttings including blanketing, Bridges (Major, Minor & RUBs), between Dehri-on-
Sone & Mughaisarai: Earthwork and Bridge work in Karwandiya - Dehri-on-Sone section is in

progress.

B. CONSULTANCY CONTRACTS : EQUITY FUNDED (Mughalsarai-Sonnagar Section)

1.

Project Management Consultancy Services fo facilitate Construction of formation efc. from
Chainage 14.108 Km {Near New Karwandiya) to Chainage 119,437 Km (Near New Ganj
Khawaja) (Approx.105 Kms.): PMC work is in progress for execution of the civil work.

Project Management Consultancy for Design and Construction of Track, Signaling & Telecom
works, traction power supply, SCADA, OHE and General Electrical works from New Karwandiya
(Rly. Kms-564) to Durgawati {Rly. Km-630) approx. 66 Kms: PMC for track and system works is
in progress.

Project Management Consultancy for Design and Construction of Important Bridge across
river Sone (approximate tength 3.06 Kms} & Rail Flyover near Ganjkhwaja: PMC for above

works is under progress.

C. WORKS CONTRACTS : WORLD BANK FUNDED (Ludhiana - Mughalsarai & Khurja - Dadri)

1.

Civil, Structure & Track Works (CST) for Bhaupur-Khurja Section {(LOT-101, 102 & 103):
Tender was awarded in three packages to Ms. TATA ALDESA (JV) and contract agreements
were signed during March, 2013 for an approximate total value of Rs.3267 crore. The works are

in progress in alf the three contract packages.
o  Physical progress of about 59% and financial progress of 47% has been achieved.
o  78% of Earthwork has since been completed. 265 Km of embankment has been constructed to
half the height (H/2), 240 Km for full height (H) and 192 Km of blanket has been completed.
e Progress on Raii Flyover is 45% & on Major Bridges 62%. Out of 15 Major Bridges, on 4 Major
bridges super structures have been completed and at 9 Major bridges work has come up to the
level of sub structure.
e Progress on Minor bridges is ?0.%. 184 Nos of Minor bridges out of 243 Nos and 81 Nos of
Minor RUBs out of 152 Nos have been completed.
e Temporary depots for track linking were set up at Bhadan, Maitha and Daudkhan. New Track
laying machines {NTC) are working and 150 Track Kms of linking has been completed.
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s Design of 1in 12 canted tangential layout of turnouts has been approved by PMC, validated by
{IT/Chennai and proto- type is under approval.
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2. Civil, Structures & Track Works (CST) for Mughalsarai-New Bhaupur Section (CP 2018 202):
The Contract Packages CP-201 & CP-202 were awarded to Mfs GIL-SIL (JV} in March 2015.
Contract agreement signed in May 2015.

Geo tech Investigations have been completed.

Handing over of land to the contractor has completed 95% in CP-201 & 96% in CP-202.
Field laboratories have been set up in both the packages.

Temporary depot at Pahara and Ramwa have been established.

80% of alignment design has been completed.

Earthwork is in progress in both the packages.

Bridge design and drawings are being finalised.

Work on Minor Bridges and RUBSs is in progress.

Procurement of Sleepers has been started. 25000 sleepers have already been procured.
General Arrangement of Important Bridges on river Yamuna and Tonse have been finalised.

Detailed design in progress.

Financial progress including mobilisation advance is 12%.

e

Earthwork in Mirzapur Detour
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Compaction of Earthwork

D. CONSULTANCY CONTRACT : WORLD BANK FUNDED
1. Project Management Consultancy for EDFC-1 (Bhaupur- Khurja):

Contract has been awarded to Ms. SAI- TYPSA consortium and contract agreement was signed

during Oct-2013.
The scope of services involve implementation of CST and System contracts through the stages

of design, construction, testing and commissioning. The role of PMC will be that of Engineer
administering Design- Build Lump sum contract for EDFC-1.

The services are in progress implementing presently the civil contract awarded to Ms. TATA-

ALDESA (JV) and the System Contract.

2. Project Management Consultancy for EDFC-2 (New Bhaupur-Mugalsarai)

3

PMC Contract has been awarded to M/s Systra-Mott (JV) and contract agreement signed on

01st June 2015.

The Consultant started services on 01st July 2015.

The scope of services include superintendence of CST and System Contractor's performance
of the works on day to day basis, particularly with regard to quality of material/construction,
execution of works as per approved methodology and work plan, work site safety, compliance
to environmental mitigation plan, inspection and acceptance of work, record keeping, testing
and commissioning as per provisions of CST and System contracts.

The PMC team has been established and is closefy monitoring the Quality, Environmental

and contractual issues of the project and enforcing the stipulated provisions.
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3. QSAC Services for EDFC-1 (Bhaupur-Khurja Section):

¢ QSAC service for EDFC-1 has been awarded to M/s Mott MacDonald Ltd. and Mott
MacDonald Pvi, Ltd. (JV).

» The Consultant started service from 06.05.2014.

» The objective of this consultancy contract is to achieve independent monitoring and auditing
of the quaiity of the works and structures constructed under project and implementation of
the safety arrangements during construction.

» The QSAC has been bringing out consiraints and inefficacies of the system in achieving the

desired outcomes and contract implementation.

4, QSAC Services for EDFC-2 (Mughalsarai-New Bhaupur):
» QSAC contract has been awarded to M/s Getinsa-Payma & SNBAPL {JV) and the
contract agreement signed in November 2015,

¢ The QSAC team has been placed by the consultant in the project.

3.3.3  Operation and Business Development

The commissioning of DFC will revolutionise the freight movement scenario facilitating speedier & reliable
services, providing enough impetus for industry to grow, profligate and diversify its logistics options. The
presence of DFC will help in shifting traffic predominantly moving by road to rail and in increasing share
of raflways in the overall transportation of freight by offering integrated, efficient and cost effective logistics,
support, including warehousing sofutions to users. To achieve this, development of appropriate terminais
is a primary requisite. The terminals in addition to handling rail traffic should also provide end logistics

support to facilitate diversion of road traffic to rail,

To encourage development of Private Freight Terminals on DFC network, a Private Freight Terminal
{ PFT) policy has been issued .This policy will facilitate development of PFTs (Private Freight Terminals)
with world class logistics facilities by opening the area of terminal development with participation of the
private entities. The PFT policy of DFCCIL for connectivity is quite comprehensive covering procedures,
specific time schedules and levels of authority for approving at various stages, etc. for appropriate
guidance to customers. The Private Freight Terminals are also expected to allow multipie users fo come

together and provide rail connectivity to a group of interested logistics players.
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Steps has been taken to actively engage the attention of interested State Govt. /entities in connection with
joint development of Multi Modal Logistics Parks (MMLPs) through their land in respective.

In addition fo these the foliowing Consultancy studies has also been engaged under Technical
Assistances (TA) components of World Bank for business development , setting up track access

charges, Institutional strengthening etc.

(i) Development of Marketing and Commercial Strategies for DFCCIL and its Catchment
areas (DMCSD)

The study will be prepare further pathway for devising strategy fo attract and develop system for non-
conventional traffic. The main objective of the assignment is to develop a long term marketing and
commercial strategy and devise step wise plan including policy framework to maximize commercial vaiue
of the project and to achieve higher modal share for railways in freight traffic market. This is to be based
on, operational strategy, proposed allied infrastructure including freight terminals & logi’sti'cs parks and
induction of special purpose rolling stock for DFCCIL & IR taking into account the traffic in catchment
areas along the two corridors being built and on/through the feeder routes of Indian Railways covering
mainly : a)the demand forecast for different horizon years on DFC up to 2030 supported by secondary
data as applicable ,b) identify potential of additional freight traffic in catchment areas of DFCCIL for
increasing modal share of rail. using relevant experiences of international freight market with a view to
enhance profitability of DFCCIL, ¢} develop costing and pricing strategy for promoting modal shift of traffic
in favor of railways, d) suggest possible heavy haul DFC network including feeder routes embgdded with
existing IR network taking into account operational feasibility and associated commercial issues ) Identify
need for special purpose wagons for selected commodities and main technical parameters along with
financial justification for the same f} operational parameters and operational standards covering train
length, speed, service quality, enhanced services and improvements in infrastructure,

The Inception Report covering the detailed plan for the deliverables and the areas to be covered

has been approved. The Consultants have submitted the main subject reports.

(ii) Heavy Haul Rail Capacity Development in india (HHRCDI):

The overalf objeotive'of the Heavy Haul Research & Development Program will be fo incréase the
technical capacity of railways to implement heavy-hau freight initiatives that will improve the safety,
transport capacity, quality, competitiveness and share of india’s rail freight transport services and to

prepare concrete proposals of an effective and cost-efficient heavy-haul freight Research, and capacity
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Development Program including pfans for establishment of a world class Heavy-haul Research institute
(HHRY) in India . This will include detailed program for development and research capabiliies
identifying the major areas of the heavy haul Cost driveré viz., productivity enhahcements through
increased axle loads, reduced wagon  requirement, higher pay load to tare weight ratio, energy

saving technologies, reduced human resource requirement & desired skill enhancements,

The Consultants Inception Report and Draft report covering the various aspects of the program
and the steps for setting up HHRI and allied areas have since been approved. The draft Final

Report  has been finalized.

(i}  Consultancy Services for Non-discriminatory Access for DFCCIL (CSNDAD)

The abjectives of the study are to (i} consider options for institutional arrangement for providing non-
discriminatory access for rail freight train operations; (i} analyze international experience with non-
discriminatory access for freight train operations and suggest & practical system{s) suitable for application
in the Indian context, {iii) establish a detailed methodology for setting track access charges at start up,
and (iv) identify how the institutional arrangements for licensing, regulation of traffic, capacity aflocation
and safety, including the methodology for calculating frack access charges, would need to change to
accommedate muitiple users.

The Consultants have submitted Reports on Regulatory Framework and Non Discriminatory Access

systems based upon international best examples followed by the Draft Final Report.

{iv) Institutional Strengthening Module of DFCCIL (ISMD}

The primary objective of this module is to review the management and organizational structure, control
system, processes and procedures, HR system, MIS, and make recommendations for DFCCIL fo make it
an efficient, commercially oriented provider of infrastructure services. The module will therefore review
and recommend, capacity building, skill development, process re-enginesring and system improvement
in areas such as organization and corporale governance cof the company, including management and
organization structure, human resource planning and development, staff training/study tours, financial

management, social and environmental systems, governance systems etc.

The Inception Report covering the detailed work plan and objectives have been approved.
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3.4 Status of Land Acquisition.

The DFC alignment is passing through 9 states and 66 disiricts in the Country. On Eastern
Corridor, DFC alignment from Dankuni to Ludhiana passes through the states of West Bengal, Jharkhand,
Bihar, Uttar Pradesh, Haryana, and Punjab. The Western Corridor will fraverse the distance from Dadri in

Uttar Pradesh, via Haryana, Rajasthan, and Gujarat to JNPT in Maharashtra.

The alignment in Khurja-Pilkhani section was changed from parallel to detour at Meerut,
Muzzafarnagar and Hapur, due to heavily populated areas and structures falling in the alignment. Besides,
with increase in requirement of land in WDFC, the overall requirement of land has increased from 11539
to 11672 Hectares spread over more than 3360 Kms. This includes 9760 Hectares of Private land and the
rest being Govt. Land. On the Eastern DFC, the land acquisition is spread over a length 1318 Kms with
an area of about 4495 hectares (excluding Sonnagar-Dankuni which is spread in a route of 538 Kms
covering and an area of 1178 hectares). On Western DFC, it is spread over a length of 1504 Kms, and an
area of about 6000 hectares. Being notified as a Special Railway Project, land acquisition for the project

is governed by the Railways {Amendment) Act, 2008 (RAA 2008).

As of 31.03.2016, the progress of land acquisition is approximately 89.8% (except Sonnagar-

Dankuni section) and 85% on overall basis.

3.5 DANKUNI-SONNAGAR PPP PROJECT

It has been decided to construct Dedicated Freight Cerridor {DFC) section between Dankuni-Sonnagar
{540Km) as an Eastern-most leg of Eastern Dedicated Freight Corridor to facilitate connectivity of ports
and Industries situated in the Eastern part of the country with DFC network. Further to leverage altemative
mode of Financing, this project is planned to be executed through Public Private Partnership using Design,
Build, Finance, Maintain and Transfer (DBFMT) model. The project is being developed in in two phases
i.e., Dankuni-Gomoh section (282.2 Kms) as Phase-l and Gomoh-Sonnagar section (256.581Kms) as
Phase-ll. As such, the guidelines issued by erstwhile Planning Commission are being followed for
appointment of various Consultants like Technical, Legal, Financial Consultant & Transaction Adviser and

Concessionaire. The status of the activities undertaken for the project are summarized as under:

/7



1. Project Estimated Cost:

The Cost of Dankuni-Sannagar section has been estimated at Rs.?()_, 100 Crs.

2. Land Acquisition: The Phase wise position of Land acquisition is as under:

Description ; Land Acquisition Section
| T 70A 20E 20F
Dankuni -~ Gomoh Total Requirement 52217 Ha 52217 Ha 52217 Ha
Section {282.2 Kms) Progress Upto L 52217 Ha 492,68 Ha 349.34 Ha
Phase-] March 2016 | (100%) | (94.35%) (66.90%)
Gomoh - Sonnagar Total Requirement | 655.43Ha 65543Ha 655.43Ha
Section {256.58 Kms) Progress Upto 648,96 Ha 318.02 Ha 182.32Ha |
Phase-ll March 2016 | (95.16%) (48.42%) {23.23%)

The land acquisition so far have been smooth except at Balarambati mauza of Singur in Hoogly District,
Shaktigarh, Mankar, Andal & Kulti in Bardhaman District, West Bengal and Villages falling on Gaya
Detour in Bihar where Project Affected People {PAP) are demanding higher compensation package for
land acquisition as per New Land Acguisition Act. Despite Maoist activities in Koderma detour (57Km),
the stacking of the alignment on the ground has been finally completed. Also, the alignment in Koderma
Detour is passing through Gautam Budha wild fife sanctuary. Tofal forest land involved in Kederma
Detour is about 392 Ha. Sanctuary portion involves about 144 ha of land, Resumption of fand of sanctuary

needs approval of SWB, NWB and Supreme Courl.

3. Detailed Project Report (DPR):

The DPR of Dankuni- Gemoh section Ph-l and Gomoh- Sonnagar section - Ph-lt has been finalized.

4, The Feasibility report & Traffic Study report:
The "in-house” Feasihility report and Traffic Study for Dankuni- Gomoh section Ph-| has been prepared.

The updation of the Traffic Projection of Sonnagar -Gomoh secticn is under progress.
5. Financial Modeling:

Based on the Terms of Reference {TOR) for-FinanciaI Modeling for Dankuni- Gomoh section Ph-|

suggested by Railway Board, Preliminary Financial Modeling has been completed. In order to carry out
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Transaction Advisory services and Technical services with alternate Revenue model/ financial structuring

of the project, RFP for appointment of Financial Consultant cum Transaction Advisor for Dankuni- Gomoh

section, Ph-l has been flcated on 31.03.2016.

6. Manual of Standards and Specifications:The consultancy contract for drafting of Manual of

Standards & Specifications has been finalized.

7. Legal Consultant has been engaged for developing Concession Agreement and other documents.
8. Tender for EIA & SIA for Dankuni- Gomoh section, Ph-1 by CPM/KKK is under process.

9. Yard Plan
For Dankuni- Gomoh section (282.2Kms)- Ph-l, yard plans for ali 4 Crossing stations. namely, New

Jaugram, New Rajbandh, New Mugma & New Pradhankanta have been approved. .And out of four
Junction stations, one junction station at New Dankuni has been finalized. For Gomoh- Sonnagar section
(256.581 Kms), Ph-il, out of 6 Crossing stations, yard plans for five crossing stations namely New
Keshwari, New Hirodih, New Kastha, New Paharpur & Naw Rafigunj have been approved, In addition,

one junction station, yard of New Chiraila Puthu has been approved.

3.6  FUTURE DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDORS

Raiiway Board in the year 2011, has entrusted the work of PETS (Preliminary Engineering and Traffic
Survey) of following four future dedicated freight corridors:

1. East — West Corridor (Koikata — Mumbai) (2328km)

2. North - South Corridor {Defhi — Chennai) (2327Km)

3 East Coast Corridor (Kharagpur - Vijayawada) (1115 Km)

4 Southern Corridor (Chennai — Goa) (850Km)

The work of PETS was awarded to RITES. The work commenced during September 2011 at cost of

Rs 68.5 crore (excluding taxes).
Final Preliminary Engineering cum Traffic Study (PETS) report of following three future corridors have

been submitted to Railway Board and their details are as under;
1. East-West Corridor (Kolkata-Mumbal): The proposed alignment of 2328 km connect Paighar
to Andal/Kamarkundu and corridor passes through 4 railway zones (SER, Eastern, SECR and CR) and
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five states of India {Maharashtra, Chhatisgarh, Cdisha, Jharkhand, and West- Bengal}. The East West
Corridor will connect the poris of Haldia, Dhamra and Paradeep on the Eastern Coast with Mumbai and
NPT on the Western Coast. The route caters primarily to steel plant traffic, expert ore, thermai coal, in
addition to catering transport requirement of over a dozen cement plants. 7

2. Norfh-South Corridor (Delhi-Chennai): The proposed alighment of 2327 km connects Pirthala
to Arakkonam and corridor passes through 5 railway zones (NCR, WCR, CR, SCR and SR) and traverse
through seven states of India as; Haryana, Uttar Pradesh, Rajasthan, Madhya Pradesh, Maharashtra,
Andhra Pradesh and Tamii Nadu. The North South route does cater to heavy cross traffic of all the core
commedities carried by IR. There are iron & steel, coal, food grains, fertilizers, cement and other general
goods, including containers.

3. East Coast Corridor {Kharagpur-Vijayawada): The proposed alignment of 1115 km connects
Kharagpur to Vijyawada and passes through 3 Zonai Railways (SER, ECoR and SCR) and traverse
through three states of India i.e. West-Bengal, Odisha and Andhra Pradesh. This route connects
important ports of Haldia, Dhamra, Paradeep Vishakhapatanam Gangavaram and Kakinada. This route

wiil primarily cater heavy traffic including ceal, iron ore and steel,

PETS Survey of following Cerridor is in progress:

Southern Corridor (Chennai-Goa): The proposed alignment of Southern Corridor of 890 km connects
Renigunta to Madgaon via Hubli & Anoka and alignment passes through the four railway zones
(SWR, SCR, SR and Konkan Railway) and traverse through three States of India Andhra Pradesh,
Karnataka and Goa. This corridor connects the ports of Goa and Chennai/Ennore on the Western and
Eastern coasts of the country. Freight is predominantly iron ore and steel. The Final PETS report is
expected in the year 2016-2017.

4,1 Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel,
During the year under review, there were changes in the composition of the Board of Directors of the
Company on account of appointments and cessation, which are as follows:
4.1.1  Directors who have joined the Board during the financial year 2015-2016. - NiL.
41.2 The following Directors have joined after the closure of financial year 2015-2016.
a) In terms of Railway Board’s Order no. 2008/Infra/6/1 (Pt.1), dated 01.04.2016, the President
of India has appointed Sh. Ravi Mathur and Smt. Shakti Munshi, as part-time non official
directors on the Board of DFCCIL, w.e.f, 01.04.2016 for a period of three years or until further

orders, whichever is earlier.
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b) interms of Railway Board's order no. 2016/PL/61/4 dt, 30.06.2016, the President of India has
appointed Sh. Y.S. Malik, Additional Secretary, Niti Aayog as part time Government Director
on the Board of Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India Limited with immediate effect
tilf the holding of the post of Additional Secretary, Niti Aayog or further orders whichever is

earlier.

41.3 The following Directors cease to be hold office during the financial year 2015-2016 -
a. Vide Railway Board's letter No.2008/Infra/6/1 dated 25.04.2012, Sh. R.S. Sharma,

Independent Director completed his tenure of three years on 24.04.2015.

414  The following Director cease to hold the office after the closure of the financial year

2015-16.
a. Vide resolution no. 53.4.2 of 53 Board Mesting dated 05.02.2016, the office of Nominee

Director, Sh, Gajendra Haidea is technically vacated.
4.1.5 The following Directors are holding office as on the date of this Report.

S. No, Name of the Director Designation Date of holding
office w.e.f.
1. Sh. ALK Mital Part Time Chairman {Official) 03.02.2015
2, Sh. Adesh Sharma Managing Director 20.10.2014
3. | Sh. Anshuman Sharma Director (Project Planning} 05.04.2011
4. Sh..H.D. Gujrati Director (Operations & Business 29.1.1}_2012
Development)
5. Sh. M.K. Mittal Director ( Finance) 16.03.2013
6. Sh. D. S Rana Director (Infrastructure ) 27.10.2014
7. Sh. Girish Pillai Part time Official Director (Government 14.11.2012
Nominee-MoR)
8. Sh. Ravi Mathur independent Director 01.04.2016
9. Smt. Shak{i Munshi Independent Director 01.04.2016
10. Sh. Y.S. Malik Part-time Official {Government Nominee- - 30.06.2016
Niti Aayog)
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4,2 Number of meetings of the Board,
During the financial year 2015-2016, the Board of Directors met five times fo transact the business. The
meetings of the.Board of Directors were held on following dates:
S.Ne. | Quarter Dates

1. For the quarter ended June 2015 (08.05.2015, 08.06.2015

2 For the quarter ended September 2015 13.08.2015

3. Fer the quarter ended December 2015 27.11.2015

4 Feor the quarter ended March 2316 05.02.2016
4.3 Directors’ Responsibility statement under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013.

In terms of section 134 (3) (¢} of Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company confirms

that —
()

(b)

()

(ch

in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent 50 as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period;

the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating- The Board of Directors
annually review compliance reports of all laws applicable to the company, prepared by the
company as well as steps taken by the company fo rectify instances of non-compliances. There
is a scope to strengthen the compliance managemeant system commensurate to the size of the

Company.
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4.4 A Statement on declaration given by ihdependent directors under section (6} of

section 149.
Smt, Shakti Munshi and Sh. Ravi Mathur, Independent Directors, have submitted their declaration

pursuant to sub-section (6) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5. Auditors.
The Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) of India had appeinted M/s Baweja & Kaul, Charlered

Accountants as Statufory Auditor of the Company for the year 2015-2016 and in exercise of powers
conferred by the members, the Board of Directors have fixed their remuneration at a fee of Rs. 8,40, 000/-
(Eight Lac forty thousand only) plus service tax as per applicable rate and out of pocket expenses to be

paid extra.”

5.1 Explanations or comments by the Board on every qualification, reservation or adverse
remark or disclaimer made by the Auditor and Secretarial Auditor.

5.4(a) Statufory Auditors’ Report
The Auditors’ Report submitted by M/s Baweja & Kaul, Chartered Accountants doesn't contain

any qualification and hence no explanation or comments are required.

5.1(b) Secretarial Auditor’ Report
The Commenis ¢f the Sacretarial Auditor and Management's reply thereic are annexed to this

report as Annexure A,

5.2 Comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India.
The Office the Comptrolter & Auditor General of India has issued “NIL" comments on the accounts of the
Company for the year ended 31t March, 2016 and hence no explanation or comments are required.

6. Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided.

Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments under section 186 of Companies Act, 2013 are "Nil'

during the year under review.
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7. Particulars of Employees under Rule 5(2) Of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

During the year under review, the particulars of employees fo be disclosed under Rule 5(2) of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014 may be treated as

NIL as none of the employees and Directors/KMPs was in receipt of remuneration in excess of the fimits

prescribed therein,

8. Contracts and Arrangements with related parties.

During the year under raview, cn the hasis of the disclosure of interest by the‘Directors, there were no
contracts or arrangements entered into by the company with the related parties as referred in section
188 {1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

9. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the
company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to
which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

There are no reported material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the company

which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial

statements refate i.e 31.03.2016 and the date of the report.

10. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earning and
Outgo. -

With the series of measures taken over past 2 to 3 years, Bureau of Energy Efﬂciency,' Ministry of Power,

Government of India has awarded BEE 5 STAR rating to DECCIL Corporate Gffice Building in Nov., 2015.

DFCCIL Corporate Office Buiiding is ameng very few organizaticns in the country to have BEE 5 STAR

rating label with Air-conditioning area of more than 90%.

The Particulars required to be disclosed pursuant {o section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read

with applicable Rules of Companies (Accounts Rules, 2014) are as follows;

(A) Conservation of energy-

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

Provision of Energy Efficient LED light fittings, Occupancy Sensor and efficient monitoring & control

mechanism for operation of Air-conditioning and lightning services has been made and impiemented.

(i} The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate source of energy:
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To encourage green energy on DFCCIL network, solar plants have been planned for various installations
along the corridor and its co.rporaté building.

(i} The capital investment on energy conservation equipment.

Approx. Rs. 3.9 Lac has been spent on energy conservation measures during 2015-16.

Efforts are ‘ON’ and significant contribution toward reduction in emission CCz s possible in DFCCIL in

near fufure.

(B) Technology absorption- _
(iy the efforts made towards technology absorption; -NIL
(i) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution; - NiL |
(i) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the -
beginning of the financial year) -NIL '
(a) the details of technolegy imported; - N.A,
{b} the year of import; - N.A.
(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed; - N.A.
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorplion has not taken place, and the reasons
thereof, and |
(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development, - N.A.

{C} The Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo during the period under review are

Nil

Foreign Exchange Earning -

Foreign Exchange Qutgo - T 422.33 Crore out of which
Interest - ¥ 8.53 Crore

Tour & Travelling Expenses . ¥ 0.06 Crore

L.C Opening Charges - ¥ 0.32 Crore

Bank Charges JICA Loan - T 0.33 Crore

Consultancy - ¥ 37.57 Crore

Works - ¥ 375.52 Crore



11, A statement indicating development and implementation of a risk management policy for
the company including identification therein of elements of risk, if any, which in the opinion

of the Board may threaten the existence of the company.

The Compariy has developed the Enterprise Risk Management Framework which has been approved by
the Audit Committee and also by the World Bank. The Enterprise Risk Management Framework has been
implemented with effect from 1st December 2014. The top 20 risks each perceived at this stage during
‘Planning & Construction Phase” and “Operation Phase” have been identified and prioritized. Mitigation
Plans for these top 20 risks has also been formulated. A Risk Management structure has already been
defined, which comprise of a Risk Management Committee (RMC) consisting of Functional as well as
[ndependent Directors, a Chief Risk Management Coordinator (CRMCO) reporting o Risk Management
Committee, Heads of various departments such as Civil, S&T, IT, Administration, Electrical, Operation,
Finance etc. dnd Chief Project Managers would act as Risk & Mitigation Plan Owners {(RMPOs) and would
be responsible for risk identification, its pricritization and for framing the mitigation plan. Tobensure that
there are appropriate controls in place for the risk management activities a risk monitoring and assurance
mechanism through MiS has been provided for as a part of Enterprise Risk Management Framework to

assess the effectiveness of mitigation plan for a particular risk.

The status of Risk Management Framewaork is being regularly coordinated by the GM/Fin./RM {CRMCO)
in association with the Risk Management Coordinators (RMCOs) which is further reviewed by the Risk
Management Committes {RMC) and the Audit Committee at regular intervals. The summary of review and
Risk Management Committee meetings held till date is as under:

a. Five review meetings have been held till date at CRMCO level on 16% September 2015,
16% October 2015, on 21st January 2016, on 27" January 2016 and on 16% March 2016
respectively.

b.  Three RMC meetings have been held till date on 06 November 2015, on 16! May 2016 and on
240 May 2016 respectively.

¢.  Toenhance the ability of the Risk and Mitigation Plan Cwners (RMPOs) two half days Knowledge
Transfer Sessions were held on 09 February 2016 and 26% February 2016 and two full days
Knowledge Transfer Sessions conducted on 27% June 2016 and 28% June 2016 for the officials
reporting to RMPOs.



d. In the light of Audit Committee's directives vide minutes of the 32 Audit Committee a review of
the progress made till date was presented before the 334 Audit Committee meeting held on
184 July 2016 in the form of presentation. Audit Committee further directed to put up the status
before the Board and the same was also presented before the Board in the Board of Directors’

meeting held on 261 July 2016.

12.  The details about the policy developed and implemented by the company on corporate
social responsibility initiatives taken during the year,
A report of Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives taken during the year under review annexed &t

Annexure -B forms the part of Directors' Report.

13.  OTHER COMPLIANCES

A. Rajbhasha ( Official Language )

In DFCCIL Corporate Office, spacial emphasis is being given to ensure maximum use of Hmd| in Official

dealings. During the period from 01.04.2015 to 31.03.2016 number of activilies to promote use of Hindi

were initiated.

DFCC Official Language implementaticn Commitiee meetings organized in every quarter. A quarterly

progress report regarding use of Hindi was submitted o Railway Board for onward submission to Ministry

of Home Affairs regularly. The active participation in Town Official Language committee {Pubiic sector)
Delni meeting is being done regularly.

Rajbhasha Pakhwada was organized in DFCCIL from 01.09.2015 to 14.09.2015. Buring the Pakhwada

different competitions were arranged and the prizes were distributed to the first, second and third winners

by the Managing Director. On this occasion Managing Director, all Directors, officers were present.

Besides this Hindi workshops were organized regularly in an effort to inculcate the habit of doing more

and more work in Hindi by the officers and staff of DFCCIL. The Website of DFCCIL is updated from time

to time in Hindi. To ensure to compliance of section 3(3) of Official Language Act, all office orders, Land

acquisition and Gazette Notifications are issued Hindi-English bilingually.

To more and more use of official language in the DFCCIL, the incentives schemes of Railway Board has

been implemented. Hindi Library established in DFCCIL Corporate office. All the officers and employees

are taking full advantage of this library, Quarterly Newsletter of DFC is being published in Hindi.
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B. Right to Information Act, 2005,

1. The enactment of Right tc Information Act, 2005 is a historic event in the annals of democracy in
India. The Act mandates a legal-institutional framework for setting out the practical regime of right to
%nformatio‘n'fo'r every citizen to secure access to information under the control of Public Authorities,

in order to promote transparency and accountability in the working of every Public Authority.

DFCCIL has been able to fulfil the mandatory requirements as well as its obligations towards the citizens
in providing information sought for by them. The Public Informaticn officer in the corporate «ffice
coordinates with the APIOs in the field offices or in the corporate office for obtaining information in desired
format and within stipulated time period so that the same is sent to the applicant in time. Under the
mandatory requirements the duties and responsibilities of an Appellate Authority have been assignad to
the Group General Manager (Administration).

During the year 2015-2016, total 420 applications {including 40 Appeal cases) were received and replied
with in the stipulated time pericd. Al the replies have alsc been uploaded on DFCCIL website
{(www.dfceil.gov.in). The status of R7] replies are updated regularly on DFCCIL website.

2. Parliament Questions:

Dealing with Parliamentary matters calls for utmost accuracy, swiftness and conformation to the

prescribed norms and precedures as laid down by the nodal authorities.

An cfficer has been designated especially for dealing with all Pariiafnentary matters in coordination with
other Directorates in DFCCIL. During the year 2015-2018, fotal 31 Parliament Questions were received

and alt were replied in time.

C. MCA21E filing
In terms of Companies {Electronic Filing and Authentication of Documents) Rules, 2006 and Companies
{Filing of Documents and Forms in Extensible Business Reporting Language) Amendment Rules 2012,

the Company has filed all the statutory forms and returns electronically during the year under review.
D. Memorandum of Understanding

During the period under review, the Company has been ranked under the "Very Good” grading of MoU
for the year 2014-2015 by the Department of Public Enterprises.
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E. Vigilance.
Vigilance is an important and integral part of Management and provides important platform for impraving

performance of the organization. It inc}u_des promoting clean business environment, professional integrity,
promptness and ethical practices.

The Vigilance organization of DFCCIL is headed by a full time CVO assisted by Dy CVO, three DGMs and
three Assistant Manager against the total sanctioned post of 10. During the peticd under review, the
Vigilance gave more emphasis on preventive vigilance and system improvemaent as compared to punitive
vigilance. In order to update the vigilance officials with latest instruction and guidelines on vigilance
matters, Nine fraining programmes were arranged. To increase transparency, all the contracts and
purchases made above R. one crore are posted on the DFCCIL website every month on the proforma

stipulated by CVC.

Complaints
DFCCIL has well defined complaint handiing policy which is available on Vigilance portal of DFCCIL

website. It contains detailed procedure for scope and lodging complaints. The opening balance for the
number of complaints on 01.01. 2015 was 15. Total 20 complaints were received through CVC/Raiiway
Board and individuals during the year. Out of which 27 complaints were investigated and finalized.
Remaining 08 complaints are at varicus stages of investigation.

Recommendations after investigation on complaints,

in case involving irregularities in execution of a contract Minor penalty against two officers has been

recommended.
Preventive checks
Atotal of 20 Preventive checks were conducted during the year, Total 15 were finalized.

Surprise Checks
A total of 07 Surprise checks were conducted during the year.

Immovable property returns scrutinized
immovable property returns (IPRs) submitted by 79 officials were scrutinized during the year.

System Improvements
Based on the outcome, recommendations for system improvements were made in different spheres of

working related to Tenders and contracts, land acquisition, payment of compensation for land acquisition

& HR matters as under.



System improvements implemented

i} {(a) Additional safety measures for payments from SLAO land bank accounts must be taken up by
exploring the possibifity of making payments only through EFT/RTGS and activation of SMS
alerts of each transaction from the bank account. '

(b} Provision of obtaining bank statement through Emall on daily basis and its reconciliation on daily
basis with the cheques issued by SLAO should be adopted.

{c) Team of officers from HQ finance& one representative from field units may be formed to conduct
a thorough study of the system of land payments and make recommendation for improvements
in existing system with special emphasis on checks to detect frauds before they could be
committed,

(d} Conducted of proper monthly bank reconchiation of each land bank account and its  monitoring
at HQ level. ' '

(e} A detailed and comprehensive audit of all the land accounts should immediately be conducted,
if not done, to cover the period up to 315 March, 2014 and regular audit thereafter,

{f) Inspection of land accounts by the corporate finance of regular basis should be conducted.

i) For selection of key personnel like Track design expert, Track construction expert, Electrical
expert{OME), Electrical expert( Traction- supply), Signal construction expert, Telecom
canstruction expert etc, the minimum length of professional experience has heen prescribed as
10 years both for degree and diploma holders while it should not be equal for both . The same
may be regtified for future contracts.

i) To establish transparent procedure on investment of surplus fund.

V) There should be provisicn in Man power service providing contract that the upper age limit of
outsourced staff deployed by the Agency in DFCCIL sha¥f not exceed 65 years. Whenever any
outsourced employee attains the age of 65 years, he shall be su?tabfy replaced.

v) Police verification for background check of culsource staff should be mandatory.

Awareness Building & Participative Vigilance,

[n pursuance of directives issued by the Central Vigilance Commissicn, the Vigilance awareness week
was observed in all the offices of DFCCIL from 26.10.2015 to 31.10.2015. The theme of this year Vigilance
Awareness Week was “Preventive Vigilance as a tool of Good Governance”. To rhark this occasion,
a number of ?Gb!ic outreach programmes were organised during the week fo increase the awareness
level among all the officials of DFCCIL and other stake holders such as Pledge taking ceremony at

11.00Hrs followed by address on the vigllance malter by Sh P.5. Bawa, Chairperson
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Transparency {nternational India, One Day Symposium on Forensic Af*.couqtéqg & inve f;ga ive Audit" by
Sh. Vinod Khurana from IFAIA. An interactive conference on the subject was also or ganized in the
Corporate O:.:ce on 30.10.2015 in which Shri T.M. Bhasin, Chisf Technical Examiner of CVC was the
Guest Speakef An essay compotstton on the subject “Preventive Vigilance as a tool of Good

Governance™ was afso organized and the winners were suitably awarded.

3. Corporate Governance
[n terms of the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Guidelines on Corporate
Governance issued by Depadment of Public Enterprises, {oilowmg forms an integral part of this Board's
Report. ' .
a) A"Corporate Governance Report placed al Annexure “C” highlights the philosophy of the Company
. on the Corporate Governance, composition of Board of Directors as well as their attendance in
various meet ings, remuneration of directors efc. and other relevant disclosures. Itis supplemented
by the following compliance certificates _
i.  Certification of financial Statéments by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.
Annexure “C-1, |
il.  Adeclaration signed by the Managing Direclor affirming the compliance with the code of conduct
by the Beard Members and Senior Management Personnel duriﬁg 2015-2016 is placed at
Annexure “C-27 '
: iii.  Certificate of compﬁanée of Corporate Gox;emance oblained from practicing Company Secrefary -
is placed at Annexure “C-3." ' ‘
b)  A‘*Management Discussion and Analysis Repoﬁ" is placed at Annexure “D.”
c)A A Secrelarial Audit Report from a Company Secretary in Practice Annexure “£7,
d)  An extract of Annual Refurn in the prescribed form MGT-9 is appended fo the Board Report as

.- Annexure ‘F".
16. Significant and Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts.

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulaiors. !Couris which would impact the going —

concern status of the Company and its future operations,
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ANNEXURE -A

MANAGEMENT’S REPLY TO THE OBSERVATIONS OF THE SECRETARIAL AUDITOR.

1 S.NO.

OBSERVATIONS

MANAGEMENT COMMENTS

1.

There was no ~ Independent
Director on the Board of the

Company;

In terms Article 81 of Articles of Association of the Company- the Full
Time Directors Including Managing Director, Chairman, Government |
Nominee Directors and lndependent Directors are appomted by the

" President of India. The Company has already requested the Ministry of

Railways to appoint requisite number of Independent Directors &
Woman Birector on the Board of Company. - On 01.04.2016 two
indep_éndent Directors have been appointed by the Président of India
including one Woman Director,

Directors,

In the absence of Independent

‘Audit  Committee’,

“Nomination and Remuneration

Committee’ and 'CSR Committee’
were constituted compn'sing of all
Non-Independent Directors

In terms Article 81 of Arlicles of Association of the Company; the Fult
Time Directors including Managing Director, Chairman, Government
Nominee Directors and Independent Directors are appointed by the
President of India. The Company has already requested the Ministry of
Railways to appoint requisite number of Independent Directors &
Woman Director on the Board of Company. In the absence of the
independent Directors on the Board, the composition of Statutory
Committees was not in fine with the requ:rement of the Act.

There was no Woman Director on
the Board of the Company:

During the year under review, the Company requested the Ministry of |
Railways to appoint requisite number of independent Directors &
Woman Director on the Board of Company. On 01.04.2016 two

| Independent Directors have been appointed by the President of Indla

including one Woman Director.

Shri Gajendra Nath Haldea, the
Nominee Director didn't attended
any meeting in the financial year.

Shri Gajendra Nath Haldea, the Nominee Director didn't attended any

meeting in the financial year and the same was communicated to the |

Administrative Ministry. The Board in its meeting held on 05.05.2016
took rote of his technical vacation of the office of the Director under
section 167 of the Companies Act, 2013,
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Annexure ~B

Corporate Social Responsibility

Vision:
To meet social obligations by playing active role to improve quality of life of communities and

stakeholders.

Mission:
To remain a responsible corporate entity to all stakeholders and society at large.

As per the CSR policy, based on Companies Act and Government guidelines, funds for CSR
activities are to be allotted to at least 2% of the average net profit of the Company, made during 3

immediately preceding financial years or MOU targets.
Average net profit of the company for last three financial years was Rs 89.19 lakhs. The

prescribed CSR expenditure was (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above} — Rs. 89,18 lakhs

Based on the recommendations of CSR Commitiee in meeting held on 04.08.2015, Board of
Directors {(BOD) gave approval for CSR activities to be carried out during the year 2015-16, in its 51t
Meeting held on 13.08.2015 {ltem No §1.3.17) as per details mentioned below: -

a. Vocational training for total 1000 PAPs/BPLs named “Saksham” at four CPM units namely

Tundla, Allahabad (West), Jaipur and Mumbai by associating C!l (Confederation of Indian

industry), leading to employment/self — employment; and
b. Skill Development training for PAPs in two CPM units - Ahmedabad Unit from on Western

DFC and Ambala unit on Eastern DFC. Each unit was allotted a fund of approx. Rs 15 lakhs
for providing Skill Development Training to PAPs under CSR.
The total expenditure planned for CSR activities for 2015-16 was Rs 1.68 Crores including the

unspent Rs 3.94 fakh of the previous year 2014-15.

o As per the MOU signed with Cll, the grant provided by DFCCIL for the project was equivalent
to INR.10500 per candidate for 1000 candidates

s The total project cost for Rs 14000 per candidate is Rs 1,40,00,000 (One Crores forty lakhs
rupees only). DFCCIL confributed 75% @ Rs 10,500/- per candidate and ClI contributed

25% @ Rs 3,500/- per candidate.

- &}~



The details CSR activities undertaken during the year 2015-16 is as under: -

A. Status of Vocational Training through CIl: 1012 trainees have undergone fraining in 13
cenfres across Mumbai, Jaipur, Tundla and Allahabad regions. Summary of number of irainees at
various CPM units is as indicated below:

Unit Total trainees BPL PAP
Allahabad (West) 241 106 135
Jaipur 260 60 200
Mumbai 250 125 125
Tundla 261 205 56

Total 1012 496 516

Salient features:-
a. Courses covered included hospitality, data entry operator, retail sales, electrician, fitter,
logistics- documentation assistant, telecom efc. |
b. Training man days achieved in Vocational training - 44,242
¢. Outof total 1012 candidates who were provided employment opportunities, 715 (72%) is the
total no of students who accepted the employment offer and joined.

Course List | Location/Center Wise

-




Documentation Assistant.

— &3 ~




Of the students enrofled there were 530 students from PAP families and 509 from BPL families.

Course wise breakup of trained students

Room Attendant Electrician
14% 12%

In Store
Promoter
%,

Meet and
Greet
3%

& Electrician # Fitter
= Logistics - Documentation Assistant # Hospitality - Meet and Greet

Overalt SC, ST and Women Break-Up

Allahabad 138 10 73
Tundla 28 0 30
Jaipur 0 1 16
Mumbai 107 0 84

8 SC
ST !
% Women




Man Hours & Man Days for training

Man Days

(Student/batch into No. of days of Training)

& Altahabad
# Tundia
# Mahasrashtra

# Rajasthan

Man Hours
(Calculation = Total days present x 6 hours/day)

# Allahabad
# Tundla
# Mahasrashtra

& Rajasthan

B. Status of Skill Development Training:-

Ambala: Four batches of skill development fraining through ITls for three months have been
completed with 150 total participants at Ambala Cantt, Barara, Sarsawa. Rs 15 lakhs allocated to

the unit has been spent.




Ahmedabad:

Various trainings were organized through Project Administrator, Tribal Area Sub Plan, Patanpur for
140 beneficiaries. Besides, five batches of skill development training have been organized through

[Tls at Kalel, Sanand, Mehsana with 82 participants. 25 lakhs allocated to the unit have been spent.

Training man-days achieved in skili development training for Ambala and Ahmedabad: 21,305

Overall status as per MOU fargets is elucidated in the table below: -

As per the MOU targets for 2015-16, 30,000 man days of skill development training was to be

imparted under Corporate Social Responsibility and Sustainabie Developrent -

Evaluation Unit Weight Excellent VG Good Fair Poor
Criteria (%)

Corporate Social Responsibility and Sustainable Development

Skill Mandays |3 30000 25000 | 22000 20000 | 18000
Deveiopment

Training

Details of skill development training imparted and mandays achieved is as given beiow:

Vocational Training through Cli 44,242
Skill Development Training for PAPs

Ambala 13,500
Ahmedabad 7,805
Total Man days achieved 65,547

— Cb -




Theory Trainings

Placements







ANNEXURE - “C”

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

1. Abrief statement on Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance.

The Company believes in achieving the Company’s Goal and objectives thrbugh the highest levels
of transparency, accountability and equity in all spheres of its operations and in all its dealings. The Corporate
Governance is the application of best management practices, compliance of Laws, rules, regulation and-

adherence standard to achieve the objects of the Company.
The key value is to believe in “Speed, Sincerity and Success.” The cardinal principles such as

Accountability, Responsibility, Transparency and Fair Disclosures serve as the means for achieving this.

2. Board of Directors:

2:1 Composition of the Board of Directors: -
in terms of Article 80 of the Articles of Association of the Company, the President of India has
determined in wrifing that there shall be a totaf of 12 Directors on the Board of DFCCIL. The President of
India vide letter no. 2008/Infra/6/1 dated 04.05.2010 has approved the composition of the Board of Directors '
of DFCCIL as follows:
s Chairman Railway Board (CRB) as Part Time Chairman.
¢ Five full time Functional Directors including Managing Director,
¢  One Nominee of Ministry of Railways.
_® One Nominee of Planning Commission.
e Four Independent non-official Directors including one from fi nancza! institutions dependmg on
“requirement.

22 Strength of the Board
In terms of Article 81(1) of the Articles of Association of the Company, The President of India has the

. power to appoint Directors of the Company. On the date of the report, the total strength of the Board of
* Directors of the Company is Ten comprising of five whole-time Directors, one part time Chairman, One part-

time official Directors (nominee) from Ministry of Railways and One Nominee from Niti Aayog and two
Independent directors. Out of four sanctioned position of independent Directors, two post are still vacant.

221 Directors wha have joined the Board during the financial year 2015-2016. - NIL.
© 222 The following Directors have joined after the closure of financial year 2015-2016.

a) In terms of Railway Board's Order no. 2008/Infra/6/1 (Pt.1), dated 01.04.2016, the President of
India has appointed Sh. Ravi Mathur and Smt. Shakti Munshi, as part-time non official directors
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on the Board of DFCCIL, w.e.f. 01.04.2016 for a period of three years or until further orders,
whichever is earlier.

b} - In terms of Railway Board’s order no. 2016/PLI61/4 dt, 30.06.2018, the President of india has
appointed‘Sh. Y.S. Malik, Additional Secretéry, Niti Aayog as part fime Govermnment Director on
the Board of Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India Limited with immediate effect fill the
holding of the post of Additional Secretary, Niti Aayog or further orders whichever is earlier.

223 The following Directors cease to be hold office during the financial year 2015-2016 -
a. Vide Railway Board's letter No.2008/Infra/6/1 dated 25.04.2012, Sh, R.S. Sharma, Independent
Director completed his tenure of three years on 24.04.2015,

224  The following Director cease to hold the office after the closure of the financial year
2015-16. | |
a. Vide resolution no, 53.4.2 of 53 Board Meetsng dated 05.02.2016, the office of Nominee
Director, Sh. Gajendra Haldea is technically vacated.

The composition of the Board of Directors, on the date of report, along with Directorships held by them and
their attendance in the Board meetings held during the financial year 2015-2016 and the last Annual Generat
Meeting is tabled below:

NOTES:

1.

w

The Directorships being held by the Directors are within the limits faid down under section 165 of the
Companies Act, 2013. For reckoning the limit of public companies in which a person can be appointed as
director, directorship in private companies that are either holding or subsidiary. Company of a public
company is included.

The term “part-time official” irdicates the Government Nominee Directors on the Board of DFCCiL who
are the officials of the Ministry of Railways and Planning Commission (Now NITI Aayog).

The term “part time non official” means the Independent Directors. .

For the purpose of considering the limit of the Committees on which a D[rector can serve , a pubilc fimited
companies, whether listed or not, is included. :

For the purpose of reckoning the limit for chairmanship/membership, the Audit Committee, Corporate
Soclal Responsibility Committee and Norination and Remuneration Committee is taken.

The word “NA" denotes “Not Applicable” as either the concerned Directors have joined the Board after the
financial year 2015-16.
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S Category of | Name of | Number of | Total No. of | No. of | No. of | Last
.No. Directors/ Date | Directorship | Committee Board Board AGM ‘
of Appointment | s/ - Memberships/ | Mestings meetings | atfended
Chairmanshi | chairmanships | held during | attended
ps in public | In public { 2015-2016 | (during
companies | companies (during their
including including their respective
DFCCIL and | DFCCIL  and | respective | tenures)
excluding excluding tenures)
privéte private | |
Companies 1 | companies (*4
&5 &5)
{1} Chairman (Part-time official)
11 Sh. A K Mital |1 Nil 5 5 Yes
" | Rallway Board | (DIN- 07124281)
' {Held office from
03.02.2015
() Whole-time Director
1 | Sh. Adesh | 1 NG 5 § TVes
Sharma '
(DIN- 07022393}
A (Held office from
- 20.10.2014). .
12 Sh. Anshuman | 1 i 5 5 Ves
Sharma { DIN- Audit
'03500815)(Held Committee
ofice  from Member
05.04.2011) 7
3 Sh. H.D. Gujrati | 1 2- Nomination | § 5 Yes
(Operations & | (DIN- 01393052) |- | and |




Business

{Held office from Remuneration
Development} | 29.11.2012) Committee &
Corporate
Social
Responsibility
Committee
4 Director Sh. MK, Mittal, 2 Yes
{Finance) (DIN- 02889021) Audit
(held office from Committee
16092019 ominan
(FN) and
Remuneration
Committee -
{Member)

§ - Director Sh. D.S. Rana 1- Yes
(Infrastructure gg;ﬁdg'g;zgig Corporate
) 27.10.2014) Soctal

Responsibility
Committee
{Member)

(11} Director {Part-time official) .

1. | Advisor Sh. Girish Pillai 3 Yes (as a
(Infrastructure) | ( DIN- | Audit Sharehol
{Railway Board 0'0382088) Committee/ der)

{held office from Member
14.11.2012) Corporate ~ -
Social

Responsibility
Committes/Me

mber

T -




Nomination
and
Remuneration
Committee/
Chairman
2 Advisor  of | Sh.. Gajendra | 1 Nil 5 0 . 1 No
Deputy Haldea
Chairman, {DIN-02197994}
Planning (held office from
| Commission | 02.05.2008)
Additional Sh. Y.S.Malik NA NA NA NA NA
Secretary Niti | (DIN-00000555) -
Aayog (held office from
3006.2016)
(V) Independent Directors ( Part Time non official )
1 [ Part Time non- | Mrs.  Shakti | NA NA NA NA NA
official official | Munshi ({ held
office - from
101.04.2016)
{ DIN-00483546) .
2| Part Time non- | Sh. Ravi Mathur | NA TNA. NA NA NA
| official (DIN-02427086)
(held office from
01.04.2016)

During the financial year 2015-2016, the Board of Directors met five fimes to transact the busingss. The

meetings of the Board of Directors of DFCCIL were held on following dates as mentioned below;

S.No. Quarter | Dates
1. For the quarter ended June 2014 08.05.2015 and 08.06.2015
2. For the quarter ended September 2014 1:3.08‘2015




3. For the quarter ended Decembier 2014 27.11.2015
4. For the quarter ended March 2015 05.02.2016

Brief Resume of Directors appointed as on the date of report:

i)

i)

Mrs. Shakti Munshi, Independent Director/DFCCIL, w.e.f. 01.04.2016

Mrs. Shakti Munshi assumed the Charge of independent director of the company w.e.f. 01.04.2016. A post
graduate {M.Sc.} in Biology from Mumbai University she also holds a Masters in Business Management
from Jamnalal Bajaj Institute of Management (Mumbai University).

She has extensive experience in the New Business Development and New Product Launches in major

Indian Companies like Reliance Industries & Garware Polyester. She has worked as Divisional Head of-

Refail Business in Suftanate of Oman and as a Consultant fo Norwegian Fisheries Export Promotion
Councit (Norway). She is sensitive to various environmental and social issues and IS involved in
encouraging the usage of Solar energy

Currently she is Director at C-Tech Labs Pvt Ltd, a SINE incubator company of Indian Institute of
Technology Powai (Mumbai -India) and Partner Alpha Medicus India LLP.

Sh. Ravi Mathur, independent Director/DFCCIL, w.e.f. 01.04.2016 7

Sh, Ravi Mathur assumed the charge of independent director of the company w.e.f. 01.04.2016.He has
served in the Indian Administrative Service for 35 years, He hgs .B.Tech. and M.Tech. degrees in Chemical
Engineering from Indian Institute of Technology, Kanpur and M.Sc. (Finance) from University of
Strathclyde, Glasgow, U.K. He retired as Secrefary to the Govemmént of India in the Debartment of

Disinvestment, Ministry of Finance in Sep tember 2014. He has served in varsc}us capacities in the Central

and State Governments. He also has vast experience in the Higher and Techmca! Education Sectors in
the Country having served in the Ministry of Human Resource Development, Government of India for five
years. He has also served on the vaeming Bodies of a number of technical Institutions in the Country,
including 1iT's and HIM's.

Sh. Y.S. Malik, Additiona! Secretary, Niti Aayog as part time Government Director /[DFCCIL, w.e.f.
30.06.2016. '
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3. Audit Committee
Composition of the Audit Committee

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors was originally constituted on 14.03.2008 and was reconstituted
from time fo time. The composition of the Audit Committee as on the date of report is as follows:

S.No. Member Position Date of holding the membership of
- the Committee
1 Sh. Ravi Mathur - - Chairman 13.05.2016
Independent Director
2 Sh.M.K. Mittal Member 13.06.2014
Director (Finance)
3 Mrs. Shakti Munshi Member 13.05.2016

Indapendent Director

The Terms of Reference of the Committee as prescnbed by the Board in its meeting held on
14.03,2008.

R

To discuss with the auditors periodically about intefnal control systems.

To discuss and decide about the scope of audif including the observations of auditors.
To review the half-yearly and annual financial statements before submission to the Board and ensure
compliance of internal control systems.

To investigate into any matter relating to financial management mclud:ng the audit report.

Any other matter brought to the notice of the Audit Committee by Board of Directors.
To appoint an intemal Auditor and to set the terms and conditions of appaintment, including the
remuneration payable (added vide item no. 4 of 12t Board Meeting held on 16.6.2009)

Additional Terms of Reference for the Audit Committes re-constituted on 256.,06,2010;
The role of the Audit Committee shall include the following:

1.

o

Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of ifs financial information
to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient, and credible. :
Recommending to the Board the fixation of audit fees. -
Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.
Reviewing, with the management the annual financial statements befom submzssnon to the Board
for approval.
Matters required fo be included in the D{rectors Responsibility Statement fo be included in the
Board's report in terms of clause (2AA) of section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956;

. Changeé, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

¢ Major -accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by

management;

« Signilican! adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

«  Compliance with legal requirements relating to financial statements;

¢ Disclosure of dny related party transactions; and

« Qualifications in the draft audit report.

.



10.

11.

12.

_shareholders (in case of non -payment of declared dividends) and creditors.
13

14,
15.

16,

17.

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission fo the Board
for approval.

Reviewing, with the management, performance of internal auditors and adequacy of the internal
control systems. | |
Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the intemal audit
department, staffing, and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure, |
coverage and frequency of internal audit. .

Discussion with internal auditors andfor éuditors any significant findings and follow up there on.
Reviewing the findings of any intemnal investigations by the interal auditors/auditors/agencies into
matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a
material nature and-reporting the ﬁiatter to the Board. |

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit
as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of (':o_ncem.‘ '

Tolook into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,

To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism,

To review the follow up action on the audit observations of the C&AG audit.

To review the follow up action taken on the recommendaiions of Committee on Public Undertakings
(COPU) of the Parfiament,

Provide an open avenue of communication between the independent auditor, Internal auditor and '
the Board of Directors ., ' |
Review all refated party transactions in the company, For this purpose, the Audit Committee may
designate a member who shall b responsible for reviewing related party fransactions.

Explanation: The term “related party transactions” shall have the same meaning as contained in the
Accounting Standard 18, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india.

18.

'-1_9.

Review with the independent auditor the co-ordination of audit efforts to assure completeness of
coverage, reduction of redundant efforts, and the effective use of all audit resources.
Consider and review the following with the independent auditor and the management:
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- The adequacy of internal controls including computerized information system confrols and security,
and ,
- Related findings and recommendations of the independent auditor and internal auditor, together with
the management responses.
2. Consider and review the following with the management, internal auditor and the independent auditor:
- Significant findings during the year, including the status of previous audit recommendations
- Any difficulties encountered during audit work including agly restrictions on the sc-ope of activities or
access to required information. '
21. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit.
Additional Terms of Reference for the Audit Committee re-constituted on 07.08.2012 and are .
being retained: |
Chapter-4 of the DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance deals with the Audit Committee. Clause 4.5
of the chapter requires that the following information shall be reviewed by the Audit 'Commiﬁeé.
a) Management'diécussion and anéiysié of financial condition and results of ope'rations.'
b)  Statementof re!atedr party trahsactions submitted by Management. |
¢) Management letters/letters of internal control weakness issued by the statutOfy auditors.
Internal audit reports relating to internat control weaknegss,
The appointment and removal of the Chief Internal Auditor shall be placed before the Audit
_Committee; and ' |
f)  Certification/dectaration of financial statements by the Chief Executive/Chief Finance Officer,
Additional Terms of Reference for the Audit Committee in terms of section 177(4 of the
Companies Act, 2013
1. Every Audit Committee shall act in accordance with the terms of reference specified in writ ing by the
Board which shall, infer alia, include,~—
(i}  the recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of
the company; | -
(iy  view and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process; o 4
(i)  examination of the financial statement and the auditors' report thereon;
(iv)  approval or any subsegueht modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

(v) scrutiny of intér-c‘:orporate loans and ini!estments;
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vi)  valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

(

{vii) evaluation of intemat financial controls and risk management systems;

{viif) monitdring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

(ix) | to oversee the vigil mechanism and to provide for adequate safeguards against victimization of
employees and directors who avail of the Audit Committee and in case of repeated frivolous
complaints by a director or an-employee, the Audit Committee may take suitable action against

the concerned director or employee including reprimand. -

Powers of the Audit Committee:
Commensurate with its role, the Audit Committee should be invested by the Board of Directors with
sufficient powers, which should include the following:

{) Toinvestigate any activity within its terms of reference.

(i) Toseekinformation on and from any employee. |

(i) Tooblain outside legal or other professional advice, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors.

(iv) To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.

(V) To protect whistle blowers. | o

(vi) The Audit Committee may call for the comments of the auditors about intemal control systems, the
scope of audit, i‘nciuding the observations of the auditors and review of financial statement before
their submission to the Board and may also discuss any related issues with the internal and
statutory auditors and the management of the‘company.

(vil) All powers, as may be required, for executihg the Scope of the Audit Committee.

(viii) The Audit Committee shall have authority to investigate into any matter in relfation to the items .
specified in sub-section (4} of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, or réferred'{o it by the
Board and for this purpose shall have power to obtéin professional advice from external sources.
and have ful écoé§é to information contained in the records of the company.

During the year under review, the Committee met 5 times on the following dates: 08.05.2015, 08.06.2015,

12.08.2015, 18.11.2015 and 26.02.2016. The aftendance of the members of the Committee during
2015-16 is produced below: '
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Meetings held**

Member Position Meetings attended
-

Sh. Girish Piflai, Nominee Director Chairman 5 5

Sh. M.K. Mittal, Dir/Finance Member 5 5

Sh. Anshuman Sharma, DirfProject & | Member 5 5

Planning

** “Meetings held™- denotes the number of meetings held during the tenure of the member of the

Committee.
- ™ “Meetings attended™- denotes the number of meetings attended by the member during the tenure of

the member of the Committee.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The ‘HR' and ‘Remuneration Committee’ of the Board were dissolved and a new Committee called
‘Nomination and Remuneration Committee’ was constituted vide resolution no. 51.3.7 of 51st Board .
Meeting held on 13.08.2015. :

Terms of Reference:

a) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall identify persons who may be appointed in
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their
appointment and removal.

Note: With reference to clause 2(1.5} of “The Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior

- Management Personne! duly approved by the Board, the term “Senior Management Personnel’ shall

mean personnel of the Company who are members of its core management team excluding Board of

Directors and would comprise all members of management one below the whole-time Directors

including all functional heads.

b} ' The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall recommend to the Board a policy, refating to
the remuneration of the Senior Management and other employees,
¢) The nomination and Remuneration Committee shall, while formulatmg the policy under sub-

sect:on (3) ensure that-
i. Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance

. benchmarks; and -
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it. Remuneration to senior management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay -
reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the -
company and its goals:

The composition of the nomination and Remuneration Committee as on the" date of report is as
follows:

S. No.| Member Position ' Date  of . holding the
) | membership  of the
| Committee
1 Sh, Girish Piftai, Govemment Nominee | Chairman 13.08.2015
Director (MoR)
2 Smt. Shakii Munshi, Independent Director | Member 13.05.2016
3 Sh. Ravi Mathur, Independent Director Member 13.05.2016
4 Sh. H.D. Gujrati, Director(OP&BD) Special invitee | 13.08.2015

- During the financial year 2015-16, the no. of Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings are ‘Nil'.

A. Remuneration of Directors

DFCCIL, being a wholly ownad Government Company under Companies Act, 2013, the whole-time Directors
of the Company are appointed by the President of india through Ministry of Railways. The functional Directors
SO appointed; draw remuneration under Industrial Deamess Allowance (IDA) pattern of pay scale pre-
determined by the Government and as per the terms and conditions issued by the Government of India from
time to time. The IDA Pay scales (2007) and basket of aﬂowaﬁces has been implemented in DFCCIL.

The part-time official (Government Nominee) Directors on the Board of the Company do not draw any
remuneration from the Company. They draw remuhératioh from the Government only as Govemfner_;t
officials. The parttime non-official Directors (Independent) draws the sitting fee for the Board/Sub-Committee
meetings éttended during the financial year.



The detall of remuneration paid to the whole time Directors for the year 2015-2016 is detailed below.

S. | Name of Director Salary & | Other Benefits | Performance | Total (In %)
No : Allowances Perks 17(2) linked '
{in%) (In%) incentives
1 {In%)

1 Sh. Adesh Sharma | 26,16,800.00 1,563,381.00 27,70,181.00
{Managing Director) :

2 Sh. H. D Gujrati { 24,35,102.00 1 1,53,462.00 25,88,564.00
Director {Opn & BD)

3 | ShDS Rana | 24,17,512.00 82,512.00 25,10,024.00
Director { Infra) ‘

4 | Sh Anshuman Sharmg 25,61,335.00 4,14,899.00 29,76,234.00
Director {PP) | ol

3 | MK Mittal Director | 27,33,436.00 | 1,66,880.00 1 29,00,316.00
{Finance)
Total 1,37,45,319.00

A. Detail of sitting fee paid to the Part-time non official Directors for the financial year 2015-16: NIL,

As all the posts of Part-ime non official Directors rémained vacant during financial year 2015-16.

Corporate Social Responéibi!ity Committee

The Corporate Social Responsibifity Committee of the *Board" was originally constituted on 13.06.2014
and was reconstituted from time to time. The composition.of the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee as on the date of report is as follows:
S.No. | Member _ Position Date  of hoiding the
' - _membership of the
Committee
1 4 Sh. H.D. Gujrati, DirfOP&BD Convener/Member | 13.06.2014
2 Sh. Ravi Mathur, Independent Director | Chaiman 13.06.2016
3 Sh. D.S. Rana, Dirfinfra Member 08.05.2015
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Terms of Reference: ,
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee shall, -

(a) Formulate and recommiend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the
activities to be undertaken by the company as speciﬁed in Schedule VII;

(b} Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in clause (a); and

{c)Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the company from time fo time.

During the financial year 2015-16, the Corporate Social Responsibility met once on 04.08.2015 .

5. General Meetings.

Annuai General Meetingé.

The Annual General meetings of the Company are held at New Delhi, where the registered office of the
Company is situated, The details of such meetings held during the last three years are as under;

AGM Year Venue Date Time

7t 2012-2013 Committee Room, 2™ Floor, Rail | 27.09.2013 12:30 Hrs
Bhawan, Raisina Road, New Delhi-
110001 _

gih 2013-2014 Committee Room, 2 Foor, Rail | 19.08.2014 16:00 Hrs,
Bhawan, Raisina Road, New Delhi-
110001

oth 2014-2015 Board Room, &% Floor, Pragati Maidan, 2'1.09.2015 12:30 Hrs.

: Metro  Station- Building Complex,

New Delhi-110001.

Detail of special resolutions passed in the p'ré\ii-ous three AGMs.

AGM Year Subject Matter of the Spécia! Resolution | Date 'ﬁme
74 2012-2013 | Nil - 27.09.2013 12:30 Hrs.
gth | 2013-2014 | Section 180(1) (c} —Power fo borrow money | 19.09.2014 16:00
in excess of the prescribed limit. Hrs.
9th 2014-2015 | Nil A 21.09.2015 12:30 Hrs.




Disclosures -

There has not been a reported materially significant related party transaction except the remuneration
to key management personne! as disclosed vide note 29 to the financial statements.

All the terms of expenditure debited in the books of accounts of DECCIL are for the purpose of project
execution entrusted to DECCIL and are related to project execufion.

There are no personal expenses incurred for the Board of Directors.

The Net administrative expenses as a percentage of fotal éxpenses have decreased from 4.14% in
2014-16 to 3.81 % in 2015-16. | '

. Corporate Communication

Corporate communication plays a major role in creating and maintaining the business awareness and
branding of any organization. Bi-directional communication strategy while disseminating updated

information, creates brand value and reputation for the organization among target audience.

As a public sector carporate entity Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India Ltd. (DFCCIL),
engaged in planning, construction and operation of iconic infrastructure, gives proper importance to
Corporate Communication and this c!eady reflects in its efforts for a good communication. The role of
communication is not }ust'speaking and telling people about you, but also listening to people’s voices
and tht_is fulfilling their communication needs. Year 2015-16 witnessed many new innovative efforts made '

by DFCCIL in estab!?shing and further strengthening communication.

With the Increasing popularity of social media érqund the globe, communication strategy of any
organization is not complete without using popular social network platforms like- Facebook, twitter and
YouTube efc. Aéknowledging the fact, DFCCIL created its official Facebook page for real time and two-
way communication. Another popular platform Twitter is also being utilized by DFCCIL for sharing
updates, pholtographs and other important information, To upload latest videos taken from various
construction sites, an official YouTube channel was started by DFCCIL during the year 2015-16,

DFCCIL regularly interacts with print and electronic medié to provide them complete picture and updated
status of the project. in-2015-'__16 DFCCIL organized two Press Conferences on 07.08.2015 and
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16.02.2016 respeciively, which got an overwhelming response and coverage from media. Apart from
this, DFCCIL issues Press Releases along with photographs on important occasions and events, These
Press Release are uploaded on fo DFCCIL's website and generated link is posted on DFCCIL's
Facebook page and Twitter handle for wider reach. DFCCIL has also starfed issuing important Press
Releases in Hindi too. During the period over 25 Press Releases were issued in English and Hindi,

Apart from regular Press Conferences, Corporate Communication Department also organizes one-to-
one interaction of Managing Director of DFCCIL with Press Correspondents of leading news
organizations. This includes Interviews published in Business Line, Financial Express, Business
Standard & Mait Today. In addition, A media team of Zee Business Channel visited to the construction
sites of Wesférn DFC to capture different construction activities. Zee Business produced a story of a
duration of 15 minutes, which was broadcasted on 22.02.2016 and repeated in multiple bulletins on
23.02.2016 on Zee Business and other Zee Media channels.

8. Audit Qualifications

The Auditors' Report submitted by M/s Baweja & Kaul, Chartered Accountants doesn’t contain any
quatification and hence no explanation or comments are required,

9. Training of Board Members
DFCCILV is concerned to take various training programs for its officers/ employees. The detail of training
~ ofofficers and Employees is being dealt separately in Corporate Govemancé Report. In orderto acquaint
the Board Members, presently the Corporation has adopted the ?practice of furnishing a set of documents/
booklets to a Director on his/ her joining the Board. The set of documents provided includes Annual
Repotts for the last financial years, Memorandum and Articles of Association, a bopy of the Memorandum

of Understanding along with MOU targets and its' achievements. This provides the basic information
about the Company to the incumbent. Besides. that Board Members and Senior Management personnel
are nominated for various training programs, from time to time.

10. CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

The certificate duly signed by the Chief Executive Officer and CFO as presented to Board of Directors,
is annexed as Annexure “C-1" fo the report,
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11. Code of Business Conduct & Ethics
The Company has in place the Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Level Management duly
épproved by the Board of Directors. At 36% meeting of the Board, the Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics for Board members and Senior Management which came into force w.e.f, 1st day of April 2009
was replaced by the Model Code of Conduct as suggested in DPE guidelines. In terms of Code of
Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel, the annual affirmation that Code of Conduct
has been complied with has been obtained from all the functional Board members and Senior
Management Personnel. The Code of Conduct is also posted on the Website of the Company
wwaw.dfecil.gov.in. A declaration signed by the Managing Director affirming the compliance with the code
of conduct by the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel during 2015-16 is placed af

“Annexure “C.2",

12. Whistle Blower Policy

DFCCIL believes in conduct of its affairs with highest standards of professionalism, honesty and integrity
and is committed to ensufe ethical behaviour by all its employess. The company therefore believes in
creating a culture where it should be safe for all employees fo raise concerns about any unethical
practices or misconduct. The Company had formulated a Whistie Blower Policy. This policy provides a
framework to enable employees wishing fo raise a concern aboul serious irregularities within the
Compény without fear of victimisation and covers protected disclosures by employees of DFCCIL

including those on deputation.

13.'Compliance Certificate . .
The Certificate from a practicing Company Secretary regarding comptiance of the conditions of Corporate
Govemance in accordance with the guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises forms the part

of the Annual Report. {Annexure “C-3").
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Dedicated Freight Corrdor Corporation of {ndia Ltd.

3 SRR

MANAGING DIRECTOR AND DIRECTOR FINANCE CERTIFICATION.

We have reviewed-the Financial Staterﬁents-including the Bé]anc_é sheet, Statement of Profit &
-Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement for the financial year 2015-16 and to the best of our knowledge
and belef : ‘ ) .

(iy - These statements do-not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material factor. .
. contain statements that might be misleading; ’

(if) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in .

- compliance With’existing'accognﬁng standards, applicable laws and regulations:

(iiiy There ar.c, to the best of our krowledge and belief, no fransactions énte_red into by the
'Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company’s code
of conduct; ) : ..

(ivy We accept resporisibility for'es_t‘a'blishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
o repbrtin_g and-that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the
company pertaining to financial reporting. We have disclosed to the Auditors’and the Audit
N ‘ Committee deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls of which we are -
i " aware and the steps we have takép or’proposed io take to rectify these deficiencies;.

(v)  We have indicated to Auditors and the Audit Committee changes in Accounting. Policies
during the .}feai",_and_ that the same have been disclosed -in theiNotes to the Finantial. .
Statements;-aijd ' ’ : T ) ’

e (vi) - There was no instance. of fraud- nor th_erc'has been involvement of the Management or an
e © etmployee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial
- reporting, of which we are aware, - ' ‘ T

%M - - - Adesh Sharma
~ Dircctor Finance . .. . .- Managing Director

Place: New Delhi
DPated: ’

Regd. Off :'5* ‘Floor, Pragati Maidan Metro Station Building Cornplex, New Delhi ~ 110001 .
FIN- Ug0232DL 2006501155068, Tel.: +91-11-23454700, Fax: +91-11-23454701, Venone dfceil gov.in
e H ' 3 . . . . .
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Declafaiion by Managing Director regarding comp!iéhce with the Code of Business and Elhics Conduct by

“Board members and Senior Management during F.Y 2015-16.

I; Adesh Sharma, Managing Director, Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporalion of India Limiled, dg -
hereby declare Ihal alfthe funclional Board Members and the Senior Management Pefsonnel have affirmed _
compliance of the Code of Business and Ethics Conduct during 2015-16.

-/)Q.‘ y '
o | A
Place: New Delhi - _ - - - (AdeshSharma) -
Dale: £ -5 -20l6 . o ‘ o Managing Director
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Balifa Sharma And Associates
Compeairy Secretaries

TR

ARV

Address : Flat Wo. 211 pocket A /3, -
Sector-7, Rolini, New Deliii,
Pin Code -110085
Mobile : 9811387946
E-wail Id: Galifaslharme@amailcom

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPO RATE GOVERNANCE

To,
The Members of :
Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India Fimited
5* Floor, Pragag Maidas Merro Statien
. Building Complex, Delhi-§ 10001
L CIN: U60232DL2006GOY155068

REG: COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE WITH REFERENCE TO COMPLIANCE OF
CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE UNDER GUIDELINES ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR CENTRAL PUBLIC SECTOR ENTERPRISES
2010, : ' . _

1. This- Certificate i= in asccordance with cosmpliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by
DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED, {Hercinafter
referced to as “Company™ ) far the Financial Year ended on 31 March, 2016 as stiputated in
Guideles. on Cosporate Geveraance foc Central Public Sector Enterprses tssued by Department of

; Public Enterprise (DPI3, Gavernment af India,
2. The Comphance of ‘condittons of Corporate- Governance is the responsibility of amanagement. Qur

examination was kmited e procedures and implementation thereal, adopied by the Company to epsuze
the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance, 1t is neither an audit nor an‘expression of
e . - . . . R
- opteion on the financial statements of the Campany. . | :
3. We have obtained all the wifomation and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of certificadon and have been provided with such records, documents,
certifications etc., as had been required by vs. :
4. We cerrify that w respecr of the atbresaid nancial vear 31 Macch2016, the company has complied with

various provisions of the Guidelines in its Caocporate Governance Repor except:

a) Clause No. 3.1 relating 1o Composition of Boad of Direcrors-Independent Directors.
’ A ) \ . - .

5. We hereby,state that sach compliance is neither an assurance as to the [utuce viability of the Company
nor the efficiency or effectivencss wiily which the management has conducted the affaics of the

Company. . _ _ A &-‘r'\
i )

Place: New Delhi _ - Sig:-muuc: (¥ !¢3
Date: 08.08.2016 ' ) Balika Sharma & Associagn

N

Company Secccta:il’%
FCS No.: 4816 & %
CPNo:3222

Service Trx No. : ASTIRS 9564 15T 091 Menbersiip Ko, 4316, C @ Ho. 5222






ANNEXURE -“D”
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Industry Structure and Developments

Infrastructure sector is a key driver for the Indian economy. The sector is highly responsible for
propeliing India's overall development and enjoys intense focus from Government for initiating
policies that would ensure time-bound creation of world class infrastructure in the country. This

sector includes deve[bping road infrastructure, railway infrastructure and port connecfivity etc.

Rail fransportation is the backbone of our country's fransportation infrastructure, In his speech, The
Hon'ble Railway Minister mentioned that conventional thinking on freight policies to win back

Railways share in the transportation sector needs to be changed.

Given the emphasis on rapid expansion of freight business, it is essential to build mbr'er dedicated
freight corridors for increased traffic with consequent benefits for the economy and enVironme_nt.

To fulfil the objectiveé, DFCCIL, a “Special Purpose Vehicle” is aimed to _undedaké planning and
development, construction, maintenance and operation of Dedicated Freight lines, It was proposed
fo take up the following freight corridors: North-South connecting Delhi to Chennai, East-West.
connecting Kharagpur to Mumbai & East Coast connecting Kharagpur to Vijayawada. Itis proposed
to put these three projects on high priority fo ensure structuring, award and implementation in a time-

bound manner through innovative financing mechanisms including PPP.

In line with internationat best practices, we rely on technological solutions for project management
and monitoring. Latest drone and Geo Spatial based satellite technology is used for remotely

reviewing the physical progress across major projects.

" The Vision and the Mission of the Company is as follows:

- VISION _ , _ .
. To create a partnership with IR for retaining and expanding the market share of rait through efficient

and reliable service with customer focus.
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MISSION

As the dedicated agency to make the vision into feality, DFCCIL’s mission is
1) To build a corridor with appropriate technology that enables Indian Railways to regam its
market share of freight transport by creating additional capacaty and guaranteemg efficient,
reliable, safe and cheaper options for mobility fo its customers.
2} Tosupportthe Government's initiafives towards ecological sustainability by encouraging users
to adopt Railways as the most environment friendly mode for their transport requirements.

Capital Expenditure on Project Execution

As on 31st March, 2016, the Cumulative expenditure on Project Execution is ¥ 10,292.89 Crore
which includes Fixed Assets T 16.36 Crore, Capital Work in progress ¥ 5,777.16 Crore, Assets under
Development ¥ 9.0 Crore and Capital advances ¥ 4,488.47 Crore. The gross expenditure during
the year 2015-16 on project execution Is T4,162.97 Crore which includes fangible assets
¥ 3.13 Crore, intangible assets T 0.99 Crore, assets under development % 0.59 Crore; Capital
Advances ¥ 1,653.20 Crore and Capital Work i in Progress % 2,505.06 Crore,

Strengths
Land Acquisition in the project continues to be its hallmark of strength. Al concerted efforts are made
to expedite the acqu;sstzon of remaining land. In order to address the issue of cost sharing of ROB
works on level crossings falling in DFC aisgnment regular follow up at the Apex level was done
| including conducting meetings with Chief Secretaries of States and flagging Issues on PMG/Pragati
Portal. This resulted in consent of cost sharing of ROBs in Maharashtra (19 no.), Gu;arat (68 no.),
Rajasthan (25), Jharkhand (15 no.), 65 ROBs in U.P & 12 ROBs in Bihar. Consent for ali @ ROBs
have been received from Punjah on DFC fi tnancing (deferred payment by State) and for 9 ROB in
Haryana consent is under active consideration on simitar fines. With this phys:cal works have staried
for ROB Construcilon irwiting and finalizing tenders.

The Cabinet Committee on Economic Affairs in its-meeting held on 24.06.2015, appro-ved the
Revised cost estimate (RCE) of Rs. 81,459 crore for the Eastern and the Western Dedicated Freight
Corridor projects comprising of construction cost of Rs. 73,392 crore (Eastern DFC ~ Rs. 26,674
crore and Western DFC-Rs. 46,718 crore) and the acquisition costof Rs. 8,067 crore. This excludes
the construction cost of 538 kms Sonnagar-Dankuni section of Eastern DFC to be implemented
through PPP route.



First Goods train (53 BOXNL, Tonnage 5265 T, and Commodity- Clinker) was run on down DFC track
from Durgauti to Sasaram (56 km) on30.03.2016 and up frack on 03.06.2016. Engine rolling of
section was already done on 30.06.2015 after completion of Track & OHE Work.

Trials of monitoh‘ng the progress of work through Drone has been conducted ih 42 kms in WDFC &
56 kms in EDFC. .

CRISIL has reafiirmed the “CCR AAA (pronounced Corporate Credit Rating Triple A} rating fo
DFCCIL '

) rAgreement'has been signed with PGCIL for construction of associated  transmission network for

supply to 12 Traction sub stations of EDFC. This will facilitate availing economical traction power

supply to DFC.

. Weakness -

Schedule of the implementing agencies has been affected due fo the fime involved in the obtaining
of stafutory clearances for the procurement of construction material under the various Rules.
Continuous follow up with the respective Authorities is being maintained to expedite the matter. Delay
in obtaining various statutory clearance by the contractor and his subconfractors could lead to risk
of detay in the project. '

DFC requires 11672 hectares of Land spread over 3360 Kms for both Corridor. On the Eastern

" Corridor, DFC alignment passes through the States of West Bengal, Jharkhand, Bihar, Uttar

Pradesh, Haryana, and Punjab. The Western Corridar passes through the State of Uttar Pradesh;
Haryana, Rajasthan, Gujarat, and Maharashtra. The Acquisition of Land, being the subject matter of
the concerned States, Is a biggest challenge faced by the Company. The Land is to be acquired in
terms of various guidelines issued by State Governments/Zonal Railways, Central Government,
provision of NRRP 2007 and requirement of funding agéncies with respect to environmental and
social considerations and expectations of project affected parﬁes.‘Wéth the introduction of “the Right
to Fair Compensation and Tranépa{ency in Land Acquisiion, Rehabllitation & Resetllement Act,

2013 folowed by the Amendment Ordinance, the provisions of the new- act with regard- to

compensation & R&R are applicable to all acquisition being undertaken by DFCC from 01.01.2015.
A new Entitlement Matrix has been issued by Railway Board as per the provisions of the new Act

and has come into force from 01.01.2015.
Opportunity

Implementation of green field DFC project in environment friendly manner encountering reality in the

field is an opportunity to replicate the same elsewhere in future DFC project.
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DEC project will bring about a drastic rise in rail fransport capacily, efficient technology leading to
faster movement within guaranteed transt fime, and operational efficiency, contributing to national
economy both directly and indiréctiy. Even during the construction phase, this project is a major
boost for the national economy and various Industries. Infrastructure sector is pinning its hope on
successful énd timely execution of the project. The network is expected o provide long awaited total
logistics solution to trade utilizing energy efficient rail transportation leading to development of
various main Industries and ancillaries. The project will help in developing Industrial hubs ie.
DMICDC on Western Corridor, Special Primary Economic Region (SPER) on Eastern Corridor,
development of Industrial Corridor from Amritsar-Dankuni along the Eastern Corridor. It wil also
result in decongestion of major highways. Most importantly, DFCCIL has a great opportunity to build
world class infrastructure that will have the capability of bringing about a paradigm shift in the
transportation sector in India. & o

The DFC will be a game changer in transport logistics, Speedier, Scheddled services is expected to
bring down logistics cost significantly. -Development of logistics terminals along DFC will provide
much awaited end logistic solutions to the Industry. It will help in creating emp[oymen't not only on
regional basis but on national level. The CSR policy of the company is focused towards upgrading
the skills of the PAPs by providing the training.

Threats _

Delay in consent and subsequent sanction of cost sharing of all RoB's by the State Government's
falling in the DFC alignment i.e Bihar, Uttar Pradesh, Punjéb and Haryana threats the fimely
execution of the RoB's. The disbursement of the compensation in the process of acquiring the
remaining land becomes complex with the introduction of new Land Acquisition Act. Besides, the
transition from the provisions of one Act to another itself entalls a lot of explanations/ clarifications
which causes further delay. The Multi Stage clearances from funding agencies somefimes results
in delay in the procurement process. In the Western DFC, the Company is facing Limited patticipation
of Japanese Contractors leading ﬁo delay ih processes, Besides, a number of Court cases and
surging arbitration cases as well appéar to be a significant threat if not tackled in a systémaﬁc
manner. To deal with the surging trend of arbitration cases concemed chief Secretaries are
continuously being advised to pass necessary instructions dows the fine to expedite finalization of
these cases. For Court cases, alt necessary steps are being taken for their early finalization.

tn order to ensure delivery of the project on time, coordinated efforts are required among all the stake
haolders and the parties involved in the projects i.e. Ministry of Railways, Niti Aayog, Ministry of
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Finance, State Governments, Japan International Co-operation Agency, World Bank - and each must
perform its obligations in time to ensure that DFCs get constructed in time and within the estimated

completion cost,

Strafegies
Land Acquisition in the project shall continue to be a challenge but at the same time hallmark of

strength of the organization, and fo further enhance the acquired capabilities of the organization
leamt over a period of time through triafs & tribulations, the Company has adopted and pursued the
simple strategy of ensuring compliance with Right fo Fair Compensation & Transparengy in land
acquisition Rehabilitation & Resettiement Act, 2015. DFC addresses needs and cancems of the
Project Affected Persons (PAPs) by emphasizing their participation and by extending .necessary
support to themin Resettlement and Rehabilitation process. For redressat of grievances related with
Rehabilitation and Resettlement Plan an Ombudsman has already been appointed.. Arbitrators have
been appointed in each District to look into the grievances pertalning to compensation for land and
structure refated issues. District Level Grievance Redressal Committee have also: been formed in
EDFC-1, EDFC-2 & EDFC-3 and provisions for redressal of grievances at Fie[d as well as Project
level have been mcluded in the published RRP for WDFC also.

Outiook :

The Company is looking forward to create a state of art world class infrastructure that will have the
capability of bringing about a paradigm shift in the transportation sector in India. The Company is
committed to ensure the quality as well as safety in the implementation of the project. In this regard,
steps are taken to give adequate training to field staff to acquaint them with best infernational

construction practices.

Road Ahead '

| DFCCIL is committed to its motto of ‘888~ ‘Smcenty, Speed and Success whsch would lead to

fulfillment of Orgamzaﬁon s stsxon Visfon and Objectives.

Risks and Concerns

The Company has developed the Enterprise Risk Management Framework which has been
approved by the Audit Commitiee and also by the World Bank. The Enterprise Risk Management
Framework has been implemented with effect from 1st December 2014. The top 20 risks each
perceived at this stage.ddring “Planning & Construction Phase” and “Operation Phase” have been
identified and prioﬁtizéd. Mitigation Plans for these top 20 risks has also been formulated. A Risk
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Management structure has already been defined , which comprise of a Risk Management Committee
(RMC) consisting of Functional as well as-Independent Directors, a Chief Risk Management
Coordinator {CRMCO) reporting to Risk Manag'ement Committee, Heads of various departments
such as Civil, S&T, IT, Administration, Electrical, Operation, Finance etc. and Chief Project Managers
would act as Risk & Mitigation Plan Owners (RMPOs)} and would be responsible for risk identification,
its prioritization and for framing the mitigation plan. To ensure that there are appropriate controls in
piace for the risk management activities a risk monitoring and assurance mechanism through MiS
has been provided for as a part of Enterprise Risk Management Framework to assess the
effectiveness of mitigation plan for a particular risk.

- The status of Risk Management Framework is being regularly coordinated by the GMiFin/RM

(CRMCOQ) in assaciation with the Risk Management Coordinators (RMCOs) which is further reviewed |

by the Risk Management Committee (RMC) and the Audit Committee at regular intervals. it was also
presented before the Board in the Board of Direclors” meeting held on 26% July 2016.

The Top Five risk identified as on 30t June 2016, in Construction Phase are as under;

a) Inadequate management of procurement of goods/ services/ works (issues related to
Procurement), .

) Possible increase in scope of work of confractors.

} Delayed construction of corridors. _

d) Delay/difficulty in construction of RUBS/ROBSs (issues pertaining to construction of RUBS/ROBS).
) RRP benefit distribution.

internal Control Systems
In any organisation, intemal control being an integral process, efiected by an enfity’s Management
and personnel is designed to address risks and to provide reaspnable assurance that In pursuit of

entity's mission, the general objectives of executing the operations more orderly, ethically, :

economically, eificiently and effectively is achieved and the resources are safeguarded againstloss, -

misuse and damage.

The company has internal systems and processes in place, which ensures the execution of operation
more orderly, ethically, economically, efficiently, and | effectively, which is adequate and
commensurate with the size of the Company. However, Internal Control being the ongoing process,
the Management Is committed towards its continuous improvement. In order to ensure that, all the
required internal control systems and processes are in plaée and are operating effectively and fo
assess the shortcomings in the existing Infernal control systems and procedures, steps that have to
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be taken fo strengthen the infernal systems and processes, Audit Committee has approved to
conduct a study on the adequacy of Internal Control systems in the Company. In order to maintain
the independence in the study of Infernal Control Systems the work of “study on the adequacy of
Intemal Controf systems in DFCCIL" was entrusted to an outsourced Consultancy Firm. The Firm
has subnmitted its repart and the same is under review.The Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors also reviews the reporis of the internal Auditor, comments of the Statutory Auditor and the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India. The Management reviews the findings and
recommendatibns‘ of the auditors, takes corrective actions whetever necessary, and monitors the

implementation of the recommendations.

Statutory Auditor of the Company vide Annexure “C” to the Endeper{dent Audizér’s Report on the
Internal Financial Control in” compliannce of Clause (i). of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 have commented that the company has in all material respect an adequate

internal financial control sytems over financial reporting and such internal f pancial coratrois over |

f nanua! reporting were operating effectively as at 31St March, 2016

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS . _

During the year under review, the Industrial refation remained peaceful and harmonious. DFCCIL
commemorated its 10t foundation day on 28.10.15 in Air Force Auditerium, Subroto Park, New Delhi.
The event was celebrated with great fanfare and enthusiasm by officers and staff of organization
besides senior Officers from Railway Board, Executives of World Bank, JICA, Members of the Stake
Holders and Representatives from Media. International Day of Yoga was observed on 21.06.2015
as per Common Yoga Protocol 2015 issued by Ministry of Aayush under the supervision of Yoga
Instructors. The World Environment Day-was observed on 05.06.15. All the officers and staff fook
oath to protect our environment. The Managing Director, Shri Adesh Sharma along with other _
Directors of DFCCIL plantéd saplings in DFCCIL premises in observance of the World Environment -
Day. The Anti-Terorism Day was observed on 21.05. 2015. Al the Officsrs and staff took pledge
to stand against the Acts of Terrorism. Sadbhawan'a Diwas was observed on 20.08.2015. National
ihtegraiion pledge was administered on 19.11.15 {o all the officers and staff of the Company.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND DEVELOPHENT .

DFCCIL is in the process of implementing SAP-ERP System. The Project aims at the cenfralized
implementation of a software soluion integrating Financial Management, Human Resource
Management, Project Management, Enterprise'Asset Management, Land Acquisition Information
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o Management, Geographical Information Management, Portal and Document Management System. -
The system would expedte decision making, ensure befier planning and co-ordination between different '
functions, better Data Management, effective reporting, Knowledge Management, etc. Time lost in
accessing information wili be reduced.

Astate of the art Data center has been setup at DFCOL oorpo'rate Office. This Data Centre has been connected
with alt the 14 CPM locations by using MPLS (Mutﬁ-Prbtacol Label Switching) based WAN (wide area
network) and CPM Sub-Offices are connegted through VPN,

Toimprove Network avaliahilty and access speed redundant MPLS connectivity between Corporate Office Data
Centre and CPM Offices Is under implementation. DFCCIL is considering shifing Data Center to a spacious
focafion anng'with its capacity augmentation. Also Disaster Recovery Data Center proposal hias been initiated.
DFCCIL Is now undergoing the final stage of SAP implementation. Almost alf the wotk is being done in the SAP at
Corporate Office. ln CPM Offices all Modules are being.used except for PMS Module which is in the process of
being implemented. SAP-ERP System will bo fully impiementedfn DFCCIL during the Financial Year 2016-17.
Operafonal Acceptance phase is under process, Partial Acceptance has already been issued for four
Modules i.e. Land Acquisition Information System Module, Geographical Information System Module,
Portal and Document Management System. Operational Acceptance testing of Human Resource
Management System Module has been completed by HR Department and they are working regularly
through SAP. Finance Module is also under advanced stage of Testing & Development and all the
payments (except Major Contracts) are being made through SAP. All accepted applications are now
online. ' |

All postings and transfers orders are being generated through SAP. Payroll of the employees are being
processed through SAP. Income Tax statement / Form 16s are being generated through SAP.

Almost all DFCCIL employess have been provided SAP License with ESS (Employee Self Service) rights. A
employees are applying for leave online through Portal Module, which Is sanctioned and accounted for
in SAP. Employee’s claims including claims for Mobile / Landline, Leave encashment, Brief Case and
Lease Accommodation efc. are processed online through Portal Medule. Each employee s fi !mg
Property Retumn onfine in SAP. - _

The Project Contractors and Project Management Co:nsultants are alsa accessing the SAP-ERP
System through VPN for ontine submission of bils. |

Since SAP implementation is a dynarmic process, any futdre requirements will be taken care with the help
of users.

Environment Protection and Conservation

Envsronmenta!?y proactive approach of DFCCIL is reflected from the imtsatlves taken with DFC
alignments being $o selected that land acquxsmon, forest Jand diversion and impact to environment
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is minimum possible, where it can't be avoided. Environment Assessment (EA) studies have been
conducted for Eastern and Western Freight Corridor to meet the World Bank & JICA safeguard
policies,

Required Statutory Clearances under Taj Trapezium Zone, Sanjay Gandhi National Park, Aravalli
Eco-sensitive zone, Coastal Regulation Zone Nofification & Forest Diversion have been obtained.
During the year 2015-16, Environmental Assessment (EA) Report including Environmental
Management Plan (EMP) of Khurja-Pilkhani sections of EDFC have been prepared and approved
from World Basik. The draft final Cumulative Impact Assessment (CIA) of EDFC has been prepared -
incorporating comments of DFCCH. and World Bank. Final CIA will be submitted to World Bank for
approval after conducting workshops and incorporating comments in draft final report. The EA of
Eastern & Western Corridors and draft CIA reports have been upioaded on DFGCIL website for wide
publicity. '

The implementing agencies have prepared thelr own site specific SHE Plan based on DFCCILs SHE
Manual and Environmental Management Plan (EMP).The contractor for Lot 201 & 202 has applied
for ISO-14001 EMS & OHSAS 18000 certification for its construction activities in all Lots of

EDFC-2. Regular monitoring of SHE & EMP zmp!ementatfon are carried out by PMC and SESMRC.

Site Safety committee meetings are held. Al regu!atory compliances are also being ensured through

the implementing agencies.

2. Social Safeguards Measures ,

As per section 20-O of the Railway (Amendment) Act, 2008, the ‘National Rehabilitation and
Resettiement Policy, 2007’ was fo be adopted. The Ministry of Railways had Issued Entitiement
Matrix (EM) which covered category wise various entitlements to be given to Project Affected
Persons (PAPs) based on the relevant provisions of NRRP-2007. With the passage of “the Right to
Falr Compensation and Transparency In Land Acquisition, Rehabifitation & Resettiement Act, 2013
(RFCT-LARR) followed Ey the Amendment Ordinance, the provisions of the new act with regard to
compensation & R&R are applicable to all acquisition being undertaken by DECC from 01.01.2015.

-A new Entitlement Matrix has been issued by Raitway Board as per the provisions of the new Act

and has come into force from 01.01.2015. The same has been made available on DFCCIL. web site,
all the CPM office, and at Pub{lc places in affected villages for the public information. Disbursement
of T407 Crores against resettiement and rehabilitation has also been completed. -

Due care has been taken o avoid or minimize land acquisition and involuntary resetflement impacts
by exploring all viable alteratives and to ensure adequate rehabilitation package and expeditious
implementation of rehabilifation process. DFC has a well formulated Resetiement Policy Framework
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(RPF)! to take appropriate resetflement and rehabilitation measures for persons / household
adversely affected due to implementation of DFC project. |
Social impact Assessment (SIA} studies have been conducted for EDFC & WDFC to meet the World
Bank & JICA Sacial safeguard policies. During the year 2015-2016, Resetilement Action Plan (RAP)
of EDFC Phase-| of APL-3 (Dadri~ Khurja 46 km) and Phase-Il of APL-3 (Khurja — Pilkhani, 220.710
km.) have also been finalized in accordance with the provisions of the new Land Acquisition Act,
2013, and uploaded on DFCC's website for public information. |
' NGOs were appointed for implementation of RAP, preparation of Micro Plan and assist in resolution
. of various grievances of PAPs. Two NGOs have submitted its completion report. Mfs SPS (Study
Point Samiti NGO) has submitted its Completion Report in connection with implementation of RAP
on Slice- 203 (Fatehpur — New Bhaupur) Section and M/s CRADLE (Consultants for Rural Area
- Development Linked Economy) has submitted its Completion Report for Slice ~ 302 (Khurja ~ Dadri)
Section.

Further, Externat indépendent Agency for monitoring & review of Social & Environmental Safeguards
for EDFC-1 and EDFC-2 are also appointed. The agency fole is to monitor & review the progress of
land acquisition and R&R, implementation of RAP & EMP and provide suggestions for improving the
séme. The Social & Environmental Safeguards monitoring & review Consultant (SESMRC)
appointed for EDFC-1 and EDFC-2 has been confinuously moéiioring the implementation plan of the”
RRP and EMP and has helped DFCCIL in providing the project personnel ensure a quality and safe
work environment. Expression of inferest (EOQI) for engaging SESMRC for Phase-l of APL-3
(Sahnewal ~ Pllkhani, 175 km. and Dadri — Khurja 46 km) total 221 kms and Phase-l[ of APL-3
(Knurja - Pilkhani, 220.710 km.) has been invited; - |

Needs and concerns of the Project Affected Persons (FAPS) are addressed by emphasizing their
participation and by extending necessary supporf to them in the R&R pro'cess..:The Grievance
Redressal Mechanism provides for addressing legitimate concems / problemé of affected individuals
and groups who may consider themselves deprived of reseftlement or rehabilitation benefits as
avallable under the Resettiement Policy Framework designed for the in‘ipiementation of DFC project.
For grievance redressal, an Ombudsman has been appointed. Grievance Redressal Committee
(GRC) has been constituted for both Khurja-Bhaupur & Bhaupur-Mughalsarai sections at Project
level and district level. The Committee constituted at project level is posted at DFCCIL website.

! Resettlement Policy Framework (RFP) has been revised on 25t May 2015 in line with new
RTFCLARR Act, 2013,
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Besides Arbitrators have also been appointed in each district to look into the grievances pertaining

to compensation of land.

* Human Resource Development and Industrial relations. .

Mission and Values.

The HR department sérves the interests of the organization by supporting, deveiobing, and
protecting its most valuable resource - Peaple. #t is committed to providing quality services in an
environment of continuous change; to achieving business results through development of world class
HR core competencies by promoting innovation through confinuous leaming and employee
empowerment; and by building a collaborative organization characterized by challenging and
supportive work environment that offers oppoftunities for both employee and organizational growth
and at the same time being guided by ethical and professional standards.

Manpower Mobilization

For successful functioning of our organization, péaéement .of fight ménpower at the right ptaée at th-e
right time is of paramount importance. Taking into consideration the fong term requirements of the
organization, manpower has beeh inducted from open market through direct recruitment and
immediate absorption besides permanent absorption of eligible deputationists. During the year 2015-
2016, 67 candidates joined DFCCHL through open market recruitment, In addition to above, 11 posts
were filled from amongst serving Government/PSU employees through absorption. All the
candidates have been provided the prescribed initial/induction fraining.

With respect fo the needs of DFCCIL, Department of Public Enterprise has periodically granted
exemption to DFCCHL for immediate absorplion rule. The present exemplion is valid il 29.12 2015
with permission fo induct 200 gazetted officers and 200 non ~ gazetted employees on deputation
terms. The proposal is under consideration with DPE for exemption beyond 29.12.2015. The normal
deputation tenure in DFCCIL for Railway employees is 5 years, as approved by Railway Board in
2012. During the year, 58 employees have joined on deputation basis and deputation extension of

28 officers have been issued by HR.

With new induction, total strength Increases to 758 employees, out of which 467 are

permanent.
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Promotion

Promotion policy in DFCCIL aims to take care of career advancement consistent with merit, suitability

and performance while providing for adequate promotional avenues and to provide outstanding
human resources support and service with appro;ﬁriate skills ahd apfitudes so as to have effective
leadership, professional expertise and quality consultation. The promotion policy -is transparent and
focuses on advancing employees based on their skill and performance. Normally residency period
of 4 years Is required in one grade for promotion from executive to ED level, During the year, 22
employees, who became eligible have been promoted to next higher grade as per the above
promotion policy.

Policy Initiatives

Number of HR policy initiatives have been taken such as introduction of Staff Welfare, Group
Insurance scheme for regular employees, amendment in medical rules, Financial assistance in case
of death of an employes, Contract appointments, 'APARS, amendment of policy of

Permanent/immediate/deputation, amendment in recruitment rules in deputation tenure, revision of

remuneration of retired -employees', creation'of posts of secretarial cadre, introduction of £-2 scale,
tules for reimbursement towards uniform, perks and alfowances below E-0 level etc,, besides
Updation/ modification in existing human resource policies.

TRAINING:

TeCﬁnicai trainings have been planned for pfofessﬁonal up gradation of staff and officers of DFCCIL.
Based on the Training need analysis done by HR invoiving Chief Project Managers (Field Officers)
and GGM/GMs of Corporate Office, a detailed Training Pfan was prepared which was also approved
by World Bank. 422 employees have undergone training for 739 man days.

Major Trainings Organized: - | L L
A, Strategic Management - Indian School of Business (lSB)«Baséd on pre-diagnostic done

through ISB of expectations from the training program of the officers of DFCCIL, involving

sendor level officers and Directors a tailor-made fraining plan was organized for 35 senior
level officers.
B. Project Management ~ Management Development Institute (MDI, Gurgaon) - 6 officers
from DFCCHL. participated in the {raining on Project Management held at MDI, Gurgaon.
The program covered areas such as project fife cycle risk analysis of projects, project cost

estimation, project management information systems, use of project management software

99




C
D.
E.

like Microsoft Project, project mon.itoring' time and cost overrun evaluation, contracting for
projects - Project cost control Quisourcing/JVs in projects.
Communication & Perception Management — indian School of Business (ISB).
Training on Overview of Companles Act.
Induction Training for Direct Recruits.

e For fresh recruits Induction and specialized technical trainings were organized af various

Railway Training Institutes like: IRISET, IRICEN, ETC/Ghaziabad, ZRTUdaipur, IRIEEN

» For officers taken on immediate absorption basis, induction and specialized technical

F.

~ trainings were organized at NAIR ,.ZRTlMuzaffarpur.

Trainings Abroad:

» One DFCCIL official participated in the case studies and internationa experience on port -

hinterland connectivity, modem logistics and port centered economic regeneration to the
ports of Rotterdam and Duis_burg; 7

Two batches from DFCCIL (10 participants including MD & Directors) have undergone
Counterpart Training Programme for the Technical Assistance Projecf on Freight.
Transportation of Dedicated Freight Corridor in India in Japan organized through JICA. Third
batch comprising of 8 parhcxpants is expected fo undergo similar training in Aug - Sep 2016.

G. Other Important Trainings organized for DFCCIL officials:

L]

Trainings on : Effective Leadership — IMI, Delhi, Leadership. Development for Women
Executives — SCOPE, Project and Contract Management -ASCl, Hyderabad, Land
Acquisition, Resefifement, Rehabilitation - RECTLARR Act 2013 - ASCL, Hyderabad,
Training pragram on Social impact Assessment - ASCI, Hyderabad, Mitigation & Respanse
to Fire Hazards - organized by Centre for Disaster Management and Training, Risk
Management Framewark — Emst and Young, Advanced Course in Project Management,
[National Froductivity Council of India, NPC, Advance tax, TDS and Tax Planning ~ICWAL,
Service Tax Issues, proposed GST - ICWAL, Internatlonal Trade Finance CRIS!L Corporate
Taxation-ICWA!, Reservation in Services - NAHRD,HR Audit ~ NAHRD, Loglstlcs and
Supply Chain Management MDI Gurgaon,_ Training on RT! Act -NAHRD, Condition based

~ online monitoring of Electric assets -SCOPE, Environment and Social Respansibility in

Project Financing CSE.

Corporate Social Responsibility
A report of Corporate Social Responsibility inttiatives-taken during the year under review is
annexed at Annexure ~B of the Directors Report.
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0. MR-3
SECRETAR(AL/AUDIT REPORT .
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAK ENDED 31 March 2016

nies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 6f the

[Pursuant o section 204(1) of the ‘
fes | ] eration Personnel) Rules, 201 4] -

Companies (Appointment and

To,

The Members, .- L
Dedicated Freight.Corridor Corpor:
5™ Floor, Pragati Maidan Mefro Stati
New Delhi-110001. T

dia Limited.
tlding Complex,

{ the compliance .of applicable stafutory
rporate practices by Dedicated Freight
d  (hereinafter called the Company).
finer that provided us a reasonable basis

We have conducted the secretarial :
provisions and the adherence to goi

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
for evaluating the corporate condug
opinion thereon. .

Based on our verification of the Cp‘nﬁpany‘s books, papers, minutes bdoks';

~eforms and returns filed and other récords maintained by the company and also
~ the information provided by the Comipany, .its officers, agents and authorized

representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby repoit that in

~ our opinion, the company has, during "I{ié‘fai_adi{ period covering the financial year

ended on 31% March, 2016 com
hereunder and also that the C
compliance-mechanism in place to
reporting made hereinafter:”

d with the statutory - provisions listed
/ has proper Board-processes and
ent,.in the manner and subject to the

hutes books, eforms and returns filed
d Freight Cotridor Corporation of India.
31% March, 2016 according to the

We have examined the books, "pia'_'
and other records maintained by

provisions of; -

(i) ~The Companies Act, 2013 ({f ) and the rufes made there under:
tions) Act, 1999 and the rules made

(i) _' The Securities Contrac;{ :
C he shares of Company are not listed

thereunder is not applics
with any of the Stock Ex

il Lines,
Dathi-54

.,_,é’iéiutdl’yptsmpliances and expressing my

—— s






AKHIL ROHATGI AKHIL ROHATGI & COMI’ANY
M.Com. L.L.B.F.C.S. Company Secretaries

(V)

(V)

(viy

' Exchange Board of 1nd|a
* the-shares of Company’ a_r

21, Shamnath Macg, Civil mes,
Delhi — 110054,

Phone 1 011-23926304, 9810690633
Email : rohatgi_co_sedy@yahoo.co.in

The Foreign Exchange Map:; rement Act, 1999 and the rules and
regulations made thereund ‘not applicable, There were no Foreign
Direct [avestment, Oveiseds: Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings durmg ihe pertod under review,

“the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
s the shares of Company are not
tHory mentioned under the said Act.

The Depositories Act, 19&6-
thereunder are not appl
registered with any of the de

é‘.'prescrib ed under the. Securities and
92 (‘'SEBI Act') are not applicable as
isted with any of the Stock Exchanges.

The Regulations and Gun

Other appl:cabie Laws u‘ nd Guidelines as mentidned -here-in-
below: - ' : -
a. DPE guidelines on Corpo.ate Governaﬂ ca for Central Public Sector
Enterprises issued by the  ‘Department of Public Enterprises’,
Ministry of Heavy Industiies and Public Enterprises, Govarnment of
india.
The Ancient Monuments and Archaeoclogical Sites and Remains
(Amendment and Validation) Act 2010 .
Micro Smal! and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006
Forest (Conservation) Act, 1980
The Railways (Amendmeni) Act 2008
Wildlife Protection Act 1972
The Wetlands (Conserv f And Management) Rules 2010
Coastal Regulation Zone At 2011 ;
Relevant Provisions' And NRRP 2007 - ~ : ‘ ‘
The Building -And Othe '!bnstruciioh;.Wdrkers (Regulation Of
Employmert And Cond Of Service) Act, 1996 "
Building and Other C ioh Workers Welfare Cess Act 1996
Sexual Harassmentof) n at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 20;
. Right to [nformation Act
Shops and Establish
Environmentai laws a
Labour Laws as Appli

o
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[
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'We have also -examined compuan

‘were recorded as part of the minutes

AFKHIL ROHATGI AFKHIL ROHATGI & COMPANY.,
MLom. L.L.B.F.CS. _ . Compaaqy Secretaries
. 21, Shamnath Marg, Civil Lines,
©-Dethi-= 110054,
Plione : $11-23926504, 9810690633
Email : rohatgi_co_secy@yahoo.co.in

ith the applicable clauses of the
Secretarial Standards issued by ‘th ute of Company Secretaries of lndta

with. effect 1% July 2015:

During the period under review,
clarifications given to us and repi
Company "has complied with the’
Guidelines, etc. mentioned aboveﬁex

'fhéf":‘Cpmpany as per explanations and
ftions made by the Management, the
sions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,

there was no Independent [ n thé_.Board of the Company; .
2. in the absence of Independent

and. Remuneration Commi
. comprising of all Non-indep
3. there was no Woman Directo
4. "Shri Gajendra Nath Haide
© meeling in the financial ye
Administrative Ministry. The Ba
note of his technical vacatit
167 of the Companies Act, 2'01__-

—

rectors and

Board of the Company:

ominee Director didn't altended any
he same was communicated to the
in its meeting held on 05.05.2016 took
ie office of the Director under. section

We further report that the Board is. not -duly const:tuted with proper balance of

Executive Direclors, Non Executive Drrectors and Iindependent Directors as there
was no Independent Director on the Board of Company. Sh. R. S. Sharma,
Independent Director ceased to hold office w.e.f 29.04.2015 on completion of his

tenure and thereafter no [ndependent: Dsrector was appointed on the Board of the
Company.

- Adequate notice was given to all dtreoiors to schedule the Board Meettngs'

Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent alleast seven days in advance.

Fudhe,r, a syslem exists for sedl
clarifications on the agenda items
participation af the-meeting.

nd obtaining further information and
efore the meeting and for meaningful

Majorlty decision has been carrie'd“'

We further report that there ar
company commensurate with the s
and ensure comphance with apphoa‘

— /-03_

-‘CSR Committee’ were constituted R






AKHIL ROHATGI
M.Com, LL.B. F.CS.

We further report that during the peti

and allotted 108,70
1087,00,00,000 to th

Date: 19" August, 2016
- Place: New Delhi~

AKHIL ROHATGI & COMPANY.

Company Secretzries
21, Shamnatl Marg, Civil
Delhi — 110054,

Lines,

Phone : 011-23926504, 9810690633

od-Uunder réview the Comp
000 Equity Shares: of Rs. 1000/- each 1
e Ministry of Réii\}‘\'_réys, Government of India.

Akhit

-Fér AKRil Rohatgi & Cg

Practicing Company Secr
FCS No.: 1600
CP No: 2317

Email : rohatgi_co_secy@yalioo.co.in

any has issued
ggregating, Rs.

Rohatgi.

(

Deifise

S
7LeohagN
21 e

,
ANAMN Marn VO I
Civi! Lines, ™} #






" Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporat -

AKHIL ROHATGI - . AKHIL ROHATGY & COMPANY.
M.Com. L.LB.F.CS. ) Company Secretaries
. - 21, Shamnath Marg, Civil Lines, .
"~ Delhi —110054, -
Phone : 011-23926504, 9810690633
Email : rohatgi_co_secy@yaheo.co.in

Date: 19" August, 2016

To
The Members

‘of India Limited,
5™ Floor, Pragali Maidan Metro Statlo_ Blillding Cormplex,

New Delhi-110001

Our repo:t of even date is to be'réaﬂf Q’With this letter.
the résponsibility of the management
lity is to express an opini'on on these
{ .
¢es and processes as wefle appropriate
out the correctness of the contents of
‘the secretarial records. Thé ition was done on test basis fo ensure
that correct facts are reflected in"the secretarial records. We helieve that
the processes and practices, we foliow provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.
3. We have nol verified the correc{ness and appropriateness of financial
records and Books of Accounts’ of the Company
4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation
about the compliance of laws rufﬂs and regulatlons and happening .of the -
. events elc.
. 5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporata and other applicable iaw _
rules,. reguiations, standards s - the responstbtltty of management. Our
- examination was limited (o the_venf ication of procedures on test basis.
6. The Secrelfardal Audit Report 5 :neither an assurance as Ado the future
' viability of the company nor of. 'é‘efﬁcacy or effectiveness with whtch the
management has conducted ﬁalrs of the company. .

1. Maintenance of secretarial re
of the Company. Our resgo
secretarial records based kel

2. We have followed the audit

_to -obtain reasonable assurz

For Akhil Roh
Cé’k}\/“\\!‘\g} é“h th Marg,
il Lings,

Akhil Rohatgr\ bakiss
Practicing-Company Secretary o
' FCS No.: 1600
CP No.: 2317

g

"Date: 19.08.2016
Place: New Delhi

108 -






Form No. MGT-S

 ANNEXURE-F

, EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31.03.2016

[Pursuant to section 82(3) of the Companles Act, 2013 and rute 12(1)
of the Companies {(Management and Administration)Rules,2014]

{. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

) | CIN 160232 DL 2006 GOI 155068
iy Registration Date 30.10.2006
i) Name of the Company Dedicated Freight Corridor Carporation of India Ltd.
iv) Category/Sub-Category of the
.| Company . \ : - :
v) Address of the Registered office | 5% Fioor, Pragati Maidan Metro Station Building Complex,
and coniact detalls New Delhi-110001, :
Tel: 011-2345480, Fax: 011-23454701
vi) | Whether listed cornpany Yes/No > .
vii) Name, Address and Contact N.A.
detalls of Registrar and Transfer
Agent, if any

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activiies contribuﬁngw% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

SINo. |- Name and Description NIC Code ofthe | % to Total turnover of
' of main products/services Product/services the company
1 NA.
2
3

._.[oé,_.




lil. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -~

SNO | NAME AND CIN/GIN | HOLDING/SUBSIDIAY/ | %of shares | Applicable
ADDRESS OF THE ASSOCIATE held Section
COMPANY

1 NA.

2

[V. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Tofal Equity}

()  Category-wise Share Holding

Category of shaz'e-' No. of shargs held &t the No. of shares held at the end of | %Change

holders |~ beginning of the year the year during the
: , . ' ' year
Demat Physical  [Total % of |Demat Physical [Total o of
' Tofal | - Total
Shares Share

A. Promoters - - . . - - . T " : .
(1)indian

a) Individual/HUF - - . - - - - - .

b} Centrat Govt -~ P7,156,688 [37,156,688 [100% - 18,026,688 48,026,688 {100% | - 29.24%

) State Goviis) | — | - N T R A R B

d) Bodies Corp. | - —~ ST T T - - -

{e) BanksA | = | - = - = [ -1 =

N AayOther.. | - | T - T T o TS -

Sub-total - [37,156,688 (37,156,688 1100% - JAB8,026,688 148,026,688 |100% | 29.24%
{A)1):- _ |
(2)Foreign - - - - - - - S
(a)NRis-Individuals - - - | - - - - - -

~ 07 -



S

(b)Other—Endividua$s

{c)Bodies Corp.

(d)Banks/Fl

(e)Any Other .....

|Sub-total(A)2):-

Total
shareholding of

L Promoter{A)=

(A1)+HA) (2)

37,156,688

37,156,688

100%

48,026,688 48,026,688

29.24%

B. Public
Shareholding

t.Institutions

{a) Mutual Funds

-{ (b )Banks/Ft

‘1 {c) Central Govt

(d)State Govi(s)

(e}Venture Capital
Funds

() Insurance
Companies

H{g) Flls

(h) Foreign Venture

-.-| Capital Funds

| {i) Others(specify)

Sub-total(B){1):-

2.Non Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.

~ Jogi~




i)indian

fijOverseas

bjindividuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding hominal
share capital up
to Rs. 1 lakh

i} Individual
shareholders
helding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs1
lakh

cj Others (specify)

Sub-total(B)(2):-

Total Public
Shareholding

BEEKNHENR)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDRs
& ADRs

[ Grand total(A+B+C)

37,156,688

37,156,668 [100%

48,026,688

48 026,688

160%

29.24%




(ii) Shareholding of PFromoters

Shareholding at the end of the

SL. | Shareholder's | Shareholding at the beginning of
No Name the year year
No. of %of total Y%of No.of | %oftotal | %of % change in
Shares | Sharesof | shares | Shares | Sharesof |Shares | shareholding
the pledged the Pledged/ | during the
company | /encum company | encumbe year
bered to ed fo tota
total shares
shares
t [The President of 37,155,688 100% - 48,026,688 1100% - 29.24%
India - 3
Total  [37,156,688 [{00% 48,626,688 00% - R924%

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareho!dihg (please specify, if there is fo change)

SL. Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative shareholding
NO. of the year during the year
No. of % of total No. of shares| % of totalshares
shares shares of the of the company
company
At the beginning of the  [37,156,688 100% 37,156,688 100%
year '
Date wise Increase/ 08.05.2015
Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the
ear specifying the
geasonffoﬁhfrease/ 1,08,70,000 1’08'70’090
| decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/ bonus/sweat
equityetc):
At the End ofthe Year 148026688  |100% 48,026,688  [100%

—[lo -




(iv} Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and
Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

St _ Shareholding at the beginning of Cumulative shareholding
No. the year during the year
For Each of the Top No. of shares %of total No. of %of total
10 Shareholders shares of the shares shares of the
company ~ company

At the beginning of
the year

Date wise increase/
Decrease in
Shareholding during
the year specifying
the  reasons for .
increase/  decrease , Not Applicable
feg. _
allotment/transfoer/

bonus/sweat equity

At the End of the year
{or on the date of

‘separation, if
separated during the
year)

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Persannel: None of the Director or KMP hold share in Company.

Sl Shargholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during the
No. beginning ear
For Each of the No. of %of total No. of shares %of total shares of
Directors and KMP shares| sharesofthe | . the company
company

At the beginning of | - - - T
| the year :




Date wise Increase/
Decrease in
Shareholding during
the year specifying
the reasons for
increase/ decrease
{e.g. allotment/
transter/ bonus/sweat

equity etc):

At the End of the year

V. INDERTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured oans | Unsecured Loans Deposits Total
excluding o ‘ Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at
the beginning of
the financial year
(i)Principal
Amount

1441,08,48,582

1441,08,48,582

(ij)inferest due
but not paid

-

| fii)interest
" | accrued but not
| due '

87,01,18,760

87,01,18,760

1528,09,67,342

1528,08.67,342

Total(i+ ii+ i)

| Changein
" i Indebtednes
s during the

financial year

-1« Addition(int +
Loan)

1823,49,28,280

1923,49,28,280

1« Reduction

Net Change

1923,49,28,280

1923,49,28,280

— _/([:)ﬁ —




indebtedness
at the end of
the financial
year

(i)Principal
Amount

327217 83,116

3272,17,.83,116

fijinterest due but
not paid

{iiiy Interest
accrued but not
due

179,41.12.506

- [179,41,12,506

Total(l+ i+ iii)

345156.95.622

3451,58,95,622

VL. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AﬁD KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration té Managing Director, Whole-time Directors andfor Manager:

Sl. | Particulars of Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total
No.! Remune- Amount
ration
Name 100007, - 100004, 100291, 100003, 100005,
Adesh H.D. D.S.Rana | Anshuman | M. K. Mittal
| Sharma Guijrafi, Sharma, Dir/Fin
DL42192- DL-42192-
135 007
Designation] M.D. | Di/OP & . |Dirfinfra Dir/PP Dir/Fin
BD
1. | Gross salary 26,16,800.00 [24,35,102.00124,17,512.00 25,61.335.00 1,27,64,185.00

{a)Salary as
per
provisions
Contained in
section
17(1) of the
Income-

taxAct, 1961

27,33,436.00




(b)Value of
perquisites
u/s 17(2)
Income-tax
Act, 1961

1,53,381.00 |1,63,462.00

92,612.00

4,14,899.00

1,66,880.00

9.81,134.00

(c) Profits in
fieu of salary
under
section
17(3) Income
fax

- Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Gommission
-as% of

| profit-others,
specify...

Others,
please

specify

Total(A)

27,70,181.00 25,88,564.00 25,10,024.00

29,76,234.00

29,00,316.00(1,37,45,319.00

Ceiling as
- perthe Act

B..Remuneration to other directors: NIL

St No.

Particulars of
Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total
Amount

-

3. Independent Directors |

Fee for attending board/
Committee meetings

Commission : -

Others, please specify -

- —

~ Iy-



Total(1)

4.0therNon-Executive
Directors

| ‘Fee for attending board
/ commitiee meetings

Commission

‘Others, pledse specify

Total(2)

Total(B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial
Remuneration

| Overall Ceiling as per the

Act

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

S.No. | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
' Company
- CEO secretary CFO Total
1 Gross salary - 10,63,968.00 - 1063968.00
(a)Salary as per provisions '
containedinsection17(1)
oitheincome-taxAct, 1961
{b)Value of perquisites u/s - 41416.00 - 41416.00
17(2)Income-taxAct, 1961 ' -
(c)Profits in lieu of salary -
undersection17(3)
Income-faxAct, 1961
2 | Stock Option 0 -
3 | Sweat Equity 0 -
4 Commission 0 -
' -as% of profit
-others, specffy...
5 Others, please specify 0 -
Total - 11,05,384.00 | - 11,05,384.00

NS~




VIL. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: -

Type Section of Brief Details of Authority [RD/ } Appeal
the Description | Penalty/Punishment | NCLT/COURT] | made,
Companies : Compounding fees : - if any
Act imposed - (give
‘ details)
A.COMPANY |
Penalty Nit Nil
Punishment Nil Nil
| Compounding Nit Nil
B.DIRECTORS
Penalty N ] N
Punishment Nit Nl
Compounding NIL Nil
| C.OTHEROFF|CERSINDEFAULT | R
Penalty ' Nil Nt
Punishment NIL Nil
Compounding Nil Nil

Note: “A Show Cause Notice Ufs 162 of the Companieé Act, 2013 has been received electronically from the office of
the Registrar of Companies in city of Delhi & Haryana regarding a default Ufs 1 49 of the Companies Act read with Rule
3 of_ Companies {Appointmenit a&d Qualification of Directors] Rules 2014. In this regard, it is apprised that the provisions
of the Companies Act relating to the appointment of Women Director and Directors including Nominee and Independent
Directors are not being complied with by the Company as the Power fo appoint Directors fies with the President of India.

—~ g ~
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DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR CORPORATION OF INDIA. LIMITED

GIN © U60232DL2006GOI 155068
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31,2016 : Amount (Tin Lakh)

' Particulars Note No As at March 31, 2016 As at March 31, 2015

L. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) Sharcholders’ Funds

(a) Share Capital _ 3 4,80,266.88 3,71,566.88

(b) Reserves and Surplus 4 17,330.45 11,010.62
(2) Share Application Money pending Allotment s 2,85,560.41 1,08,700.00
(3) Non-Current Liabilities ’

{2) Long-Term Borrowings : 6 3,27,217.83 1,44,108.49

(b} Other Long Term Liabilities 7 38,299.94 22,888.80

(c} Long Term Provisions i 1,031.87 357.60
(4) Current Liabilities

() Other Current Liabilities : 9 : 48,397.54 41,258.48

(b) Short Term Provisions 10 196.66 l6.69

TOTAL 11,58,301.58 7,00,127.56

II. ASSETS ' o

(1) Noa-Current Assets

(a) Fixed Assets. = - ’ 11
(i) Tangible Assets 1,496.15 1,182.58
(ii) Intangibie Assets 139.86 41.37
(ii1) Capital Werk in Progress ' 5,77,715.86 3,27,209.88
{iv) Tangible Assets Under Development - 18.99
(v) Intangible Assets Under Development 989.54 911.88
{b) Long-Term Loans and Advances 12 4,49,734.25 2,84,479.12
(2) Current Assets .
(a) Cash and Bank Balances 13 1,60,607.27 83,484.75
{(b) Short-Term Loans and Advances 14 191.93 180.85
(c) Other Current Assets 15 ' 7,426.72 2,618.14
~ TOTAL 11,98,301.58 7,00,127.56
General Information ‘ 1 - -
Significant Accounting Policies
Development Account (Pending Capitalisation) 19

Note No. 1 to 35 form integral part of the Financial Statements.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report

For Baweja & Kaul
Chartered Accountants _ ‘
Firm Registration No: 05834f For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
CA Salkshi Kaul Dhar (Adesh Sharma) - W
Partner Maunaging Director Director Finance
M.No. 514325 DIN-7022393 DIN-2889021
dy- £
{(Meenu Kapoor)
Company Secretary
" Place : New Delki ACS-18954

Date: 5\11 ¢ l '),\/[L

14/06/2016 ’—/; &~ - 1511



DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED
CIN - U60232D1.2006G011 55068

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

Amount (% Tn Lakh)

General Information
Significant Accounting Policies
Development Account (Pending Capitalisation) . 18
Note No. 1 to 35 form integral part of the Financial Statements,

[N

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred te in our report of even date.

Fer Baweja & Kaul
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registrafion No: 05834N -, ?,

Dbt mneihnn, (‘“

6&\/

Particulars Note For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
No. March 31, 2016 March 31, 20615
REVENUE
L. Revenue from Operations ) - -
II. Other Income 16 9,957.18 5,699.20
I Total Revenue {1 4T} : 9,957.18 5,699.20
EXPENDITURE
Employee Benefit Expenses 17 : - -
Finance Cost 17A - -
Depreciation and Amortization Fxpense 178 - -
Other Expenses (CSR) 17C 167.98 32.27
IV. Tetal Expenditure ) 167.98 32.27
V. Profit Before Exceptional and Extraordinary Items and Tax (IL-IV}y $,785.20 5,666,93
VI Exceptional Items - -
VIL Profit Before Extraordinary Items and Tax (V - VI) 9,789.20 5,666.93
VIIL Extracrdinary {tems - - -
IX. Profit Before Tax (VIE - VI . 9,789.20 5,666.93
X. Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax ) - 3,408.33 1,914.25
(2) Income Tax (Earlier Year) i (0.01) (3L50)
(3) Deferred Tax ' ' - -
XL Profit{Loss) for the year from Continuing Operations (IX-X) . . 6,380.85 - 3,784.18
(A) Transferred to Development Account . 61.04 4592
XIL Profit from Discontinuing Qperations ’ - -
XIIL Tax Expenses of Discontinuing Qperations - -
XIV. Profit/(Loss) for the period from Discontinuing Operatioas(XI-XTII) E -
XV. Profit/{Loss) for the period (X1 +XIV - (A)) ' 6,319.84 3,738.26
XVIL Earnings Per Share (Equity Share of T 1000/ cach)
Basic (3} - ) 13.47 10.64
Diluted (3) : 13.14 10.05

For and on Behalf of the Board of Dircctors

CA Sakshi Kaul Dhg (Adesh Sharma)
Parteer Managing Director D:rcctor Finance'
M.No. 514325 DIN-7622393 DIN-288%021
~ %
{Mecenu Ka{ﬁl_or)
Company Secretary
ACS-18954

Place : New Delhi

Daic: 9\“{1 1 l,dL

~ 1q-
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DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR CORPORATION OF INDIA-LIMITED
CIN - U60232DL2006G 01155068
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

. Amount {T in Lakh)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

S.N. PARTICULARS - March 31,2016 March 31, 2015
! Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net profit before tax e - - 9,789.20 - 5.666.94
Interest Income on Bank Deposits ' {9,869.17) (5.635.78)
Adjustment for charge to Development Account {61.04) ' ) (45.92)
(9,930.21) (5,681.70)
Operating Profit Before Workmﬂr Capital Changes (141.01} ) (14.76)
Adjustment for : ‘
Loan & Advances and Other Current Assets 54R.33 332269 .
Trade Payables, Provisions & Other Liabilities 21,760,15 -22.308.48 36,451701 39,773.69
Cash Generated from/(Used {a) Operations 22,167.46 39,758.93
Income Taxes (Paid)/Received (3,294.25) (1,880.9])
Net Cash generated from /(Used in) Operating 18,873.21 37,878.02
Activities (A)
2 Cash Flow from Investing Activities :-
Purchase of Fixed Agsets Including Capital (2.43,329.60) : (1,69,857.87)
Work in Progress (CWIP) & Asset Under
Development .
Sale of Fixed Assets ) 14.84 . : 10.93
Interest Received from Bank Deposits 8,060.85 5,978.29
{Increase}Decrease in Capital Advances ©(1,66,297.80) (24,591.03)
Net Cash Generated from / (Uscd m) Investing (4,01,551.71) ‘ - (1,88,459.68)
Activities (B) ' ] . - ]
3 Cash flow from Financing Activities :-
Proceeds from issuance of Share capital - -
Proceeds from Share Application Money 2,85,560.41 1,08,700.00
Proceeds from long -term borrowings 1,75,447 39 4276220
Interest paid . ¢1,206.79) {1,544.83)
Net Cash geperated from / (used in) Financing 4,59,801.01 1,49,917.37
Activities <)
NetIncrease/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash 77.122.51 {664.29)
Equivalents {A+B+C) .
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the 83,068.4 83,732,710
year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the closing of the 1,60,190.93 83,068.41
year
Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise: ) .
Cash and Bank Balances 1,60,179.84 83,046.45
Cheques in Haad L . 1109 2196
‘ : 1,60,190.93 ) ' 83,068.41

Notes + - N
I The Cash and Cash Equivalents inclydes T 2.683.12 Lakh (Previous Year T 3,382.70 Lakhy in Current/Deposit Account with bank, heid on behalf of
VIOR and not freely available for the business of the company,

.. The Cash Outflow from Qperating Activities includes {130.42 Lakh (Previous Year ¥ 15.06 Lakhs) incurred for CSR activities,

Tor Baweja & Kaul For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

“hartered Accountants

firm Registration No: 15834 ¥ ’
e ) &0 1 10016y
WM‘}W (Adesh Sharma) (MK Mittal)

ZA Szkshi Kaul Managing Directar Director Finance
"artner DIN-T022393 DIN-2889021
) ANe. 514325 - ﬁ
. , -
) %%{ﬂnu Kapoor)
o . Company Secretary
ACS-18954

lace: New Delhi
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DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR CORI’ORATION OF INDIA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

2.1

2.2
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2.4

GENERAL INFORMATION

Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India Limited (DFCCIL) is set up under the

administrative control of Ministry of Railway for construction, maintenance and operation of
the Dedicated Freight Corridors.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial Statements of the Company are prepared under the Historical Cost Convention using
the Accrual Method of accounting in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting

Principles (Indian GAAP) and complying with the mandatory Accounting Standards (AS) as
notified under Companies Act, 2013.

USE OF ESTIMATES

~The preparation of Financial Statements, in conformity with Indian GAAP, require

management to make estimates and assumptions that effect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statement and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Any variation in the estimates and actual are

adjusted prospectively in the accounting period of change and future accounting periods
respectively.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set out in Accounting Standard
"3" on “Cash Flow Statements" and presents the cash flows from Operating, Investing znd
Financing Activities of the Company. '

FIXED ASSETS & CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

Fixed Assets are stated at cost of Acquisition/Construction. In cases where final settlement of
bills with contractors is pending, but the asset is complete and ready for use, capitalisation 1is
done on estimated basis subject to necessary adjustment, including those arising out.of
settlement of arbitrationfcourt cases, in the year(s} of final settlement.

Capital Work-in-Progress is carried at Cost. Expenditure during construction net of incidental
income is capitalized as part of relevant assets, ¢

Capital Stores are valued on Weighted Average Cost.

DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION

Depreciation on Additions to /Deductions from Fixed Assets during the year is charged on
pro-rata basis from / up to the date on which the Asset is available for use / disposal.

b). Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided as per Para 219 of Indian Railway Finance Code

¢ I which specifies the normal life of the various classes of Railway Assets. In case a
(*V"
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b)
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b)

particular component of Fixed Asset is not available in the said Para 219 of Indian Railway
Finance Code, then depreciation on these assets is provided-on Straight Line Method usmg the
useful life specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act ;2013

Asset valuing ¥ 5000/ or less are fully deprecizﬁted in the vear of Addition thereof.

Cost of software is recognized as Intangible Assets and is amortized on Straight Line Method
over a pertod of legal right to use or three years, whichever is earlier. Other Intangible Assets
are amortized on St1a1ght Line Method over the period of legal right to use.

Fixed Assets created on Leaschold Land and Leasehold Premises Improvements are
depreciated fully over the residual period of lease of respective Land / Leaseliold Premises or
over the life of respective asset as specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013,
whichever is shorter. ’

Where the cost of Depreciable Assets has undergone a change during the year due to
increase/decrease in Long Term Liabilities on account of exchange fluctuation, price
adjustment, change in duties or similar factors, the unamortized balance of such assets is

~ depreciated prospectively over the residual life of such assets.

Where the life and / or efficiency of an asset is increased due to renovation and modernization,
the expenditure thereon along-with its unamortized depreciable amount is charged .
prospectively over the revised / remaining useful life determined by technical assessment.

REVENUE

Revenue is recognized based on the nature of activity when consideration can be reasonably
measured and there exists reasonabie certainty of its recovery.

Interest on Bank Deposits is booked on a time proportion basis.
Other items of Income are accounted for as and when the right to receive is established.
Service Charges Income is recognized as per the terms of the contracts

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions in Foreign Currencies are initially recorded at Exchange Rates prevailing on the
date of transaction. At each Balance Sheet date monetary items denominated in Foreign
Currency are translated at the Exchange Rate prevailing on the Balance Sheet date.

Exchange difference on foreign currency borrowings to the extent regarded as adjustment to
interest costs in terms of Para 4(e} of AS-16 on Borrowing Costs is accounted for as
borrowing costs in terms of 1bid AS and balance is adjusted to the carrying cost of respective
Fixed Asset/Capital Work-in-Progress, to which such borrowing pertains.

Exchange difference on other monetary items is recognized as income & expenses.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Al Employee Benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as Short Term Employee Benefits. Benefits such as short- term compensated
absences, efc. are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service,

Provision for Post Employment Benefit as defined in AS-15 (2005) on Employee Benefits is
de’B ctuarial Valuation at the year-end.

- [22 -
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Provision for Long-term Employees benefits such as Leng-term compensated absences, is
made i the books on the basis of Actuarial Valuation made at the year end.

Provision/Liabilities towards Foreign Service Contribution are made in terms of Government
Rules & Regulation for employees on deputation and charged to Development Account.

Expenses on Ex—gratxa payments & Notace Pay under Vo§unta;y Retirement Scheme are
charged to revenue in the year of incurrence. '

BORROWING COST

Borrowing costs aftributable to the acquisition or construction of Qualifying Assets are
capitalized as part of the cost of that Asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as expenses
in the period in which these are incurred. Cost of raising borrowings / upfront fees and other
similar expenses are capitalized/charged as expense in the year of incurrence itself. -

TAXES ONINCOME

Tax on Income for the current period is determined on the basis of taxable income under the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred Tax is recognized on timing differences between the accounting income and taxable
income for the year and quantified using the tax rafes and laws enacted or substantively
enacted as on the Balance Sheet date. Deferred Tax Assets are-recognized and carried forward
to the extent there is a virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available
against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS -

Provisions are recognized in respect of obligations where, based con the evidence available,
outflow of resources is probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation. Contingent Liabilities are determined on the basis of available information. These
lizbilities are not provided and the same are disclosed in the notes to accounts. Contingent
Assets are neither recognized nor disciosed in the financial statements.

MISCELLANEQUS

Liabilities for Goods in Transit/Capital Works executed but not certified are not provided for,
pending inspection and acceptance by the Corporatlon

Claimé including price variation arc accounted for on acceptance.
Liquidated Damages are recognized at the time of attial recovery.

Prepaid expenses and prior period .expenses/income of items of ¥ 50,000/- and below are
charged to natural heads of accounts.

Mobile Instruments are charged off to revenue.

Insurance elaims are accounted for based on Management best assessment of the quantum of
loss & coverage thereof in terms of Insurance Policy. Any shortfall / excess are adjusted on
the settlement of claims. Claim towards losses of CWIP, for which Insurance are obtained by
Contractors under the provxsxons of respective contract agreement, are not accounted in the
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Share Capital . Amount (Tin Lakh}

Particulars As at Mareh 31, 2016 As at March 31, 2015

Authorized Share Capital’
8,00,60,000 (Previous Year §,00,00,000) $,00,000.00 §,00,000.00
Equity Shares of T 1000/- each

8,00,006.00 8,00,000.90

Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Capital
4,80,26,688 (Previous Year 3,71,56,688) 4,80,266.88 3,71,566.88
Equity Shares of T 1000/- each :

4,80,266.88 3,71,566.88
Reconciliation of the Number of Equity Shares
Particulars - As at March 31, 2816 - As at March 31, 2015
Number of Amount bn (Tin Number of shares Amount in {T In Lakh)
shares Lakh)
Balance as at the begianing of the year 371,56,688 3,71,566.88 270,77.4G0 2,70,774.00
Add :Equity Shares issued during the Year/ Period 108,70,000 1,08,70¢.00 160,79,288 : 1,00,792.88
Balance As at the end of the year 430,26,688 4,80,266.58 371,56,688 ' 3.71,566.88
Details of Skares held by Skarcholders holding mare than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
Particulars A ’ . As at March 31,2016 ‘ . AsatMarch 31, 2015
Nuniber of % of Holding  Number of shares % of Holding
shares _
Equity Shares : )
‘The President of Tadia & his nominees (Ministry of 480.26,688 100% 371,56,688 ] 100%

Railways)

Rights, Preferences & Restrictions attached to Equity Shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares referved fo as equity shares having par value of T 1000/-each. Each holder of one equity share is entitled
to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of shares shall be entitfed to remaining assets of the company, affer

distribution of all preferential amounts,

Reserves And Surplus Amount (X in Lakh}

[Particulars . Asat March 31,2016 As at March 31, 2015

Surplus: :

Opening Balance : 11,010.62 7,272.35

Add : Profit after Tax (Current Year) - 6,319.83 3,738.27
17,330.45 11,010.62

Less ; Appropriations - _
17,330.45 11,010.62

Closing Balance

Skare Application Money Pending Allotment
(a) Company had epening balance of ¥ 1,08,700.00 Lakh of Share Applicatien Money received from Mzmstry of Railways as oa 31, 03 2015, Compa_ny

has issued Equity shares at par in respect of this outstanding share application money on 08.03.2013.

(b). Company has closing balance of ¥ 2,85,560.41 Lakh of Share Application Money received from Ministry of Railways as on 31.03.2016. 2,85,56,041
number of equny shares are required to be issued at par for said outstanding application money during ¥Y 2016-17. The company has sufficient
Authorized Share Capital to cover the allotment against such share application money received. There Is no overdue amount of Share Application Money

Pending Allotment as on 31.03.2016.

— J24y
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-Lonag Term Borrowings

Amount (¥ in Lakh)

IParticu!ars As at March 31, 2016 As at Macch 34,2015
Jerm Lozns From Qthers

Unsecured Loan

Loan from Ministry of Raitways for EAP Projects JICA - 205 12,055.78 11,645.53
Loan from Ministry of Railways for EAP Projects JICA - 209 1,63,932.98 73,159.84
“Loan from Miﬁistxy of Railways for EAP Projects JICA - 212 7,092.48 6,4806.99
Loan from Miaistry of Railways for EAP Projects JICA - 229 3.876.19 -
Loan from Miniéstry of Railways for EAP/IBRD Projects - 1,18,219.20 52,665.54
8066

Loan from IBRD for EAP Projects- 8318 22,041.20 1!56,59
[Total 3,27,217.83 1,44,108.49]

Terms of Repayment (EAP/JICA LOAN)

Loan by JICA is being given to Ministry of Railways as Externally Aided components of Gross Budgetary Support (GBS) through Ministry of Finance.
This is passed on to Loan for DFCCIL on back to back basis. As per clarification received from MOR vide letter number 2009/Infra/3/1/26 Pt-1 dated
06/02/2015, the tenure of loan is 40 years, rate of interest is 7% and moratorium period is 10 years. The accumulated inferest accrued during the period of
moratorium is payable after completion of 10 years. This interest wiil accrue on simple interest basis, There is no principal repayment as the Cabinet has
approved for the loan to be exiended to MOR as GBS.

Terms of Repayment (EAPABRD LOAN) )

The Government of India {GOT) through the Ministry of Finance has entered into a Loan Agreement dated: 27/80/2011 to avail a loan of USD 975
Miition with Loan ID-8066 IN with the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (IBRD} which shall be utilized towards Institutional
Development Astivities and Design, Construction-and Commissioning of 343 Kms of doubie track electrified railway on the Khurja-Bhaupur Section of |
the Eastern Dedicated Freight Corridor (EDFC).

In terms of the Loan Agreement, DFCCIL has been identified as the Project Implementing Entity for impiementation of the project. Further, to facilitate
the carrying out of the project by DFCCIL, GOI through the MoR is required to make the proceeds of the Loan available to DFCCIL by way of MOR

~ Loan under a Subsidiary Loan Agreement between the GOI through MOR and DFCCIL, under terms and conditions satisfactory to the Bank.

The repayment of IBRD Loan ID-8066 IN along with interest wili be made by DFCCIL to MOR in Rupee equivalent of the USD Loan/Tnterest amount
The DFCCIL has eatered tnto another Loan Agreement with the IBRD dated 11/12/2014 to avail a loan of USD 1100 Million with Loan ID-8318 IN.

This Loan shall be utifized towards Institutional Development Activities and Design, Cori_struction and Commissioning of 393 Kms of double track
electrified railway on the Kanpur-Mughal Sarai section of the EDFC. In this agreement the Government of India (GOI} has given Sovereign Guarantee.

The repayment of IBRD Loan ID-8318 along with interest will be made by DFCCIL to World Bank directly in the designated amount in USD.

Principal Repayment Terms & Details:

- *Loan No.

Commencement of  Repayment Term Repayment Period
Repayment -

IBRD Loan (EDFC) - 8066 From Nov, 2018 Half Yearly In 30 Installments
IBED Loan (EDFC) - 8318 From May 2021 Half Yearly In 39 Installments
Other Long Term Liabilities amount (T In Lakh)
tParticuIars As atMarch 31, 2016 As at March 31, 2015 E
Trade Payabics - -
Others

(i) Interest Accrued but not Due on Loan fom MoR on EAPAICA 17,521.77 8,574.76
(i) Deposits/ Retention Money (Received from Supplier & Service 14,8453 8,562.62
(iii) Income Received in Advance ) 187.59 189.90
{ivy Advance Received from customers against Deposit Work 5,561.52 5,561.52
(iv) Other Advances Recoiyed £ KA/ 183.75 -
[Total ASE NN 38,299.94 22,838.80 |

Y : k4
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“LongTerm Provisions

Amount {¥ in Lakh)

[Particulars As at March 31,2016 As at March 31, 2015
(A) Provision for Employees Benefits ’
- Gratuity 302.92 205.20
" Leave Encashment 600.95 263.36
Leave Travel Concession 127.99 89.04
(B} Other Provisions - -
fTotal (A)+(B) 1,031.87 557.60

Employces Benefits.

8) Gratuity:

Provision for Gratuity liability for the period has been made as per Actuarial Vahuation as on 31-03-2016.

Gratuity Benefit is payable to employees on separation from the Corporation. The amount of Gratuity payable is based on past service and salary at the
time of separation as per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. There is a vesting period of 5 years on the benefit. )

A Recenciliation of Opening & Closing Balances of the present value of the reticement benefit {Gratuity) obligation and the effects during the year
attributable to cach are the following: - :
Change in Present Value of Obligation: Amount {¥ in Lakh}
[Particutars As at March 31,2016 AsatMarch 31, 2015
Opening Balance 213.38 109.93
Interest Cost 17.G7 0.34
Current Service Cost 8633 63.86
Benefit Paid - -
Actuarial {Gain)/ Loss on Obligation 7.35 30.25
[Closing Balance 324.13 213.38

‘ Expenses Recognized:

Amount (T in Lakb)

[Particulars Asat March 31,2016 As at March 31, 2015
Interest Cost 17.07 : 9.34
Current Service Cost 86.33 63.86
Actoariz] (Gain)/ Loss on obligation 7.35 30.25
LExpenses recognized and transferred to Development Account 11075 103435
" Mevement in the Liability recogrized in the Balznce sheet: Amount (¥ in Lakh)
[Particulars AsatMarch 31,2006  Asat March 31,2015
Opening Net Liability 213.38 109.93
Expenses as Above 110.75 (10345
Benefit Paid - -
Actual Return on Plan Assets -
Acquisition Adjustment - -
|Closing Net Lisbility 314.13 21338
Recognized as under: -
Long Term Provision 302.92 20520
Short Term Provision 2121 819
{Total 324.13 | 213.38 |

Actuarial Assumptions:

Year ended March 31, 2016

Year ended Marck 31,2015

Method Of Valuation :

Project Unit Credit Method

Project Unit Credit Method

Mortality Rate

Discount Rate : 8.00% 8.00%
Salary Escafation Rate: 6.00% 6.00%
TALM (2006-08) IALM (2006-08)

_.._}26..
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. b} Leave Encashment:

“Piovision for Leave Encashment Liability for theperiod has been made as per Actuarial Valvation as on 31-03-2016.

Employees are entitled to encashment of Eamed Leaves (LAP)/ Half Pay Leave {LHAP) subject to certain limits and other conditions specified for the

.- Same. :

A Reconiliation of Opening & Closing Balances of the present value of obligation and the effects during theyear attributable to each are the following:

Change in Present Value of Obligation:

Amount [T in Lakh)

lPa rticulars

As'at March 31,2016 As at March 31, 2015

Opening Balance 286.94 160.09
Acqusition Adjustment - 17.24
Interest Cost 22.96 12.81
Current Service Cost 218.57 117.66
Past Service Cost 125.51 -
Benefit paid {14.00} (23.07)
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on obligation - 1697 221
{Closing Balance ) 656.95 286.94

Expenses Recognired:

Amount [T in Lakh)

Earticulars As at Mareh 31, 2016 As at March 31, 2015
Interest Cost 22.96 12.81
Past Service Cost 125.51 -
Current Service Cost 218.57 117.66
Actuarial Loss/ (Gain) on obligation 16.57 2.21
[Expenses recognized and transferved to Development Account’ 384.01 - 132.68

Movement ia the Liakility recognized in the Balaace shéct:

Amount {7 in Lakh)

[Particulars “As at March 31,2016 As at Mareh 31, 2015
Opening Net Liability 286.94 160.069
Expenses as Above 384.00 - 132.68
Benefit Paid (14.00) {23.07)
Actual Return on Plan Assets - -
Acquisition Adjustment - 17.24
{Closing net liability 656,94 186.94
Recognized as under:

Loag Term Provision 600.96 263.36
Short Term Provision 55.98 23.58
iTotal 656.94 | 286.94

Actuarial Assumptions:

Year ended March 31, 2016

Year ended March 3], 2015

Method Of Valuation :

Project Unit Credit Method

Project Unit Credit Method

Discount Rate ; $.00% 8.00%
Salary Escalation Rate: 6.00% 6.00%
Mortality Rate IALM (2006-08) TALM (2006-08)
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t} Leave Travel Concession:

- “Provision for Leave Travel Concession for the period has been made as per Actuarial Valtuation as on 3§-03-2016.

Employees are eatitled to leave travel concession subject to certzin limits and other conditions specified for the same.
. A Reconciliation of Opening & Closing Balances of the present value of obligation and the effects during the year attributable to each are the following:

Change in Present Value of Obligation:

Amount {T in Lakh)

JParticuiars As at March 31,2016 Asat March 31, 2015
Opening Balance 92.12 79.68
Acqusition Adjustment - -
Interest Cost 7.37 6.17
Curreat Service Cost 83.89 53.24
Benefit paid {7.65) (4.83)
Actuarial {Gain)/ Loss on obligation (42.33) {42.74)
[Clasing Balance 133.40 92.12 |

Expenses Recognized:

Amcunt (¥ in Lakh)

[Particutars AsatMarch 31,2016 As at March 31, 2615
Interest Cost 7.37 6.77
Current Service Cost §3.89 53.24
Actuarial Loss/{Gain) on obligation {42.33) (42.79)
@pcnses recognized and transferred to Development Account 48.93 17.27 [
Movement in the Liability recognized in the Balance sheet; Amnount (T in takh)
LParticu!a rs As at March 31, 2€.}176 As atMarch 31, 2015
Opening Net Liability 9212 ©79.68
Expenses as Above 48.92 17.27
Benefit Pajd (7.65) 4.83)
Actual Return on Plan Assets - -
Acquisition Adjustment - -
[Closing net tiability 133.39 92.12 |
Recognized as under:
. Long Term Provision 127.99 89.04
Short Term Provision 5.40 3.08
{Total 13339 |

Actuarial Assumptions: *

92.12 |

Year ended March 31, 2016

Year ended March 31,2015

Method Of Valuation :

Project Unit Credit Method

Project Unit Credit Method

Discount Rate : 8.00% 8.00%
Salary Escalation Rate: 6.00% 6.00%
Mortality Rate JALM (2006-08) TALM (2006-08)
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“'IO‘thez Current Liabilities Amount (T in Lakh)
Partieulars As at March 31,2016 As at March 31, 2015
" {3) Eamest Money Deposit ‘ 216.74 138.24
(i) Fund received from MOR towards Land {Pending .
transfer o SLAQ Alc) 2683.12 3,382.70
(iii) Advance Received from Customers Against Deposit Work 6.48 6.48
(iv) Statutory Dues Payable 4,373.56 2,054.18
(v) Others Payables ‘ : 37,911,319 31,718.04
{vi} i.)c_posﬁs./ Retention Meney (Received from Supplier & 2.576.54 1,033.77
Service Providers) .
{vii) Income Received in Advance 5.55 555
{viti) Funds Received from MOR pending adjustment - 2,793.10
{ix) Interest Accrued but not due on Loan from MoR on 419.36 126.42
IBRD _
(x) Other Advances Received 205.00 -
[Total . 48,397.54 41,258.48
10 ShortTc'rm Provisions Amount (T in Lakh)
LParﬁculars As at March 31, 2016 As at March 31, 2015
{A) Provision for Employces Benefits -
Gratuity 212 819
Leave Encashment 3598 23,58
Leave Travel Concession 540 3.08
(B} Other Provisions - -
Tncome Tax 2015-16 (Net of TDS & Advance 114.07 1.84
Tax) .
[Total {A)}HB) - 196.66 36.69

10.1 Provision for Income Tax has been made in respect of Income from Interest on Fixed Deposits and Service Charges recovered, However no provision has
been made on Interest on Mobilization Advance given to-Contractors, Liquidated damages {LDA) recovered, Interest on Advance Consumption Deposit,

D&G and Supervision charges recovered as the same has been considered as Capital Receipts, No adjustment has been made for Deferred Taxes on
Income as per AS 22, as the Company is in construction stage,

' ]’),q g
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Iji*i‘]‘)ICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED
+ =~ 'Notes-lo the Financial Statements

Sn

12.1

13

Long Term Loans & Advances Amount (T In Lakh}

Particulars As at March 31,2016 Asat March 31, 2015

A. Capital Advance

“2) Secured Considered Good

1. Mobilisation Advance

(Secured against Hypothecation of Plant & Machinery in '
favour of DFCCIL) 3,080.79 3,734.84
b) Unsecured Considered Good

i. Advance for Shifting of Utilities ‘ 2,28,583.39 1,76,047.00
it. Advance for ROB/RUB - 36,152.20 -
iii. Advance for Capital Works- Others 27,150.77 . 1,876.44
v. Mobilisation Advance ' 1,53,839.91 98,969.29
Total (A) 4,48,947.66 2,83,627.57

" B. Security Deposit

Unsecured Considered Good

I Security Deposit- Electricity ‘ A : 32.95 32,60
it. Security Deposit - Lease Rent : 86.18 . 75.58
lie. Security Deposit Against-Telephone & Others ) 152 . 136
iv. Security Deposit Against-Cutting of Trees ‘ : . 55.49 36.08
v. Other Deposits including Interest 287.83 265.43
Total (B) ' 463.97 ~ 41105
C. Others

Advance to Employees (Unsecured Considered Good) . 18.14 -
Advance Income Tax & TDS # : ) 305.08 44050
Total (C) : ‘ 323.22 448.50
Total (A4+B+C)." ' 4,49,734.25 2,84,479.12

# This represents Advance Income Tax & TDS {Net of provision for Income Tax) of T 305.08 fakh (Previous Year ¥ 440.50
lakh) for earlier years Pendmg Asessement/Refund.

The Company has given advances to various parties for various capital works ‘and for shifiing of wtilities along the Freight
Corridors under construction. The total amount of such advances (Note No. 12.A b (i) (it} (iii) as on 31.03.2016 is ¥
2,91,926.35 Lakh (Previous Year T 1,80,923.44 Lakh). The works are under various stages of progress and the same will be
accounted for as CWIP on completion of respective works by the concemed parties.

Cash and Bank Balances a . Amount (T in Lakh)

Particulars - As at March 31,2016 Asat March 31, 2015

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents g
Bank Balances

- Current Accounts & Flexi 17,479.84 17,046.45.
- Deposit Accounts with maturity of 3 months or fess 1,42,700.00 66,000.00
- Cheque in Hand 11.09 21.96

{b) Other Bank Balances ) )
- Deposit Accounts with maturity beyond 3 months -
- Fixed Deposit Accounts ?lsdoed as Secunty 416.34 : 416.34

Total {a} + (b) 1,60,607.27 83,484.75

~/32 ~
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141

15

151

Bank-Balances includes ¥ 2,683.12 Lakh (Previous Year Rs. 3,382.70 Lakh) in-Current Accounts & Flexi held on behalf of
Ministry of Railways, *

Short Term Loans & Advances Amount (T in Lakh}
Particulars Asat March 31,2016 As at March 31, 2415
- (a) Other Loans & Advances (Unsecured Considered Good) _ :
(i) Employee advances ] 1234 15.16
(i) Prepaid Expense 19.65 1226
(i) Service Tax Input Credit & Advance Paid : 91.26 113.15
{iv) Security Deposit - NDMC . 9.98 10.33
{v) Gthers . 58.70 29.95
Total _ N 191.93 180.85

Advance to Directors outstanding as on 31.03.2016-NIL (Previous Year-NIL)

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS Amount {% in Lakh}
Particulars As at March 31, 2016 As at March 31, 2015
(a) Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit, Mobilization Advances & Others :

Cn Deposit Accounts with Banks S 2,193.71 385.39

On Mobilisation Advances , : 1,588.46 : 664.09 -
(b} Expenditure onLand Acquisition -Recaverable from MOR ‘ 2,084.26 355.41
{c) Expenditure on Pets Survey -Recoverable fom MOR 135530 97447
(d) Recoverable from Staff . : , _ 3.45 : 338
{e) Recoverable from Contractors/Consiltants 16.83 ) 5.10
(f) Other Recoverable 18447 228.61

(Represents Rent & Facility Management Charges etc.
receivable on account of sub-fease) _
(g} Gold/Silver Medallian in hand . 0.24 1.69

Total ‘ 742672 2,618.14

Expenditure on Land Acquisition :

(a} As per the directions of Ministry of Railways {MGR), Land for the project shall be acquired in the name of MOR under
The Railways Act, 1989 as madified by The Railways (Amendment) Act, 2008 2ad the Land so acquired shall be leased to the
Company at lease rent of 6% per annum of the Cost of Land on the date of handing over to DFCCIL. Lease rent shall
commence from the date of commissioning. Funds for acquisition of land are being provided by MOR o separate bank
accounts, being operated jointly by the State Land Acquisition Officer, being the Competent Authority under the above Act
and a nominated official of the Company. Such Bank Accounts do not form part of the Company’s Accounts.

{b) In addition to the compensation payments for Land acquisition, for which funds are given by MOR in separaté account as
explained in (a) above, Company is incurring facilitation & Administrative Expenditure in connection with acquisition of
land, which are reimbursable by MOR on actual basis.




DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDNOR CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

16 Other Income

Amount (T in Lakh)

Particulars _ For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
(A) Interest Income
Interest on Flexi/FDR 9,869.17 5,635.78
Total (A) ) 9,869.17 5,635.78
(B) Other Non Operating Income
Misc. Income 6.86 202
. Rent Recovery on Sub Lease (See note No. 16.1) 274.24 499,17
. Housekeeping Exp. Recovered from Sub-Lessee 1545 25.28
Office Security Exp. Recovered from Sub-Lessee 20.01 40.60
Electricity Exp. Recovered from Sub-Lessee 25.57 5526
Annual Maintenance Charges Recovered from Sub-Lessee - 6.03 14.75
Composite Rent & Facility Management Charges 236.17 182.35
Total (B) - ' 584.33 - 819.43
(C) Less : Direct Expenses
Housekeeping Expenses 13.73 21.38
Rent 274.24 499.17
Composite Rent & Facility Management Exp 162.47 141.91
Office Security Expenses 17.78 34.33
Electricity Exp. Office 22.73 46.73
Annual Maintenance Charges 5.37 12.49
Total (C) 496.32 756.01
(D) Net Other Non Operating Income [ (B) - (C) | 88.01 63.42
Net Other Income [ (A) + (D) | | 9,957.18 5,699.20 -
Less:Transferred to Development Account (Note 19) ‘ - -
9,957.18 5,699.20

Balance (Transferred to Statement of Profit & Loss)

16.1 Sub Lease :

Rent Receivables on account of Sub-Lease recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss for the period ended

31.03.2016 is ¥ 274.24 Lakh (Previous Period T 499.17 Lakh)




17

17.1

-

Employees Benefits.Expense

. DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED

Amount, (T in Lakh)

" Particulars
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2016 Mareh 31, 2015
Salary, Wages & Allowances 7,683.45 6,028.39
Leave Salary & Pension Contribution 319.75 29322
Gratuity, Contribution to PF & Pension Scheme (including. Admin 417.43 322.50
fee)
Staff Welfare Exp, 476.34 356.00
Total : §,896.97 7,000.11
Less:Transferred to Development Account (Note 19) 8,896.97 7,000.11
Balance (Transferred to Statement of Profit & Loss) - -
Disclosure in respect of Defined Contribution Plan in terms of AS - 15 is as under :
Centribution to Defined Contribution Plan recognized as development expenses are as under:
- Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund (Rs. in Lakh) _ 283.40 199.80
17 A Fiuanc_e Cost Amount (T in Lakh)
_ Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2016 Mareh 31, 2015
Interest Expenses on; :
EAP/IICA Loan 8,947.00 5,767.60
IBRD Loan 856.46 264.33
Interest on Income Tax - 16.32
Upfront Fee 376.33 1,332.06
Guarantee Fee 266.94 -
Other Borrowing Costs: - -
Exchange Differences regarded as Adjustment to Interest Cost 4,922.52 1,084.16
Total 15,369.25 9,064.47
Less:Transferred to Development Account (Note 19) 15,369.25 - 9,064.47

178

Balance {Transferred to Statement of Profit & Loss)

Note : In terms of para 4(e) of Accounting Standard 16 on Borrowing Cost, Borrowing Cost shall includes exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as adjustment to interest. To determine
the same interest on borrowings has been computed @ 7%, which is the interest rate a¢ which focal currency borrowings to

DFCCIL has been made available from MOR.

Depreciation & Amortization Expenses

Amount (T in Lakh)

Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
: ~ March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Depreciation - EDP Assets 21735 90.49
Depreciation - Office Equipment 49.71 15772
Depreciation - Furnifure & Fixture 55.68 (33.51)
Depreciation - Leasehold Improvement 79.18 57.28
Depreciation - Leasehold Flat 6.82 5.33
Depreciation - Plant & Machinery 0.28 0.06
Total . 409.02 277.37
Less:Transferred to Develop ote 19) 409.02 277.37




.

N

i7 C Other Expenses

%

Amount (T in Lakh)

Lease Rent :

Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Advertisernent Expenses 341.18 220.68
Communication Expenses 105.79 93.09
Printing & Stationary 135.89 122.59
Misc. Expenses 70.18 43.81
Books & Periodicals 2.57 . 2.41
Legal & Professional Charges 158.63 104.25
Directors Sitting Fee - 2.02
Censultancy Fees to Consultants 134.15 127.83
Cost of Outsourced Staff (Placement) 41577 260.95
Recruitment Expenses - 1.10 470.23
Electricity Expenses 117.89 83.18
Power & Fuel 3.54 7.13
Housekeeping Expenses 321.26 303.15
Payment to Statutory Auditors * 16.72 1379
Corporate Social Responsibility 167.98 32.27
- Meeting & Conference 5171 43.96
Rates & Taxes 112.03 102.04
Rent ** 1,590.38 1,324.94
Tours ,Travels and Conveyance 2,172.11 1,659.9¢6 -
Seminar & Training Fxpenses 380.81 230.95
Repair & Maintenance-others 118.61 86.98
© Annual Sﬁbsériptioh Fees-IT Consultancy & Seftware 6.92 1.94
Office Expenses : 41.71 14.76
Hospitality Expenses 17.68 13.22
Office Security Expenses 215.08 68.32
Interest on Duties & Taxes - 2.37
Foreign Currency Expenditure 7.57 2.25
Total 7 6,707.26 5,439.07
Less:Transferred to Development Account (Note 19) 6,539.28 5,406.80
Balance (Transferred to Statement of Profit & Loss) 167.98 32.27
Payment to Statufory Auditors includes :
Statutory Audit Fee 9.7¢ 9.22
Tax Audit Fee 2.26 2.19
Reimbursement of Expenses (paid during the period) 1.02 (.08
Provision towards out of Packet Expense 1.4] 0.37
Other Audit Fee (EDFC-1 Audit) 1.96 - 1.93
Other Audit Fee (EDFC-II Audit) 0.29 -
' ' 16.72 13.79

The Company’s significant leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases of premises for offices & guesthouses.
These leasing arrangements, which are not non-cancellable, are usually renewable on mutually agreeable terms. Lease
payments in respect of premises for offices, guest house are shown in Rent. '

Lakh)

 Lease payments recognised in the Accounts for the period ended 31.03.2016 is T 1590.38 Lakh (Previous Period ¥ 1324.94



w

17 C-1 Details of Recovery from Sub-Lease and Composite Rent Towards Expenses:

Amount (¥ in Lakh)’

Nature of Expenditure Gross Recovery from Sub- Recovery from Net Expenditure
Expenditure Lease ' Composite Rent { Refer Note 17C)
(Refer point C of | (Refer point Cof '
Note 16) Note 16)

Rent 2,002.10 274.24 137.48 1,590.38
Electricity Expenses 147.64 2273 7.02 117.89
Housekeeping Expenses 343,77 13.73 §.78 321.26
Repair & Maintenance 125.93 5.37 1.95 118.61
Office Security Expenses 240.10 17.78 7.24 4 215.08
Total 2,859.54 | - 333.85 | 162.47 2,363.22

_37-




DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED
Nofes to the Financial Statements

18 Prior Period Adjustment Amount (T in Lakh)

For the Year For the Year

Particulars Ended March 31, Epded March 31,
' 2016 2015
Consultancy Charges ' ' 0.75 7.93
Meeting Exp. ) 3.06 -
Electricity Exp. _ - 0.29
Vehicle Hiring Charges 1.03 4.14
* Misc. Prior Period Adjustments - o 2.94
Prior Period Consultancy-IT _ 7.26 -
Placement Consultancy Exp. ' 055 22.83
Tours Travels and Conveyance 6.07 1.63
Seminar & Training Exp. | o - - (2945
Professional Charges : - ' 5.31
Salary, Wages & Allowances : 125.51 - (1.02)
Foreign Service Contribution ‘ S 12.99
Security Charges : ' ‘ - 0.97)
Rent - . (1.39) 0.59
Interest on Loan - ' - (4.63)
Interest on Consumption Deposit - (16.23)
Depreciation : : 3.64 .
Total e 146.48 6.35
Less:Transferred.to Development Account (Note 19) 146 .48 6.35

Balance (Transferred to Statement of Profit & Loss) - . -




DEDIGAT ED FREIGHT CORRIDOR CORPORATION OFINDIA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

19 Development Account (Pending Capitalisation) ‘ Amount (T in Lakh)

Forr the Year Endedr For the Year Ended

Particulars Note No March 31,2016 March 31,2015
Employees Benefit Expense 17 8,896.97 ' 7,000.11
Finance cost - 17A 15,369.25 9,064.47
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 178 409.02 277.37
Other Expenses 17C 6,539.28 5,406.80
Prior Period Adjustment 18 146.48 . 635
Total (A) 31,361.00 21,755.10
Less:

Liquidated Damage (L.DA) o - 1,918.30 302.67
Interest on Mobilization Advance : _ C1,385.50 ' 1,838.90.
Interest on Advance Consumption Deposit - 22.40 29.21
Interest on Advances-Employees - ‘ : 0.93. ‘ -

Cash Discount from Contractors ' 0.72 _ 23395
Recruitment Fees Received ' - 186.28 - 77.17

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets ' 0.69 32.21
Foreign Currency Fluctuation Gain / (Loss) (326.52) 209.62
Security DeposiEMD Forfeited ' 6.06 _ 1470
D&G Supervision & Plant Estimation 5.85 744
Charges Received
Sale of Tender 40.40 ' 22.61

Total (B) 3,240.61 - 2,768.48

Net Expenditure (A-B) 28,120.39 . 18,986.62

Profit Transferred From Statement of N 61.04 45,92

Profit And Loss - ‘ '

Total Transferred To Capital WorkIn - o - 28,059.35 18,940.70
Progress (CWIP) '

Lt N



20,

a) Contingent Liabilities as on: ~ (X in Lakh)
Descriptioh As on As on
31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Claims against the Company not 34,805.54 31,796.38

acknowledged as debts in respect of

Capital Works

Disputed Taxation Demands 119.08 705.87
Total 34,924.62 32,502.25

b)

d)

21.

The above Contingent Liabilities do not include Contingent Liabilities on
account of pending cases in respect of service matters & others wheré the amount -
cannot be quantified. ' ‘

It is not practicable to disclose the uncertainties relating to any outflow.

A number of cases are lying for adjudication at different forums pertaining to
Land Compensation. Since Land Acquisition is being done by the Company as a
facilitator for Ministry of Railways, company is not subject to any liability that.
may arise pursuant to the decision of aforesaid adjudxcatmg authorities

In accordance with Accounting Standard — 29, particulars of Provisions are as
under:

324.13

22. Capital Commitments:

923,

. (X In Lakh)
- Particulars Gratuity - Leave Leave Income Tax
Encashment Travel
; ‘ Concession
Opening Balance 213.38 286.94. 92.12 1.84
Additions during the Year 110.75 384.00 48.92 3,408.33
Amount Used/Incurred - 14.00 7.65 3,296.10
Unused Amount Reversed - - - -
Closing Balance 656.94 133.39 . 114.07

Bstimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and
not provided for X 24,70,940.11 Lakh (Previous Year <10,00,720.72 Lakh).

- Balances shown under Material issued to Contractors, Claims Recoverable,

Advance  for  Capital  Expenditure, . Advances to  Contractors,
Recoverable/Payable from/to MOR, Sundry Creditors and Deposits/Earmest
money from contractors are subject to Reconciliation/ Confirmation and
respective consequential ad]ustment —




24. In the opinion of the management, the value of Current Assets, Loans and
Advances on realisation in the ordinary course of business, will not be less than
the value at which these are stated in the Balance Sheet.

25. The effect of Foreign Exchange Fluctuation during ‘the period ended 31%
March,2016 is as under:

& in Lakh)
S.No| Particulars ' Year ended | Year ended
March 31, March 31,
2016 2015
(i) |Amount charged to Development 4922.52 1684.16
Account as Borrowing Cost
(i) |Amount- charged to Development| . 326.52 (209.62)
Account as FERV

26. The amount of borrowing cost capitalised by transfer to ‘Development Account’
during the current year is ¥ 15,369.25 Lakh (Previous Year ¥ 9,048.15 Lakh).

27. During the financial year ended 31.03.2016, following Signiﬁcant Accounting
Polictes have been reworded / modified / introduced:

Significant Description Impact on Accounts
Accounting | '
Policy
Policy No. Policy is reworded to disclose | Depreciation for the current
2.5(b) the fact of using the useful life year has been decreased by T
indicated in Para 219 of Indian 20.71 Lakh.
Railway Finance Code for the
. | purpose  of depreciation of
| Railway Assets.

28.

(a) The Company is in construction stage for the work relating to
construction of Eastern and Western Freight Corridors. Operations are -
yet to be started. Statement of Profit & Loss is being drawn only for
non-operational income i.e. interest on Bank deposit & service
charges income on Facility Management Services provided on sub-
lease and these do not form a reportable segment as per Accounting

Standard - 17 -on Segment Re t}n‘,ving notified by The Companies
Accounting Standard Rules, 2006. /=" :




geographical segments is also not applicable.

required information is as under: -

a) Key Management Personnel

(b) Since the Company is constructing freight corridor within the country,

29. In compliance of Accounting Standard — 18 on Related Party Disclosures, the

Shri Adesh Sharma Managing Director
Shri H.D. Gujrati Director (OPR & BD)
Shri Anshuman Sharma Director (PP)
| Shri M. K. Mittal Director (Finance)
Shri D.S Rana Director (INFRA)
Ms. Meenu Kapoor - Company Secretary

b) Transactions carried out with the Related Parties:

Remuneration to Key Management Personnel is ¥ 148.51 Lakh (Previous Year ¥

136.32 Lakh) and amount of dues outstanding to the Company as on 31.03.2016 is

. Nil (Previous Year — Nil).

30. Earﬁings Per Share:-

The elements considered for calculation of Earnings Per Share (Basic and Diluted)

are as under:

Year Ended

Particulars Year Ended
March 31, 2016 | March 31, 2015 |
Net Profit After Tax used as Numerator 6,319.84 ' 3,738.26
(T in Lakh)
Weighted Average number of Equity
Shares used as Deriominator o o
— Basic - ' 4,69,27,808 3,51,40,830
— Diluted 481,04,710 | 3,71,86,469
Earnings Per Share (%) — Basic 13.47 10.64 |
- —Diluted 13.14 10.05
Face Value Per Share () 1,000 1,000




31.

32.

33.

Income / Expenditure in Foreign Currencies :
: (T In Lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2016 | March 31, 2015
Income: Nil Nil
Expenditure:
Interest 853.34 264.32
Professional & Consultation Fee 3,757.63 5,611.34
Contractual Payments 37,552.20 - 8,19540
Others 69.81 60.68

The Board of Directors has approved a sum of ¥ 135.00 Lakh to be incurred for
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) during the year 2015-16. During the year,
company has incurred ¥ 167.98 Lakh on CSR Activities.

(X in Lakh)
Particulars In Cash Yet to berPaid Total
| ' in Cash
Construction/Acquisition of | NIL NIL NIL |
any Asset '
On purpose other than above 130.42 37.56 167.98
Total 130.42 37.56 167.98 |

Disclosure as required under Section 22 of The Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006 is as follows:- (¥ in Lakh)
Sr. Particulars Year ended | Year ended
No. March 31, March 31,
2616 2415
(i) | Principal amount remaining unpaid to Micro, small NIL NIL
& medium enterprise. L |
(ii) |Interest accrued on -principal amount remaining ‘NIL NIL
unpaid as (i) above ' - '
(ii1) | Amount of Interest paid during the FY along with NIL NIL
the payment of principal amount made beyond 15
days or agreed time from the date - of
delivery/rendering of services. ;
(iv) | Interest due but. yet to be paid on principal paid| NIL NIL
during the FY o -
(v) |Amount of further interesfzyeniaining due and NIL NIL
payable even in the sugmapd, until such
: e .




‘I‘(‘i

date when the interest dues as above are actually
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance as deductible expenditure.

34. Pending approval of superannuation scheme by MOR in terms of Para 2(iii) of DPE
OM no 2(70)/08-DPE (WC)-GL-VII/09 dated 02.04.2009, no provision has been
made in the accounts towards Pension & Post Superannuation medical benefits

since the approval of MOR is considered as obligating event in term of AS-29 for
creation of provision in terms of ibid AS.

35, The figures in the Financial Statements have been rounded off to ¥ Lakh. Previous

year figures / Opening balances have been regrouped/re-arranged/re-cast wherever
necessary. '

These are the Notes referred to in our report of even date.

‘ For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Baweja & Kaul

Chartered Accountants , ,
Firm Registration No: 05834N W
, _ (Adesh Sharma) (MLKS al)

-S\ Managing Director Director Finance
- DIN - 7022393 DIN - 2889021
CA Sakshi
- Partner
M.No. 514325 -~
(Meenu Kapoor)
Company Secretary

' ACS - 18954
Place : New Del_hi T o
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BAWEJA & KAUL

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

Tao the Members of
Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Dedicated Freight Corridor
Corporation of India Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31
March, 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting polictes and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also inctudes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. '

Auditor’s Respounsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the Accounting and Auditing Standards
and-matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143 (10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatements. '

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate

\§§’JA &
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in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 216, and its Profit and
its Cash Flows for the year ended an that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw aftention to the matter in the Notes to the financial statements:

Note No 23 wherein, it has been stated that the Balances shown under Material issued to
Contractors, Claims recoverable, Advance for Capital Expenditure, Advances to Contractors,
Recoverable/Payable from/to Ministry of Railways, Sundry Creditors and Deposits/Earnest
Money from Contractors are subject to Reconciliation/Confirmation and respective
consequential adjustments. ’ '

Our opinion is not modified in respect of matter stated under Emphasis of Matter.

Report on Qther Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give

in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

2. The Comptroller and Auditor General of India has issued directions indicating the areas to
be examined in terms of sib section (5) of Section 143 of the Compames Act 2013, the
compliance of which is set out.in “Annexure B”. , -

3. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Los's, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

//Lf()"




(d)

(e)
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in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts)

Rules, 2014,

in terms of Notification No. G.S.R. No. 463(E) dated 5th June, 2015 issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the provisions of Section 164(2) of the Act regarding
disqualification of directors, are not applicable to the Company;

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate

Report in “Annexure C7; and

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements. Refer Note 20 to the financial statements;

ii. The company did not have any [0ng~tei‘m contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. The provision of transferring the amount to the Investor Education and Protection

Fund is not applicable to the company.

For BAWEJA & KAUL
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 005834N

- CA Sakshi Kaul Dhar

Partner

M.No. 514325

~ Place: New Delhi

D_gted: 27 o614
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report referred to in paragraph 1 under
the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date to the members of Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of
India Limited for the financial year ended on 31st March 2016

ii.

il

vi.-

vii.

{a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

{b) The company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets once
in three years. However, during the year the company has conducted Physical
Verification of those Fixed Assets for which Physical Verification was not conducted in
the financial year 2014-15. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the nature of its assets and the size of the company.
According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, no
material discrepancies as compared to book records were noticed in respect of fixed
agsets physicaily verified during the year.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management and
on the basis of our examination of the records of the company,

The company does not have any immovable properties in its name except two flats on
leasehold basis amounting to Rs 320 Lakh, as disclosed in the Note no. 11 to the
financial statements; in respect of which leasehold deed is yet to be executed:

The company has been incorporated for running and maintaining dedicated freight
corridor. Since the railway freight corridors are under construction, it does not hold any
physical invenfories. Therefore, clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to the companies, firms,
Limited Liabifity Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. In view of this, sub clauses (a), (b), and {(c) of
clause 3(iii} of the Order are not applicable.

. According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the

company has not given any loans, investments, guarantees and securities as per section
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(iv) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits froml the public within the meaning of

section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the

rules framed there under, consequently the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of -
India and provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under are not.
applicable. = - . e T '

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Central Government has not prescribed for the maintenance of cost records under sub

section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of any of the activities
of the company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management and
an the basis of our examination of the records of the company, amounts deducted /
accrued in the books of accounts in respect of undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, employee’s state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of




BAWEJA & KAUL

Chartered Accountanis

customs , duty of excise, Value added tax, Cess and any other material statutory dues
have generally been regularly deposited during the vear by the Company, with the
appropriate authorities.

(b} According to the information and qxpianation given to us by the management and as
per the records of the Company, the following dues of income tax & Sales Tax/VAT
have not been deposited on account of dispute.

Name of the Statute Nature of | Amount Year to | Forum at which case

Dues (Rs. in | which it | is pending

Lakhs) pertains

Sales ) VATO (Ward 2),
Sales Tax Act Tax/VAT : 2971 2013-14 New Delhi
Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax 7.03 | 2009-10 | CIT  (Appeals),

. New Delhi

Income Tax Act, 1961 . | Income Tax 15.23 | 2011-12 | ITAT, New Dethi
Income Tax Act, 1961 | TDS 0.04 | 2007-08 | ACIT, New Delhi
tncome Tax Act, 1961 | TDS | 2131 200809 | ACIT, New Delhi
Income Tax Act, 1961 | TDS . 4557 2009-10 | ACTT, New Dethi
Income Tax Act, 1961 | TDS 8.04 | 2010-11 ACIT, New Delhi
[ncome Tax Act, 1961 | TDS 0.04 | 2011-12 | ACIT, New Delhi
Income Tax Act, 1961 |TDS 23.06 | 2012-13 | ACIT, New Delhi
Income Tax Act, 1961 | TDS - 1497 2013-14 | ACIT New Delhi

viii. Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given

xi.

to us by the management, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans &
borrowings to any financial institution, bank, government and dues to debenture
holders.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given
to us by the management, the company has not raised any funds by way of initial public
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments).. However, the company has
raised the term loans during the financial year ending 31% March, 2016 and the same
were applied for the purpose for which those were raised.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given
to us by the management, no fraud by the company or any fraud on the company, by
any person including its off cers/femployees, has been noticed or reported during the
year.

In view of the exemption given in terms of Notification No. G.S.R. No. 463(E) dated 5™
J ung, 20135 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the provistons of Section 197
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read with schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 regarding managerial remuneration
are not applicable to the company.

xii. According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore,jthe provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
Order are not applicable to the company.

xiil. According to the information and explanations given to us by the management and on
the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, transactions with related
partics are in compliance with the provisions of section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013, wherever applicable and the details of such transactions have been disclosed

in the notes to the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

xiv. Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given
to us by the management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year
under review. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable
to the company.

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
‘management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with them. Therefore the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order
are not appllcabie 10 the company.

—

xvi. The company is not required to be reg1stered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Therefore the provisions of clause 3(xvi) of the Oldﬁl are nat

applicable to the company.

For BAWEJA & KAUL
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 005834N

CA Sakshi Kaul Dhar
Partner
M.No.: 554}325

Place: New Delhi
Dated:z 7.06 J6
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report referred to in paragraph 2 under the
heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of
even date to the members of Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India Limited for
the financial year ended on 31st March 2016 ' '

5. No.

Directions

Our Report

land

Whether the company
has clear
deeds for freehold and
leasehold land
respectively? If not,

please state the area of |

freehold and leasehold
for which
title/lease deeds are not
available.

titie/lease.

According to information and explanations given to us by
the management, the Company does not own any land either
on freehold or [easehold basis. However, the company has
leasehold rights of two flats of 199.5 sqm. each, in respect of
which leasehold deed is yet to be executed. :

therefore

Whether there are any
cases of waiver/write
off of
debts/loans/interest
etc., if yes, the reasons
and  the
amount invelved.

According to information and explanations given to us, there
are no cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc.

(3]

| Whether proper records

are  maintained for
inventories lying with
third parties & assets
received as gift/grant(s)
from Government. or
other authorities?

The Company does not maintain any inventories.

According to information and explanations given to us, the
company has not received any assets as gifts/grant(s} from
government or other authorities.

For BAWEJA & KAUL
Chartered Accountants -
FRN: 005834N

CA Sakshit Kaul Dhar

Partner
M. No.: 514325

Place: New Delhi
Dated:2 7. 0616
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Annexure C to the Independent Auditor’s Report referred to in paragraph 3(f) under the
heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of
even date to the members of Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India Limited for
the financial year ended on 31st March 2016

Report on the Internal Financial Control under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Dedicated Freight
Corridor Corporation of India Limited (“the Company”) as on 31% March 2016 in conjunction
with our audit of the financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsibie for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal contrel over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered  Accountants of India (“ICAI"™). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating

~effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit.to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adeqguate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal -financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
Of Error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s mterna[ financial controls system over financial
le;()OE ting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financiat control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

" reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the cormpany; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reascnable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or dispositicn of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate. :

Opinion

“In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31* March, 2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
staled in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For BAWEJA & KAUL
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 005834N

s

CA Sakshi Kaul Dhar
Partner
M. No.: 514325

Place: New Delhi

Dated: 7. 0616
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR CORPORATION OF
INDIA LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016. '

The preparation of financial statements of Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of
India Limited for the year ended 31 March 2016 in accordance with the financial reporting

framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the management

.ot the company. The Statutory Auditors appointed by the.Comptrolier and Auditor General of

[ndia under Section 139 (5) of the Act are responsible for expressing opinion on the financial

statements under Section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the

standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been

done by them vide their Audit Report dated 27 June 2016.

I, on behalf of the Comp;roiler and Auditor General of India, have conductéd a
supplementary audit under section 143(6)(a) of the Act of the financial statements of Dedicated

Freight Corridor Corporation .of India Limited for the year ended 31 March 2516; This

supp!émentary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers

of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and

company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records. On the

“basis of my audit nothing significant has come to my know}gégg which would give riseﬁto‘ any

S JHP
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comment upon or supplement to statutory auditors® report.

) ' , For and on the behalf of the

Comptroller & Auditor General of India

B par=SANUSR
A : ‘ (Dinesh Bhargav)
Place: New Delhi ' Director General of Audit
Dated: {3 July, 2016 . : Railway Commgrcial, New Delhi
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